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Board’s REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting the Sixteenth 
Annual Report on business and operations, together with the 
audited financial statement of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2015.
1.	F inancial Results

	 The financial results of the Company for the year 
ended March 31, 2015 are summarized below for your 
consideration:

(Rs. in Crores)

  (Standalone) (Consolidated)

Particulars Year 
Ended
March  

31, 2015

Year 
Ended
March  

31, 2014

Year
Ended
March  

31, 2015

Year
Ended
March  

31, 2014

Income from 
operations 

476.56 389.44  476.56 389.44

Other income 22.69 11.70 22.71 11.72

Profit before Finance, 
Charges, Amortization, 
Depreciation and Tax

154.38 120.97 154.38 120.98

Finance Charges 
(including Interest)

1.48 3.59 1.48 3.59

Depreciation 30.02 24.18 30.02 24.18

Profit before tax 122.88 93.20 122.88 93.21

Provision for Tax 41.85 31.88 41.85 31.89

Net Profit 81.03 61.32 81.03 61.32

Balance amount 
brought forward 

222.16 172.80 222.20 172.84

Profit Available for 
appropriation

303.19 234.12 303.24 234.16

Transferred to General 
Reserve

- 5.00 - 5.00

Proposed Dividend 8.95 5.95 8.95 5.95

Corporate Dividend 
Tax

1.79 1.01 1.79 1.01

Adjustment on account 
of revision in useful life 
of fixed assets

0.51 - 0.51 - 

Balance Carried 
forward

291.94 222.16 291.99 222.20

2.	 Performance

	 During the financial year under review, your Company’s 
revenue from operations has been Rs. 476.56 Crores 
compared to Rs. 389.44 Crores last year, an increase 
of 22.37%. Profit before tax has been Rs.122.88 Crores 
compared to Rs. 93.20 Crores last year, an increase 
of 31.84% over the last year. Profit after tax has been 
Rs.81.03 Crores compared to Rs. 61.32 Crores last year, 
registering an increase of 32.14 % over the last year.

	 Your Company’s business model is such that it mainly 
depends on revenues from advertisements. Your 
Company, due to its impeccable reputation, leadership 
position of the flagship channel “AAJ TAK”, and 
confidence reposed by its viewers and clients, managed 
to achieve a highly satisfactory performance.

	 In recognition of its qualitative coverage and mass 
appeal, your Company’s Channels have been conferred 
with the following prestigious awards: 

	 ENBA – 2014
	 Best Channel Marketing -Sach on Karo 
	 Best Channel or Programme Promo – Election Express
	 Prime Time Awards- 2014
	 Best Programme launch promo – Sach On Karo
	 Best programme promotion - Sach On Karo
	 ITA 2014
	 Best News Channel – Aaj Tak
	 Best News Anchor – Anjana Om Kashyap 
	 Abby 2014 
	 Sach on Karo – Gold
	 AAJ TAK
	 Aaj Tak continued to maintain its leadership position 

for the 14th consecutive year. Aaj Tak market share 
has increased from 17.1 % in July-Sept’14 to 18.4 % 
in Jan-Mar’15. Aaj Tak continues to dominate by being 
the channel of choice during key events. Whether it’s 
a national or an international event, the credibility of 
Aaj Tak is unmatched. Aaj Tak has been the number 1 
Hindi News channels for Nonstop 100 weeks.(wk19’13-
14’15).

	 (Source- TAM, Market- HSM, TG- CS 15+, Market Share 
%, Period- As mentioned, Channel shares % calculated 
among 12 Hindi News channels)
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	 Headlines Today 

	 Headlines Today’s share % has gone up from 13.4 % 
(FY-2013-14) to 14.4 % ( FY-2014-15).

	 (Source- TAM, Market- All India, TG- CS 25+ M AB, 
Market Share %, Period- As Mentioned, Channel shares 
% calculated among 5 English News Channels)

	 Dilli Aaj Tak 

	 Dilli Aaj Tak maintains a solid monopoly in Delhi and 
maintains its viewership. Dilli Aaj Tak’s Universe share 
increased from 0.20 (April-Jun14) to 0.30 (Jan-Mar’15) 
in Delhi market.

	 (Source- TAM, Market- Delhi, TG- CS 15+, Period- As 
mentioned, Universe Share)

	 TEZ

	 TEZ share has gone up from 3.0 % in April-June’14 
to 4.2 % Jan-Mar’15. In WK 12’15 TEZ share % was 
ahead of NDTV India and IBN 7 whereas in WK 13’15 
it’s ahead of NDTV India and was equal to IBN 7.

	 (Source- TAM, Market- HSM, TG- CS 15+, Market Share 
%, Period- As Mentioned, Channel shares % calculated 
among 12 Hindi News channels)

	 In Mumbai market, Tez has higher market share % than 
NDTV India, IBN 7, News 24 and India News 

	 (Source:-TAM, Market-Mumbai, TG-CS 15+, Market 
Share %, Period- As mentioned, Channel shares % 
calculated among 12 Hindi News channels)

3.	D ividend

	 Your Directors are pleased to recommend for your 
consideration and approval payment of dividend @ 
30% amounting to Rs. 1.50 per equity share of Rs. 5/- 
each, for the financial year 2014-15. Total amount of 
dividend outgo for the financial year shall be Rs.10.74 
Crores (including Corporate Dividend Tax amounting to 
Rs. 1.79 Crores).

	 The dividend will be paid to members whose names 
appear in the Register of Members as on August 7, 
2015; in respect of shares held in dematerialised form, 
it will be paid to members whose names are furnished 
by National Securities Depository Limited and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited, as beneficial 
owners as on that date. The Annual General Meeting is 
scheduled to be held on August 20, 2015.

4.	 Transfer to Reserve 

	 There is no transfer of any amount to the General 
Reserve. An amount of Rs. 291.94 Crores is proposed 
to retained in the Surplus.

5.	D eposits

	 During the year, your Company has not accepted/
renewed deposits from the public within the meaning 
of Section 73, 74 and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder.

6.	D irectors and Key Managerial Personnel

	 In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, and the Articles of Association 
of your Company, not less than two-third of the total 
number of directors shall be liable to retire by rotation. 
Further at least one-third of those liable to retire by 
rotation shall retire at every Annual General Meeting. It 
also provides that the total number of directors for the 
purpose of this section shall not include Independent 
Directors. Therefore, based on the present Board 
structure, Mr. Rajeev Thakore, Mr. Anil Vig and Mr. Ashok 
Kapur, Independent Directors shall not be liable to retire 
by rotation. Out of remaining three directors, Mr. Aroon 
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Purie, Chairman & Managing Director is non-rotational 
Director. The other two directors, being two third shall 
be liable to retirement by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. 
Devajyoti Bhattacharya, retires at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment. We seek your support in confirming his 
re-appointment as Director.

	R e-appointment and Resignations

	 The Companies Act, 2013, provides for the appointment 
of Independent directors. Sub-section (10) of Section 
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that 
Independent directors shall hold office for a term of 
up to  five consecutive years on the Board of the 
Company.

	 On recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration committee, the Board appointed Mr. 
Ashok Kapur, Mr. Rajeev Thakore and Mr. Anil Vig as 
Independent Directors w.e.f. April 1, 2014 for a period 
of 5 years. We thank shareholders for their support in 
confirming their appointments in the Annual General 
Meeting held on August 20, 2014. 

	 On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, the Board also appointed Mr. Ashish kumar 
Bagga and Mr. Dinesh Bhatia as Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer respectively with effect from 
May 14, 2014.

	 Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet resigned as Whole-Time Director 
with effect from June 27, 2015 and shall continue as a 
Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company. 
The Board places its appreciation for the services 
rendered by Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet during her tenure 
as whole-time director of the Company.

7.	D irector’s Responsibility Statement

	 Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’ 
Responsibility Statement, it is confirmed that:

	 -	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for 
the year ended March 31, 2015, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed and 
there are no material departures from the same;

	 -	 the Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so 
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the company as at March 31, 2015 and of the profit 
of the Company for the year ended on that date;

	 -	 the Directors have taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities;

	 -	 the Directors have prepared the annual accounts 
of the Company on a going concern basis;

	 -	 the Directors, have laid down internal financial 
controls to be followed by the company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and 
were operating effectively;

	 -	 the Directors have devised proper systems to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and operating effectively.

8.	 Committees of the Board

	 The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted 
four committees namely, the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee and Stakeholder’s 
Relationship Committee.

	 A detailed note on the Board and its committees (Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee) is provided 
in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ section in the 
Annual Report. The composition of the committees and 
compliances, are as per the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 & revised clause 49 of the listing 
agreement and Rules, are as follows:

Name of the Committee Composition of the Committee Highlights of duties, responsibilities and activities
Audit Committee Mr. Ashok Kapur- Chairman

Mr. Rajeev Thakore 
Mr. Anil Vig

• The Board has defined the terms of reference of Audit 
Committee and charter of Audit Committee which 
provides the roles, responsibilities in pursuance of 
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Agreement.

• All recommendations made by the Audit Committee 
during the year were accepted by the Board. 

• http://specials.indiatoday.com/aajtaknew/ download/
Vigil_Mechanism_Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf
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Name of the Committee Composition of the Committee Highlights of duties, responsibilities and activities
Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Ashok Kapur- Chairman
Mr. Anil Vig
Mr. Devajyoti Bhattacharya

• Committee assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its 
governance and supervisory responsibilities relating 
to appointment and removal of directors, senior 
management personnel, including Key Managerial 
Personnel (‘KMP’) and remuneration of directors, KMP 
and other employees of the Company. 

• Committee complies with the roles and responsibilities 
as outlined in Charter approved by the Board. 

• The Committee has formulated a Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy which is part of this Annual Report. 

Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee

Mr. Aroon Purie- Chairman
Mr. Ashok Kapur
Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet

• The Board has laid out the Company’s policy on 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), and the CSR 
activities of the Company are carried out by the CSR 
Committee as per the CSR Policy devised by the Board. 
During the year, the Company has spent 2% of its 
average net profits made during the three immediately 
preceding financial years through Care Today Fund.

• The CSR Policy is available on the Company’s website 
under Corporate Governance heading, http://specials.
indiatoday.com/aajtaknew/download/csr_policy_final.pdf.

Stakeholder’s 
Relationship Committee

Mr. Anil Vig- Chairman
Mr. Ashok Kapur
Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet

• The Committee reviews and ensures redressal of 
investor grievances. 

• The Committee noted that all the grievances of the 
investors have been resolved during the year. 

• Committee complies with the roles and responsibilities 
as outlined in Charter approved by the Board. 

9.	 Policies of the Company

	 The Company as per the provision of Companies Act, 
2013 and Listing Agreement entered into with stock 
exchanges formulated the following policies:

Name of the Policy Web link
Related Party Transaction 
Policy

under Corporate 
Governance heading, 
on the website, http://
specials.indiatoday.com/
aajtaknew/download/
Related_Party_
Transaction_Policy.pdf

Policy for Determining 
Material subsidiaries

under Corporate 
Governance heading, on 
the website http://specials.
indiatoday.com/aajtaknew/
download/Policy_for_
Determining_Material_
Subsidiary.pdf

Vigil Mechanism Whistle 
Blower Policy

http://specials.indiatoday.
com/aajtaknew/ download/
Vigil_Mechanism_
Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf

Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy

http://specials.indiatoday.
com/aajtaknew/download/
csr_policy_final.pdf.

10.	E xtract of Annual return

	 In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return in the 
prescribed format is appended as Annexure-1 to the 
Board Report.

11.	 Number of Meetings of Board

	 The Board met four times during the financial year, the 
details of which are given in the Corporate Governance 
Report that forms part of this Annual report. The 
intervening gap between any two meetings was within 
the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Listing Agreement entered into with stock exchanges.

12.	D eclaration by Independent Directors

	 The Company has received the necessary declaration 
from each Independent Director under Section 149(7) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, that they meets the criteria 
of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement entered into with stock exchanges.

13.	 Training of Independent Directors

	 The Familiarization Programme for Independent 
Directors aims to familiarize them with the Company, 
their roles, rights, and responsibilities in the Company, 
nature of industry, and business model of the 
Company etc., to enable to take sound decisions 
and contribute towards the overall growth of the 
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company. The Independent Directors have complete 
access to the information within the Company. The 
Company regularly conducts training sessions for the 
Independent Directors where specific presentations 
were provided to them about the Company’s strategy, 
business model, operations, markets, organization 
structure, product offerings, finance, risk management 
framework, competitor’s analysis and various other 
factors affecting the company’s business. Moreover 
interactive meets are organized from time to time 
where they get opportunity to interact with Senior 
Management, Head of departments and other key 
personnel of the organization. All important corporate 
communications/announcements are forwarded to all 
the Independent Directors on regular basis to keep 
them abreast with what is happening in the company. 
Independent Directors have the freedom to interact with 
the Company’s management as and when required. The 
Appointment letters issued to Independent Directors 
also includes the roles, duties and responsibilities in the 
Company.

	 The details of such familiarization programmes for 
Independent Directors are posted on the website of the 
Company and can be accessed at:- 

	 http://media2.intoday.in/aajtak/investors/Familiarization% 
20Programme%20for%20Independent%20Directors.pdf

14.	 Criteria for Appointment of Directors

	 The Company has made Nomination and Remuneration 
Policy (“Policy”) for appointment and remuneration 
of Directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees. Currently, the Board consist of 6 members, 
out of which one is Managing Director, two of which are 
Non-executive Directors and three are Independent 
Directors to maintain the Independence of the Board and 
separate its functions of governance and management. 
The Board periodically evaluates the need for change in 
its composition and size.

	 The Policy, includes criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, independence of director and other 
matters provided under Sub-section (3) of the Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013, is included in the 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy adopted by the 
Board, forms part of this Annual Report. We affirm that 
the remuneration paid to directors is as per the terms 
laid out in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of 
the Company.

15.	R isk Management 

	 The Company has formulated the Risk Management 
Policy through which the Company has identified 
various risks like strategy risk, industry and competition 
risk, operation risk, liability risks, resource risk, 
technological risk, financial risk. The Company faces 
constant pressure from the evolving marketplace that 
impacts important issues in risk management and 
threatens profit margins. The Company emphasizes on 
those risks that threaten the achievement of business 

objectives of the Group over the short to medium term. 
Your Company has adopted the mechanism for periodic 
assessment to identify, analyze, and mitigation of the 
risk.

	 The appropriate risk identification method will depend 
on the application area (i.e. nature of activities and the 
hazard groups), the nature of the project, the project 
phase, resources available, regulatory requirements 
and client requirements as to objectives, desired 
outcome and the required level of detail.

	 The trend line assessment of risks, analysis of exposure 
and potential impact shall be carried out. Mitigation 
plans shall be finalized, owners identified, and progress 
of mitigation actions shall be regularly and periodically 
monitored and reviewed.

	 Treatment options which are not necessarily mutually 
exclusive or appropriate in all circumstances shall be 
driven by outcomes that include: 

	 	 Avoiding the risk, 
	 	 Reducing (mitigating) the risk, 
	 	 Transferring (sharing) the risk, and 
	 	 Retaining (accepting) the risk.
16.	 Corporate Social Responsibility

	 Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) is the 
Companies intent to make a positive difference to the 
society; Companies have realized that the Government 
alone will not be able to get success in its endeavor 
to uplift the Society so therefore the concept of CSR 
has gained its prominence in recent years and has been 
made mandatory as per Companies Act, 2013, which 
requires Companies to contribute some part of its profits 
towards the CSR activities. With the rapidly changing 
corporate environment, more functional autonomy 
and operational freedom we have adopted Corporate 
Social Responsibility as a strategic tool for sustainable 
growth. We are committed to operate our business with 
emphasis on CSR in all areas of our operation. We 
will integrate our business values and operations to 
meet the expectations of our shareholders, customers, 
employees, regulators, investors, suppliers, community 
and to take care of environment with best interest.

	 CSR VISION

	 1.	 Build a Powerful Partnership with Society for 
‘Sustainable Development’; 

	 2.	 To improve the quality of life of the communities 
we serve through long term stakeholder value 
creation.

	 As per the Companies Act, 2013, all companies having 
net worth of Rs. 500 Crore or more, or turnover of Rs. 
1,000 Crore or more or a net profit of Rs. 5 Crore or 
more during any financial year are required to constitute 
a corporate social responsibility (CSR) committee of the 
Board of Directors comprising three or more directors, 
at least one of whom should be an independent director 
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and such Company shall spend at least 2% of the 
average net profits of the Company’s three immediately 
preceding financial year. Accordingly, your Company 
has spent Rs. 9,325,944 through Care today fund 
towards CSR activities. 

	 The details of CSR Committee composition and 
meetings of CSR Committee are hereunder:- 

Name of the 
Members 

Designation Date of 
meetings held 
during the year

Mr. Aroon 
Purie- Chairman 
and Managing 
Director

Chairman 10th November, 
2014

Mr. Ashok Kapur-
Director

Member 6th February, 
2015

Ms. Koel Purie- 
Director

Member

	 Care Today Fund part of India Today Group was 
setup to focus on CSR initiatives of the group and your 
Company had contributed in the past in CSR activities 
through Care Today Fund long before the provisions 
related to CSR under the Companies Act, 2013 were 
applicable. 

	 The Board of Directors on the basis of recommendations 
received from CSR Committee had approved Swatch 
Bharat Abhiyan activities which shall be carried out 
through Care Today Fund and monitored by CSR 
Committee as CSR project/programs for contribution 
towards Corporate Social Responsibility activities.

	 The details relating to the Company’s CSR Activities for 
the financial year 2014-15 as required to be disclosed 
under the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 is 
provided in the Annexure-2 to the Board’s Report. 

17.	 Board Evaluation

	 In terms of Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Agreement 
entered into with stock exchanges, there is requirement 
of formal evaluation by the Board of its own performance 
and that of its committees and individual directors. 

	 The evaluation of individual directors and the Board 
as a whole was conducted based on the criteria and 
framework adopted by the Board. The evaluation 
criteria has been explained in the Nomination and 
Remuneration Policy adopted by the Board and forms 
part of this Annual report.

18.	 Vigil Mechanism

	 The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its 
business activities and has put in place a mechanism 
for reporting illegal or unethical behavior. The Company 
has a Vigil mechanism and Whistle blower policy under 
which the persons covered under the policy are free to 
report misuse or abuse of authority, fraud or suspected 
fraud, violation of company rules, manipulations, 
negligence causing danger to public health and safety, 

misappropriation of monies, and other matters or 
activity on account of which the interest of the Company 
is affected.. The reportable matters may be disclosed 
to the vigilance officer which operates under the 
supervision of the Audit Committee. Persons covered 
under the Policy may also report to the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee. 

	 During the year under review, no employee was denied 
access to the Audit Committee.

	 The Policy on vigil mechanism or whistle blower policy 
may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link: 
http://specials.indiatoday.com/aajtaknew/download/
Vigil_Mechanism_Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf

19.	D etails of Loans Given, Investments Made and 
Guarantee Given Covered U/S 186 (4) of the 
Companies Act, 2013

	 During the Financial Year 2014-15 the Company, has 
not made any loan, given any guarantee or provided 
security in connection with the loan to any other body 
corporate or person and has not made any investment 
by way of subscription or purchase, the securities of any 
other body corporate. 

	 Further, the Company had during its previous years 
made a strategic investment in Mail Today Newspapers 
Private Limited (Mail Today), a differentiated newspaper 
with respect to content as well as value to its advertisers, 
in earlier years, it has acquired stake amounting to 
Rs. 45.52 Crore. During the year, the Company has 
received a guarantee from its holding company, Living 
Media India Limited, for indemnifying any loss to the 
Company arising from the sale of the said investment. 
The same has been further elaborated in Note no. 40 of 
the Financial Statement which is self explanatory.

20.	 Particulars of contracts or arrangements with 
related parties 

	 All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the 
Company during the financial year with related parties 
were in the ordinary course of business and on an 
arm’s length basis. During the year, the Company had 
not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction 
with related parties which could be considered material 
in accordance with the policy of the Company on 
materiality of related party transactions. 

	 The policy on materiality of related party transactions and 
dealing with related party transactions as approved by 
the Board may be accessed on the Company’s website 
at the link http://specials.indiatoday.com/aajtaknew/
download/Related_Party_Transaction_Policy.pdf

	 Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note 36 
to the financial statement which sets out related party 
disclosures and thus, no disclosure is annexed in Form 
AOC 2 to this Board’s Report.

21.	 Disclosure of Remuneration 

	 As per the provisions of Section 197 read with rule 
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Managerial 
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Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed hereto and forms 
part of the Board Report as Annexure-3.

	 As per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with amended Clause 32 of the Listing 
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the Annual 
report is being sent to all shareholders of the Company 
excluding Particulars of employees as required under 
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 5(2) 
& (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014. Any shareholder interested in 
obtaining such particulars may inspect the aforesaid 
particulars at the registered office of the company during 
business hours for a period starting twenty days before 
the date of the annual general meeting or may also write 
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s Corporate 
office at India Today Mediaplex, FC-8, Sector 16A, 
Filmcity, Noida-201301, Uttar Pradesh for obtaining a 
copy of the same. 

	 No Director, of the Company who is receiving 
commission from the Company is in receipt of any 
remuneration or commission from any holding company 
or subsidiary company of the Company.

22.	S ubsidiary Company

	 The audited financial Statement of Accounts, alongwith 
the report of the Board of Directors and the Auditor’s 
Report pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 of the wholly owned subsidiary Company, TV 
Today Network (Business) Limited, for the year ended 
on March 31, 2015 is annexed as Annexure-4 to this 
Board’s Report.

23.	 Consolidated Accounts

	 In accordance with the requirements of Companies Act, 
2013 and rules made thereunder, your Company has 
prepared the Consolidated Accounts of itself and its 
subsidiary, as a single entity, which is annexed herewith.

24.	S tatutory Auditors

	 The Statutory auditors of your Company M/s Price 
Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants hold office up 
to the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment.

	 The Company has received letters from Auditors to the 
effect that their re–appointment, if made, would be within 
the prescribed limits under Section 141(3)(g) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified 
for re–appointment. Further, the Board of directors of 
the Company recommend to the shareholders for their 
approval, re-appointment of M/s Price Waterhouse, 
Chartered Accountants till the conclusion of Eighteenth 
Annual General Meeting.

	 In terms of the requirement of section 148 of the 
Companies Act 2013, your Board of Directors has 
appointed M/s. SKG & Co., Cost Accountants, as the 
Cost Auditor for the financial year ending March 31, 
2016. Further, the board of Directors of the Company 
recommend to the shareholders for their approval, 
remuneration to be paid to the Cost Auditors Rs. 

1,00,000/- (exclusive service tax & out of pocket 
expenses)

25.	S ecretarial Auditors

	 PI & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries 
was appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the 
Company for the financial year 2014-15 as required 
under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rules thereunder. The Secretarial Audit report for 
Financial Year 2014-15 forms part of the Annual Report 
as Annexure-5 to the Board’s Report.

	 Also, the Board had appointed PI & Associates, 
Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor 
of the Company for the financial year 2015-16.

26.	 Auditor’s Report

	 There are no qualifications of Auditors on the Accounts 
of the Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2015 requiring further comment from the Board of 
Directors.

	 There are no qualifications of Secretarial Auditors on 
the Secretarial Audit Report to the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2015 requiring further 
comment from the Board of Directors.

27.	I nternal Financial Control

	 The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of business, 
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and timely preparation of 
reliable financial disclosures.

28.	 Corporate Governance

	 In accordance with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, 
your Company has ensured continued compliance 
of Corporate Governance requirements during the 
financial year. Your Company lays strong emphasis on 
transparency, disclosure and independent supervision 
to increase various stakeholders’ value.

	 The report on Corporate Governance for the financial 
year 2014-15 is given in a separate section titled 
“Report on Corporate Governance” and Certificate of 
Company Secretary in Practice as required under the 
revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is appended 
herewith which forms part of this Annual Report as 
Annexure-7.

29.	E mployees Stock Option Plan

	 Human Resource is the key to the success of any 
organization. The Company has always valued its human 
resources and has tried to adopt the best HR practices. 
To retain and nurture well-performing employees who are 
contributing to the growth of the Company. The Board of 
Directors of your Company has approved an Employees’ 
Stock Option Scheme during the Year 2006 in 
accordance with SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme 
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 
1999 (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Regulations”) 
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with the objective of strengthening employee bonds with 
the Company and creating a sense of ownership. Your 
Board felt it appropriate to extend ESOPs to permanent 
employees in the management staff, including Managing 
Director and Whole-time Director(s) in order to motivate 
and retain the best talent. Further, during the year the 
Company has not amended the scheme as per the new 
regulations i.e. SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefit) 
regulations, 2014. The details pursuant to SEBI (Share 
Based Employee Benefit) regulations, 2014 has been 
placed on the website and weblink of the same is http://
aajtak.intoday.in/investor

	 A certificate from Statutory Auditors, with regard to 
the implementation of the Company Employees’ 
Stock Option Scheme, would be placed before the 
shareholders in the next Annual General Meeting and a 
copy of the same shall be available for inspection at the 
registered office of the Company.

30.	 Proposed Sale of FM Radio Business

	 The Board on February 6, 2015 approved the sale 
of Radio FM Business (seven radio stations) of 
the Company subject to regulatory approvals, and 
authorised a Committee of Senior Officials consisting 
of Mr. Aroon Purie, Mr. Ashish Kumar Bagga and 
Mr.  Dinesh Bhatia (“Committee”) to negotiate and 
execute requisite documents with potential buyers.

	 In furtherance to the aforesaid, a non-binding 
memorandum of understanding (“MoU”) was signed 
with Entertainment Network (India) Limited (“ENIL”).

	 On February 16, 2015, an application was filed with 
the Ministry of Information and Broadcasting (“MIB”) 
seeking its approval for the sale of Radio FM Business to 
ENIL. Since there was no response from the MIB on the 
application filed by the Company, the Company filed a 
writ petition in the Delhi High Court to expedite the matter. 
On April 20, 2015, the Court directed the MIB to decide 
the Company’s application within two weeks. MIB by its 
order dated May 1, 2015 denied approval to the sale of 
Radio FM Business on the ground that the proposed sale 
is not in conformity with the FM Radio Guidelines.

	 In Committee’s meeting on May 8, 2015,the Committee 
took note of the MIB order dated May 1, 2015, approved 
the amendment of the MoU and agreed to consider 
other possible options along with ENIL.

	 The Committee has further decided to challenge the 
above referred MIB order with the Delhi High Court.

31.	 Management Discussion and Analysis

	 Separate report on Management Discussion & Analysis 
is appended herewith.

32.	 Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption 
and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

	 In terms of the requirement of clause (m) of sub-section 
(3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars 

with respect to “Conservation of Energy, Technology 
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo” 
are given as under:

a)	 Conservation of Energy: Your Company have 
already worked out and developed a plan to replace 
the existing conventional light fixtures with LED lights 
and developed customized LED lighting fixtures which 
will be suitable and appropriate to replace the existing 
lighting system. It has been processed with Commercial 
Wing to finalize the terms with the vendors, as per the 
company’s policy.
1.	 the steps taken or impact on conservation 

of energy :    Replaced the existing conventional 
lighting fixtures with LED lighting fixtures which will 
be saving electrical energy by 60% to 70%.

2.	 the steps taken by company for utilizing 
alternate sources of energy : During the year, 
Company carried out initial survey for feasibility 
for installation of solar power utilization but there 
is space constraints in the building to develop this 
alternate source.

3.	 the capital investment on energy conservation 
equipment’s : Your Company would be investing 
approx Rs. 20 lakhs in financial year 2015 - 16 and 
another Rs. 20 lakhs in the subsequent financial 
year. Once implemented fully (expected date of 
completion June 2016), there would be a saving of 
approx Rs. 60 lakhs p.a. 

(b)	 Technology Absorption 
1.	 The efforts made towards Technology Absorption: 
	 Technology is ever changing and employees of the 

Company are made aware of the latest working 
techniques and technologies through workshops 
and discussion sessions for optimum utilization of 
available resources and to improve operational/
production efficiency. The Company uses the 
latest High Definition (HD) – Standard Definition 
Television (SD) digital technology in broadcasting 
its programs. 

	 The Company is aware of implementation of latest 
technologies in key working areas and outdated 
technologies are constantly identified and updated 
with latest/new innovations.

2.	 The benefits derived like product improvement, 
cost reduction, product development or import 
substitution

	 Product improvement and cost reduction is always the 
Company’s priority while we choose new equipment. 
At the same time we do not change technology every 
year as major changes can only be made at the 
time of launch of new channel or revamp of existing 
format to new format. But whatever equipment we 
add, to meet our growing requirement we follow a 
process and cost benefits are captured. 

3.	I n case of imported technology (imported 
during the last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the financial year) :
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		  (a)
Last three Financial Years Value of Import (in 

Rs)
2011 - 12 65,44,035
2012 – 13 6,33,463
2013 – 14 1,71,114

		  (b) �whether the technology been fully absorbed- Yes
		  (c) �if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has 

not taken place and the reasons thereof-N.A
4.	 The expenditure incurred on Research and 

Development:
	 Your Company is   doing research   to explore 

new technology available and to meet this 
requirement various conferences and workshops 
are attended as well keep constant engagement 
with vendors to understand the new products that 
were launched.

(c) Transaction in Foreign Currency :
i) Value of Imports

(CIF basis)
: Rs. 45,536,119

ii) Expenditure in foreign 
currency (Accrued basis)
(a) Traveling Expenses : Rs. 15,759,008
(b) Production Cost : Rs. 129,125,107
(c) Repair and Maintenance : Rs. 15,085,838
(d) Others : Rs. 21,040,105
(e) Income in foreign 

currency
(Accrued basis)

: Rs. 124,564,082

33.	 Statement under Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013 

	 Your Directors further state that during the year under 
review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

34.	 Acknowledgment

	 Your Directors place on record their deep appreciation 
of the contribution made by all section of employees with 
dedication, commitment and team effort which helped 
your Company in achieving the performance during the 
year despite stiff competition from the existing as well as 
new players in the news and current affairs genre. 

	 Your Directors also acknowledge with thanks the 
support given by the Central Government, bankers, 
shareholders and investors at large and look forward to 
their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
			
	 Sd/-
	 Aroon Purie
	 Chairman &

Managing Director
DIN No.0002794

Place: New Delhi� Address : 6, Palam Marg, 
Date: 20th July, 2015� Vasant Vihar, New Delhi, 110057
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Annexure-1
FORM NO. MGT.9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies  

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.	RE GISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i)	 CIN: - L92200DL1999PLC103001
ii)	 Registration Date: 28/12/1999
iii)	 Name of the Company: T.V. Today Network Limited
iv)	 Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Broadcasting and Telecasting
v)	 Address of the registered office and contact details: 
	 F-26, First Floor, Connaught Circus, New Delhi- 110001, Telephone Number: 0120-4807100, Fax Number: 0120-

4807154, Website: www.aajtak.intoday.in, Email: puneet.jain@aajtak.com   
vi)	 Whether listed company Yes / No : Yes
vii)	 Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any: 
	 MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, F-65, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase- I, New Delhi- 110020, Telephone Number: 

011-41406149, Fax Number: 011-41709881, Email: admin@mcsdel.com

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-
Sl. 
No.

Name and Description of

main products / services

NIC Code of the

Product/ service

% to total turnover of the 
company

1 Radio Broadcasting 601 3%
2 Television programming and broadcasting activities 602 97%

III.	 *PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
Sl.
No.

NAME AND
ADDRESS OF
THE COMPANY*

CIN/GLN HOLDING/
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% of shares
held

Applicable
Section

1 Living Media India Limited U92132DL1962PLC003714 Holding Company 56.92 Section 2(46) of 
Companies Act, 

2013
2 TV Today Network (Business) 

Limited 
U74899DL2005PLC142634 Subsidiary Company 100 Section 2(87) of 

Companies Act, 
2013

* The Company doesn’t have any associate company
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IV.	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i)	 Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares

A.	 Promoter  and 
Promoter Group 

(1)	Indian
a)		 Individual/ 

HUF
b)		 Central Govt.
c)		 State Govt. (s)
d)		 Bodies 

Corporate 
e)		 Banks/

Financial 
Institutions

f)		  Any Others 
(Specify)

Trusts
Sub-total (A) (1):-
(2)	Foreign

211374

-
-

33955999

-

-

34167373

-

-
-
-

-

-

-

211374

-
-

33955999

-

-

34167373

0.36

-
-

57.11

-

-

57.47

294172

-
-

33955999

-

-

34250171

-

-
-
-

-

-

-

294172 

-
-

33955999

-

-

34250171

0.49

-
-

56.93

-

-

57.42

0.13.

-0.18

-0.05

a)		 Individuals 
(NRIs/
Foreign 
Individuals)

b)		 Other - 
Individuals

c)		 Bodies 
Corporate

d)		 Banks/
Financial 
Institutions

e)		 Any Other
Sub-total (A) (2):-
Total shareholding 
of Promoter (A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)( 2)

-

-

-

-

-

34167373

-

-

-

-

-

0

-

-

-

- 

-

34167373

-

-

-

-

-

57.47

-

-

-

-

-

34250171

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

34250171

-

-

-

-

-

57.42 -0.05

B.	 Public 
Shareholding

1.	I nstitutions
a)		 Mutual 

Funds/UTI
b)		 Banks/

Financial 
Institutions

c)		 Central Govt.
d)		 State Govt.(s)
e)		 Venture 

Capital Funds
f)		  Insurance 

Companies
g)		 Foreign 

Institutional 
Investors

h)		 Foreign 
Venture 
Capital Funds

158773

15090

-
-
-

1299321

-

-

-

-

-
-
-

-

-

-

158773

15090

-
-
-

1299321

-

-

0.27

0.03

-
-
-

2.19

-

-

1589252

16220

-
-
-

517965

-

-

-

-

-
-
-

-

-

-

1589252

16220

-
-
-

517965

-

-

2.66

0.03

-
-
-

0.87

-

-

2.39

0.00

-1.32

TV Today 1(1-49).indd.indd   13 7/20/2015   6:33:29 PM



T.V. Today Network Limited

14	 ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 
during the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares

i)		  Others 
(specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-
2. Non-Institutions

a)		 Bodies 
Corporate

b)		 Individuals
i)		  Individual 

holding 
nominal 
share capital 
upto Rs. 1 
lakh

ii)		 Individual 
holding 
nominal 
share capital 
in excess of 
Rs 1 lakh

c)		 Qualified 
Foreign 
Investor

d)		 Others 
(specify)

1.	 Non Resident 
Indians

2.	 Trusts
3.	 Foreign 

Companies

Sub-total (B)(2):-
Total Public 
Shareholding (B) = 
(B)(1) + (B)(2)

-

1473184

10173165

8243338

4849021

0

501767

40100
0

23807391

25280575

-

-

76

8591

0

0

0

0
0

8667

8667

-

1473184

10173241

8251929

4849021

0

501767

40100
0

23816058

25289242

-

2.48

17.11

13.88

8.16

0

0.84

0.07
0

40.06

42.53

-

2123437

4675105

9233589

8264844

0

1050852

42600
0

23266990

25390427

-

-

76

7941

0

0

0

0
0

8017

8017

-

2123437

4675181

9241530

8264844

0

1050852

42600
0

23275007

25398444

-

3.56

7.84

15.49 

13.86

0

1.76

0.71
0

39.02

42.58

1.08

-9.27

1.61

5.7

0.92

0.64

-1.04

0.05

C. Shares held 
by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

59447948 8667 59456615 100.00 59640598 8017 59648615 100.00 0

(ii)	S hareholding of Promoters
Sl.  
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Share holding at the end of the year

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered to 
total shares

% change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
year

1 Living Media India 
Limited 

33954333 57.11 0 33954333 56.92 0 -0.19

2 Aroon Purie 211374 0.36 0 294172 0.49 0 0.13
3 World Media Pvt. 

Limited 1666 0.00 0 1666 0.00 0
00

Total 34167373 57.47 0 34250171 57.42 0 0.05
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(iii)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
	 Aroon Purie and Living Media India Limited:-

Sl. 
No.

Particulars Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

1. Aroon Purie
At the beginning of the year 211374 0.36 294172 0.49
Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/ sweat equity etc):
Market Purchase on 16.5.14
Market Purchase on 19.5.14

41000
41798

0.06
0.07

At the End of the year 294172 0.49 294172 0.49
2. Living Media India Limited

At the beginning of the year
33954333 57.11 33954333 56.92

Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/ sweat equity etc):

NIL

At the End of the year 33954333 56.92 33954333 56.92

(iv)	S hareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

Detail of Top 10 Shareholders as on 31-03-14 & 31-03-2015 & their transactions between the period of 01-04-14 to 31-03-15 

S. No Folio No Name Shareholding Date Increase / 
Decrease in 

Shareholding

Reason Cumulative Shaholding 
during the year (01-04-

14 to 31-03-15)

Category

No of Shares at 
the Beginning 
(01-04-14) /end 

of the Yearv (31-
03-15)

% of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

Shares % of total 
shares 
of the 

Company

1 IN30031910000115 RELIANCE CAPITAL LIMITED 5828705 9.7717 01/04/2014 Others

04/04/2014 -286551 Transfer 5542154 9.2913 

16/05/2014 -200001 Transfer 5342153 8.9560 

23/05/2014 -725000 Transfer 4617153 7.7406 

07/08/2014 -1327153 Transfer 3290000 5.5156 

15/08/2014 -350000 Transfer 2940000 4.9289 

29/08/2014 -140000 Transfer 2800000 4.6942 

12/09/2014 -33490 Transfer 2766510 4.6380 

07/11/2014 -100510 Transfer 2666000 4.4695 

14/11/2014 -306698 Transfer 2359302 3.9553 

21/11/2014 -359302 Transfer 2000000 3.3530 

28/11/2014 -1600000 Transfer 400000 0.6706 

23/01/2015 -100000 Transfer 300000 0.5029 

30/01/2015 -212000 Transfer 88000 0.1475 

06/02/2015 -88000 Transfer 0 0.0000 

0 0.0000 31/03/2015
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2 IN30081210000012 LIFE INSURANCE 
CORPORATION OF INDIA

1271685 2.1320 01/04/2014 Others

20/06/2014 -156042 Transfer 1115643 1.8704 
30/06/2014 -189180 Transfer 926463 1.5532 
04/07/2014 -54778 Transfer 871685 1.4614 
19/09/2014 -30000 Transfer 841685 1.4111 
30/09/2014 -27234 Transfer 814451 1.3654 
10/10/2014 -50000 Transfer 764451 1.2816 
17/10/2014 -16678 Transfer 747773 1.2536 
27/02/2015 -41830 Transfer 705943 1.1835 
06/03/2015 -182164 Transfer 523779 0.8781 
13/03/2015 -5814 Transfer 517965 0.8684 

517965 0.8684 31/03/2015
3 IN30301020001835 DAMANI ESTATES AND 

FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
896000 1.5021 01/04/2014 Others

27/02/2015 -896000 Transfer 0 0.0000 
0 0.0000 31/03/2015

4 IN30014210249407 RAMESH DAMANI 819686 1.3742 01/04/2014 Others
28/11/2014 50000 Transfer 869686 1.4580 

869686 1.4580 31/03/2015
5 IN30231610037375 ANIKA INTERNATIONAL 

LIMITED
400000 0.6706 01/04/2014 Others

05/09/2014 -25000 Transfer 375000 0.6287 
12/09/2014 -25000 Transfer 350000 0.5868 
07/11/2014 -25000 Transfer 325000 0.5449 

325000 0.5449 31/03/2015
6 IN30047610040825 BHADRA JAYANTILAL SHAH 300000 0.5029 01/04/2014 Others

04/04/2014 50000 Transfer 350000 0.5868 
16/01/2015 -30000 Transfer 320000 0.5365 

320000 0.5365 31/03/2015
7 1301240000127525 RADHAKISHAN S DAMANI 286787 0.4808 01/04/2014 Others

02/05/2014 800 Transfer 287587 0.4821 
30/05/2014 -213000 Transfer 74587 0.1250 
13/06/2014 3000 Transfer 77587 0.1301 
20/06/2014 -7500 Transfer 70087 0.1175 
30/06/2014 -70000 Transfer 87 0.0001 
05/09/2014 716332 Transfer 716419 1.2011 
12/09/2014 -716000 Transfer 419 0.0007 
30/09/2014 2500 Transfer 2919 0.0049 
07/11/2014 200000 Transfer 202919 0.3402 
28/11/2014 1300000 Transfer 1502919 2.5196 
05/12/2014 -500000 Transfer 1002919 1.6814 
12/12/2014 -800000 Transfer 202919 0.3402 
16/01/2015 300000 Transfer 502919 0.8431 
23/01/2015 500000 Transfer 1002919 1.6814 
30/01/2015 -500000 Transfer 502919 0.8431 
06/03/2015 20500 Transfer 523419 0.8775 
13/03/2015 -13000 Transfer 510419 0.8557 
20/03/2015 216000 Transfer 726419 1.2178 
27/03/2015 -216000 Transfer 510419 0.8557 

510419 0.8557 31/03/2015
8 IN30047610545253 CHETAN JAYANTILAL SHAH 250000 0.4191 01/04/2014 Others

250000 0.4191 31/03/2015
9 IN30154938424594 SHRI SHYAM ADVISORY 

SERVICES PRIVATE 
LIMITED

225100 0.3774 01/04/2014 Others

225100 0.3774 31/03/2015
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10 1201090004825731 KANWAL NS SHAHPURI 213634 0.3582 01/04/2014 Others
25/04/2014 -213634 Transfer 0 0.0000 

0 0.0000 31/03/2015
11 IN30021417509219 GOPIKISHAN S DAMANI 0 0.0000 01/04/2014 Others

05/09/2014 485868 Transfer 485868 0.8146 
07/11/2014 -200000 Transfer 285868 0.4793 
05/12/2014 570000 Transfer 855868 1.4348 
12/12/2014 800000 Transfer 1655868 2.7760 
16/01/2015 -100000 Transfer 1555868 2.6084 
27/03/2015 216000 Transfer 1771868 2.9705 

1771868 2.9705 31/03/2015
12 IN30509920001835 DAMANI ESTATES AND 

FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
0 0.0000 01/04/2014 Others

27/02/2015 896000 Transfer 896000 1.5021 
896000 1.5021 31/03/2015

13 IN30016710016878 FRANKLIN INDIA SMALLER 
COMPANIES FUND

0 0.0000 01/04/2014 Others

30/05/2014 823291 Transfer 823291 1.3802 
20/06/2014 50000 Transfer 873291 1.4641 
30/06/2014 75000 Transfer 948291 1.5898 
04/07/2014 50000 Transfer 998291 1.6736 
22/08/2014 382 Transfer 998673 1.6743 
29/08/2014 25000 Transfer 1023673 1.7162 
05/09/2014 -100000 Transfer 923673 1.5485 
14/11/2014 -100000 Transfer 823673 1.3809 
20/02/2015 -50000 Transfer 773673 1.2971 

773673 1.2971 31/03/2015
14 IN30355910019146 Radhakishan Damani 0 0.0000 01/04/2014 Others

30/01/2015 500000 Transfer 500000 0.8382 
500000 0.8382 31/03/2015

15 IN30371910978526 KANWAL NS SHAHPURI 0 0.0000 01/04/2014 Others
04/04/2014 190000 Transfer 190000 0.3185 
22/08/2014 210000 Transfer 400000 0.6706 

400000 0.6706 31/03/2015
16 IN30016710119923 RELIANCE CAPITAL 

TRUSTEE CO. LTD-A/C 
RELIANCE CAPITAL 
BUILDER FUND - SR A

0 0.0000 01/04/2014 Others

29/08/2014 365000 Transfer 365000 0.6119 
365000 0.6119 31/03/2015

(v)	S hareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

Name of the Directors and 
KMP

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of the 
company

Mr. Aroon Purie-Managing 
Director
At the
beginning of the year

211374 0.36 294172 0.49

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in Share holding 
during the year: 
Market Purchase on 
16.5.14
Market Purchase on 
19.5.14

41000
41798

0.06
0.07

At the End of the year 294172 0.49 294172 0.49
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V.	I NDEBTEDNESS 
	I ndebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at
the beginning of
the financial year
i)	 Principal Amount 172800000 0 0 172800000
ii)	 Interest due but not paid 475792 0 0 475792
iii)	 Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 173275792 0 0 173275792
Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year
	Addition
	Reduction

67258112 0 0 67258112
172800000 (Principal) 0 0 172800000
475792 (Interest) 475792

Net Change 240533904 0 0 240533904
Indebtedness at
the end of the Financial year
i)	 Principal Amount 67258112 67258112
ii)	 Interest due but not paid
iii)	 Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 67258112 67258112

VI.	RE MUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A.	R emuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
S. 
N.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

    Mr. Aroon  
Purie-M.D

Ms. Koel  
Purie-W.T.D

- -  

1 Gross salary          
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

NIL  7255708     7255708

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961  NIL  39,600     39,600
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- 
tax Act, 1961

 NIL   NIL      NIL

2 Stock Option  NIL   NIL      NIL
3 Sweat Equity  NIL   NIL      NIL
4 Commission 

-  as % of profit 
-  others, specify…

 
 67,084,720 NIL

     
67,084,720

5 Others, please specify-Incentive    NIL  2592000     2592000
  Total (A)   67,084,720 9887308      76972028

  Ceiling as per the Act Rs 128247767.20 (within the prescribed limits as per Companies Act, 2013)

B.	R emuneration to other directors
S. 
N.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

    Mr. Rajeev 
Thakore

Mr. Ashok 
Kapur

Mr. Mr. Anil 
Vig

-  

1 Independent Directors          
Fee for attending board committee meetings  80000  100000   80000    260000
Commission  NIL  NIL  NIL    NIL
Others, please specify  NIL  NIL  NIL    NIL
Total (1)  80000  100000   80000    260000
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2 Other Non-Executive Directors  Mr. Devajyoti 
Bhattacharya

       

Fee for attending board committee meetings  40000        
Commission  NIL        
Others, please specify  NIL        

  Total (2)  40000        
  Total (B)=(1+2)  300000        
  Total Managerial 

Remuneration
         

  Overall Ceiling as per the Act The Independent Directors and Non-executive Directors are entitled to only sitting 
fees which is within the limits prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013.  

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than MD/Manager/Wtd
S. 
N. 

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

    CEO CS CFO Total
1 Gross salary    

(a) �Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 
1961

19,769,200 3,695,658 9,800,526 33,265,384

(b) �Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961

34,692 NIL  15,840 50532

(c) �Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

NIL NIL NIL NIL

2 Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL
3 Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL
4 Commission
  -  as % of profit NIL NIL NIL NIL
  others, specify… NIL NIL NIL NIL
5 Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL
  Total 19,803,892                  3,695,658 9,816,366 33,315,916

VII.	 PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief Description Details of Penalty/
punishment

/compounding fee imposed

Authority
RD/NCLT/

Court

Appeal
Made, if any

A.	 COMPANY
Penalty

N.A.Punishment
Compounding

B.	 DIRECTORS

Penalty
N.A.Punishment

Compounding
C.	 OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty
N.A.Punishment

Compounding
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Annexure-2

(Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013)

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy: 

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) is the Companies 
intent to make a positive difference to the society; Companies 
have realized that the Government alone will not be able to 
get success in its endeavor to uplift the Society so therefore 
the concept of CSR has gained its prominence in recent 
years and has been made mandatory as per Companies 
Act, 2013, which requires Companies to contribute some 
part of its profits towards the CSR activities. With the rapidly 
changing corporate environment, more functional autonomy 
and operational freedom we have adopted Corporate Social 
Responsibility as a strategic tool for sustainable growth. We 
are committed to operate our business with emphasis on CSR 
in all areas of our operation. We will integrate our business 
values and operations to meet the expectations of our 
shareholders, customers, employees, regulators, investors, 
suppliers, community and to take care of environment with 
best interest.
CSR VISION
1.	 Build a Powerful Partnership with Society for ‘Sustainable 

Development’; 
2.	 To improve the quality of life of the communities we 

serve through long term stakeholder value creation.
The Board of Directors on the basis of recommendations 
received from CSR Committee has approved Swatch Bharat 
Abhiyan activities which shall be carried out through Care 
Today Fund and monitored by CSR Committee as CSR 
project/programs for contribution towards Corporate Social 
Responsibility activities.

Visit http://specials.indiatoday.com/aajtaknew/download/
csr_policy_final.pdf. for more details regarding the CSR 
activities.
Composition of CSR Committee

Keeping in line with the requirements of Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company 
had constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
comprising of the following:
S. No. Name Designation

1. Mr. Aroon Purie Managing Director
2. Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet Whole-time Director
3. Mr. Ashok Kapur Independent Director
4. Dr. Puneet Jain

Coordinator and 
Facilitator of the CSR 
Committee

Head-Legal & 
Compliances & Company 
Secretary & Vice-
President (Internal Audit)

Sl. 
No

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)

1 Average Net profits of the Company 
for the last three financial years

466,297,205

2 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of 
the average net profits as specified 
above)

 9,325,944 

3 Details of CSR expenditure spent 
during the financial year:
a.	 Total amount to be spent for the 

financial year
9,325,944* 

b.	 Amount unspent NIL
*The full amount has been transferred to Care Today Fund 
Account for utilizing the amount in Swatch Bharat Abhiyaan 
activities. The Care Today is in process of spending the CSR 
contribution as approved by the Board.

The manner of the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below: 
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

S. No. CSR Project 
or activity 
identified

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Projects or Programs
(1) Local area or other
(2) Specify the state 
and district where 
projects or programs 
was undertaken

Amount outlay 
(budget) project 
or programs wise

Amount spent 
on the projects 
or programs 
Sub Heads:
(1) Direct 
expenditure 
on projects or 
programs
(2) Overheads

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto to the 
reporting 
period

Amount spent:
Direct or 
through 
implementing 
agency

1 Swatch 
Bharat 
Abhiyan

Contribution 
to the Swatch 
Bharat Kosh 
set up by 
the Central 
Government

Swatch Bharat Abhiyan 9,325,944 0 0 -Through Care 
Today Fund#

2
3

TOTAL 9,325,944 0 0
# Care Today Fund part of India Today Group was setup to focus on CSR initiatives of the group and T.V. Today Network Limited 
had contributed in the past in CSR activities through Care Today Fund long before the provisions related to CSR under the 
Companies Act, 2013 were applicable. 
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In case the Company has failed to spend the 2% of the 
Average net profits of the Last 3 Financial Years or any 
part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons 
for not spending the amount in its Board Report: Not 
Applicable
OUR CSR RESPONSIBILITIES

We hereby affirm that the CSR Policy, as approved by the 
Board, has been implemented and the CSR Committee 
monitors the implementation of the CSR projects and 

activities in compliance with our CSR objectives and Policy 
of the Company.

Ashish Kumar Bagga	 Aroon Purie
Chief Executive Officer 	 Chairman & Managing Director
	 (Chairman CSR Committe)
DIN: 01023789	 DIN: 00002794
Aashirwad, A-4/2,	 6, Palam Marg,
DLF City Phase-I, Gurgaon	 Vasant Vihar, New Delhi,
	 110057
Place: New Delhi
Date: 12th May, 2015	
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Annexure-3

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) 
RULES, 2014

(i)	 The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the 
financial year 2014-15, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year 2014-15 and the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 
against the performance of the Company are as under:

Sl. No. Name of the Director/
KMP and their 
Designation 

Remuneration
of Director/KMP
for financial year

2014-15

% increase in
Remuneration

in the
Financial Year

2014-15

Ratio of
remuneration of
each Director/

to median
remuneration of

employees

Comparison of the
Remuneration of
the KMP against 

the
performance of the

Company

The ratio of the 
remuneration 
of the highest 
paid director 
to that of the 

employees who 
are not directors 

but receive 
remuneration 

in excess of the 
highest paid 

director during 
the year 

1 Mr. Aroon Purie, 
Managing Director

6,70,84,720 35.69 127.36

The total 
remuneration of 
Key Managerial 

Personnel 
increased by 

80.93% (i.e.  from  
Rs. 6,01,46,280 
in 2013-14 to Rs 

10,88,24,295
in 2014-15) whereas 

the Profit before 
Tax increased by 
32% (i.e. from Rs  
93,20,08,237in 

2013 – 14 to Rs. 
1,22,87,71,008 in 

2014-15)

NA

2 Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet, 
Non Executive Director*

93,52,372 20.00 17.76 NA

3 Mr. Rajeev Thakore, 
Independent Director ##

80,000 11.11 0.15 NA

4 Mr. Ashok Kapur, 
Independent Director ##

100,000 177.78 0.19 NA

5 Mr. Anil Vig, Independent 
Director ##

80,000 700.00 0.15 NA

6 Mr. Devajyoti 
Bhattacharya, Non 
Executive Director #

40,000 NA 0.08 NA

7 Mr. Dinesh Bhatia, Chief 
Financial Officer###

96,68,295 NA 18.36 NA

8 Mr. Ashish Kumar 
Bagga, Chief Executive 
Officer###

1,90,47,892 NA 36.16 NA

9 Dr. Puneet Jain, Head 
Legal and Compliances 
& Company Secretary &
Vice-President (Internal 
Audit)

36,71,016 25.98 6.97 NA

*Resigned as Whole Time Director w.e.f. June 27, 2015
# Appointed as Non-Executive Director w.e.f. February 11, 2014
## Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the Board Meeting and Committee Meetings of the Company
### Appointed as Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. May 14, 2014
(ii)	 The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs 5,26,736. During the financial 

year, there was an increase of 9.84% in the median remuneration of employees;
(iii)	 There were 1,073 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2015;
(iv)	 Relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance:- 
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	 The profit before tax for the financial year ended March 31, 2015 increased by 32 % whereas increase in median remuneration 
was 9.84%. The average increase in median remuneration was in line with the performance of the Company.

(v)	 a)  Variations in the market capitalisation of the Company : 
	       �The market capitalisation as on March 31, 2015 at BSE was Rs 12,90,19,95,425 in comparison to Rs 7,02,85,20,787 

as on March 31, 2014 and at NSE was Rs 12,93,77,84,594 in comparison to Rs 7,03,44,69,599 as on March 31, 2014)
	 b)  Price Earnings ratio of the Company as on March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014 was 15.95 and 11.47.
	 c) � Percent increase over/ decrease in the market quotations of the shares of the company as compared to the rate at 

which the company came out with the last public offer in the year- The Company came out with an IPO at Rs 95 per 
share and the market price of the share as on March 31, 2015 is Rs. 216.90 on NSE. Thus, there is increase in 128.32 
percent in the price of the share. 

(vi)	 Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial 
year i.e. 2014-15 was 54.83 % whereas the increase in the managerial remuneration for the same financial year was 
80.93%. During the year Company has appointed Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer of the Company to 
comply with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. 

Note: Managerial personnel includes the Executive Directors and KMP as on March 31, 2015
(vii)	The key parameters for the variable component of remuneration availed by the directors are considered by the Board of 

Directors based on the recommendations of the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and as per 
the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees.

(viii)	It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other Employees.
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Annexure- 4

AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

SI. 
No.

Name 
of the 

subsidiary

Reporting 
period 
for the 

subsidiary 
concerned, 
if different 
from the 
holding 

company’s 
reporting 

period

Reporting 
currency and 

Exchange 
rate as on the 

last date of 
the relevant 

Financial year 
in the case 
of foreign 

subsidiaries

Share 
Capital

Reserves 
& Surplus

Total 
Assets

Total 
Liabilities

Investments Turnover Profit 
before 

Taxation

Provision 
for 

Taxation

Profit 
after 

Taxation

Proposed 
Dividend

% of 
shareholding

1. T.V. Today 
Network 

(Business) 
Limited

N.A. N.A. Rs. 
1,500,000

Rs. 
440,554

Rs. 
2,128,166

Rs. 
187,612

N.A. NIL Rs. 
72,907

Rs. 54,491 Rs. 
18,416

N.A. 100%

Part B: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures.
Not Applicable as the Company doesn’t have any Associate Company or Joint Venture  

sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 	
Dinesh Bhatia	 Dr. Puneet Jain	 Ashok Kapur 	 Aroon Purie
Chief Financial Officer	 Head - Legal and Compliances,	 Director 	 Chairman and
DIN: 01604681	 Company Secretary and	 DIN: 00003577	 Managing Director 
B-8/6018, Vasant Kunj, New Delhi	 Vice President - Internal Audit	 B-5, Chirag Enclave,	 DIN: 00002794
	 Membership No. F7158	 New Delhi-110048	 6, Palam Marg,
	 H.No. 343, Sector 14, 		  Vasant Vihar,
	 Faridabad, Haryana		  New Delhi, 110057
Place: New Delhi
Date: 12th May, 2015
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Annexure- 5

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies  

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
To, 
The Members, 
T.V. Today Network Limited
(L92200DL1999PLC103001)

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by T.V. Today Network Limited 
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, 
minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by itand also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives 
during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby report 
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015, 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent based on 
the management representation letter/ confirmation, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015, 
according to the provisions of: 

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made 
thereunder; 

(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) 
and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 
Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 
rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment 
and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed 
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

(a) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

(c) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2009;

(d) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee 
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (not 

applicable)

(f) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars 
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client; 

(g) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting 
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (not applicable)

and 

(h) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback 
of Securities) Regulations, 1998;(not applicable)

(vi)	 We have relied on the representation made by the 
Company and its officers for system and mechanism 
framed by the Company for compliances under other 
the following applicable Act, Laws & Regulations to the 
Company:

a)	 Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act, 1952 

b)	 Provisions of Employee State Insurance Act, 1948;

c)	 Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923, 

d)	 Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

e)	 all other allied labour laws;

f)	 The Indian Telegraph Act, 1885;
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g)	 Up Linking Guidelines for news and current affairs 
issued by the Ministry of Information & Broadcasting, 
Government of India;

h)	 Cable Television Networks (Regulations) Act 1995 
and rules made thereunder

i)	 Custom Act 1962;

j)	 Income Tax Act 1961;

k)	 Central Sales Tax Act, 1956; 

l)	 Delhi Value Added Tax Act, 2004;

m)	 Service Tax under Finance Act, 1994;

n)	 Wealth Tax Act, 1957;

o)	 Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 and Rules made 
thereunder;

p)	 Cable Table Television Networks (Regulation) Act, 
1995;

q)	 The Cable Television Networks Rules, 1994;

r)	 The  Cigarettes and Other Tobacco Products 
(Prohibition of Advertisement and Regulation of 
Trade and Commerce, Production, Supply and 
Distribution) Act, 2003;

s)	 Cinematography Act, 1952;

t)	 Standards laid down by the Advertising Standards 
Council of India (ASCI);

u)	 Guidelines/ policies issued by Ministry of Information 
& Broadcasting, Government of India for regulation 
of FM radio;

v)	 Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013;

w)	 Building rules and regulation as applicable in 
NOIDA;

x)	 Fire and safety guidelines / Measures
I/we have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following: 

(i) 	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

(not notified hence not applicable to the Company)

(ii) 	 The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company 
with the Stock Exchange(s), if applicable;

During the period under review, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted 
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 
the period under review were carried out in compliance with 
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting 
members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period the Company 
has no events having a major bearing on the company’s 
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

For PI & Associates,

Practicing Company Secretaries

	 Sd/-
	 Sakshi Seth

	 Partner

Date: 12.05.2015	 ACS No.:20740 	

Place: New Delhi 	 CP No.:8050
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND 
ANALYSIS Report
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

The year 2014 has been a turning point for the media and 
entertainment industry in India in many ways. The Indian 
market is poised to grow at a Compound Annual Growth Rate 
(CAGR) of 13.9 per cent, to grow from INR 102600 crore in 
2014 to reach INR 196400 crore by 2019, a growth rate that 
is almost double that of the global media and entertainment 
industry. 
The growth in popularity of digital media continued to surge 
in 2014 with a significant growth in digital advertising of 44.5 
per cent over 2013. At the same time, traditional media also 
continued to exhibit healthy growth rates, with the television 
sector continuing on its path of cable digitization, advertising 
across media buoyed up by general election spends, and the 
emergence of e-commerce as a significant new category. 
The Ministry of Information & Broadcasting , Government of 
India (‘MIB’) has extended the deadlines for Phase III and IV of 
Digital Addressable System (DAS) implementation from the 
earlier combined deadline of December 2014 to December 
2015 and December 2016, respectively. The deadline 
extension is expected to provide enough time for Multiple 
System Operators (‘MSOs’) and Local Cable Operators 
(‘LCOs’) to work on set top box (STB) procurement, setting 
up digital headends where required, fixing agreements with 
broadcasters, implementing channel packages, and getting 
the logistics in place for rolling out the implementation of STB.
Advertising revenues in 2014 grew at a growth rate of 14.2 
per cent over 2013, to reach INR 41400 crore, of which print 
(43 per cent) and television (37 per cent) captured the lion’s 
share. 
With proposals to defer the General Anti Avoidance Rules 
(GAAR), reduce tax on royalties and fees for technical 
services (FTS) and to implement the Goods and Service 
Tax (GST) regime from 1 April 2016, the Finance Act 2015 
has set an optimistic roadmap for the M&E sector from a 
tax perspective. The implementation of GST is expected to 
greatly benefit the industry in the form of reduction of tax cost, 
doing away with dual taxation (i.e. levy of service tax as well 
as VAT on certain transactions, subsuming entertainment 
tax, etc.) 
2014 was also an important year for the radio industry as 
the government started proceedings on the much delayed 
and highly anticipated phase III auctions. Although the final 
auctions will take place probably in the latter half of 2015, 
the Government has given its nod to the partial auctions for 
135 channels in 69 cities. The commencement on Phase 
III provided the required fillip to the industry which hopes to 
revive its fortune with these new developments.
SEGMENT–WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE

TELEVISION

The television industry in India is estimated at INR 47500 
crore in 2014, and is expected to grow at a CAGR of 15.5 per 

cent to reach INR 97500 crore in 2019. Subscription revenue 
growth at an annualized growth rate of 16 per cent is expected 
to outpace the advertising revenue annualized revenue 
growth of 14 per cent, on account of improving monetization 
due to digitization. Television advertising bounced back 
significantly on account of elections and improved macro-
economic environment leading to companies increasing their 
ad spends.
The break-up of the channel aggregators as a result of the 
disaggregation regulation issued by Telecom Regulatory 
Authority of India (TRAI) has not significantly impacted the 
larger broadcasters but is likely to affect the smaller and 
niche broadcasters more. In 2015, key things to watch will be 
the ability of MSOs to enforce channel packaging in Phase I 
and II cities and rollout of STB in phase III areas.
Paid Cable and Satellite (C&S) penetration of TV households 
expected to increase to 90 per cent by 2019. The number 
of TV households in India has increased to 16.8 crore in 
2014, implying a TV penetration of 61 per cent of the total 
population of the country. The number of C&S subscribers 
increased by 1 crore in 2014, to reach 14.9 crore. The paid 
C&S subscriber base is expected to grow to 17.5 crore by 
2019, representing 90 per cent of TV households. 
DISTRIBUTION & IMPACT ON BROADCASTERS

Though digitisation of C&S households crossed the 50 per 
cent mark in 2013, implementation challenges remain in 
achieving improvement in addressability and consequent 
increase in monetisation. While the rollout of digital STBs 
slowed down in 2014, MSOs have focussed on improving 
their business model in phase I and II cities. Digitisation 
has changed the role of MSOs from being a Business to 
Business (‘B2B’) service provider to a Business to Customer 
(‘B2C’) service provider and it is taking time for MSOs to 
build internal processes to reflect this change in business 
model. This, coupled with continuing resistance from LCOs, 
has resulted in delays in implementation of gross billing and 
rollout of channel packages in phase I and II cities. 
MIB has extended the deadlines for phases III and IV 
of Digital Addressable System (DAS) implementation to 
31  December 2015 and 31 December 2016, respectively. 
DAS rollout in phases III and IV is expected to be more 
challenging on account of the larger geographical spread, 
funding requirements and low potential for Average Revenue 
Per User (‘ARPUs.’) DTH is expected to take the larger 
share of analog subscribers in phases III and IV than they 
did in phases I and II given the advantage of DTH in sparsely 
populated areas and also due to their finances being healthier 
than those of MSOs. We expect a delay of 12 months in the 
rollout of STBs in phases III and IV each and expect rollout 
in phase IV to be largely complete by December 2017. The 
benefits of digitization in these phases in terms of improved 
addressability and ARPU is expected to take much longer. 
Even though there is push from the government to roll 
out domestically manufactured STBs in phases III and 
IV, according to industry discussions this may be difficult 
to achieve because of several reasons - i) Domestic STB 
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manufacturing facilities may not be able to scale up in such 
a short period of time, ii) The foreign STB manufacturers 
provide vendor financing which is critical for MSOs, iii) The 
quality of imported STBs is superior in most cases, and 
iv) There are no incentives from the government to use 
domestically manufactured STBs.
Another emerging trend is that the LCOs in phase III and 
IV areas are uniting to form cooperatives so that they can 
combine their finances and digitise on their own, without 
being backed by a MSO.
In February 2014, TRAI passed a regulation according to 
which only broadcasters could enter into interconnection 
agreements with Distribution Platform Owners (DPOs) such 
as MSOs and DTH operators. Broadcasters could continue 
to use channel aggregators as agents and in case an 
agent acts as an authorised agent of multiple broadcasters, 
such an agent could not bundle channels or bouquets of 
multiple broadcasters. This led to most of the major channel 
aggregators breaking up, since most contracts had to be 
re-negotiated and allocation of subscription revenues to 
different broadcasters became challenging.
Carriage fees- Going forward, carriage fees for existing 
channels is expected to remain stable over the next 2 to 
3 years, while the increasing number of channels being 
carried by each MSOs is expected to result in carriage 
fee continuing to increase by 10 to 15 per cent for MSOs. 
Industry participants expect that the MSOs will have to 
start receiving higher subscription revenues, thus reducing 
their dependence on carriage, before expecting any further 
reasonable decline in carriage fees per channel.
Broadcasting Revenue- Advertising

The total TV advertising market is estimated to have grown 
at 14 per cent in 2014 to INR 15500 crore, higher than the 
12 per cent projected in our report last year. Going forward, 
television advertising in India is expected to grow at a CAGR 
of 14 per cent over 2014 to 19, to reach INR 29900 crore.
The first couple of months of 2014 continued to be affected 
by the slow economic growth and muted ad spending. 
However, the general elections and state elections in 8 
states, including key states such as Maharashtra and Andhra 
Pradesh, acted as fuel for TV advertising. Following the 
general elections, a stable central government and falling oil 
and food prices resulted in positively changed consumer and 
business sentiments. As per industry discussions, elections 
are expected to have contributed INR 400 crore to TV ad 
revenues in 2014, excluding which TV advertising grew 11 
per cent on a like to- like basis.
Update on ad cap regulation- TRAI had passed a regulation 
in March 2013 that restricted advertisements to 12 minutes 
per hour, allowed for advertisements only during breaks of 
live sporting events, prohibited partial advertisements and 
required broadcasters to submit details of advertisements 
carried on their channels in a specified format to TRAI. This 
had left the industry divided. While several Hindi entertainment 
channels implemented the rule, the News Broadcasters 
Association (NBA), independent music channels and several 

regional broadcasters appealed against the TRAI’ order in 
the Delhi High Court. The Delhi High Court passed an interim 
order prohibiting TRAI from taking any coercive action against 
channels not following the ad-cap regulations and the case 
is expected to be heard in the Hon’ble Delhi High Court next 
on 23rd July 2015. In the mean time, the new I&B minister, 
Shri. Arun Jaitley, has commented that the government is not 
inclined to interfere in the content or the business of media 
entities, and that the government is not in favour of a cap on 
advertising for TV or print media.
In 2014, subscription revenues for broadcasters is estimated 
to have grown at only 10 per cent to INR 7500 crore, which 
was significantly lower than expectations. Going forward, 
subscription revenue is expected to grow at a CAGR of 22 
per cent from 2014 to 2019 to INR 20100 crore. Increase in 
the declared subscriber base and increase in revenue share 
of broadcasters in the subscription pie is expected to drive up 
the share of subscription to total broadcaster revenue from 
33 per cent in 2014 to 40 percent in 2019.
News genre- 2014 turned out to be a great year for the news 
genre with the general and state elections providing a boost 
in the first half of the year. Growth in second half of the year 
continued, driven by the positive outlook created by a stable 
government and companies in FMCG, Auto and the BFSI 
sectors increasing their ad spend. Unlike entertainment 
channels, the news genre did not see as much of a positive 
impact from increased ad spending by the e-commerce 
sector. After almost three years of no significant change in 
effective ad rates, the News genre saw effective ad rates 
increasing by 20 to 25 per cent during the year due to the 
elections. The regional news genre has outperformed 
national news over the last 3 years and this trend continued 
in 2014, driven by the national elections as well as state-level 
elections in Maharashtra, Andhra Pradesh and Haryana. 
Though 2014 was an excellent year for the News genre, 
challenges persist for News broadcasters due to hyper 
competition, not enough decline in carriage fees and low 
opportunity for subscription revenues. Apart from the top 2 
to 3 channels there is hardly any differentiation, as a result of 
which ratings are strongly linked to availability of channels and 
hence the amount of carriage costs incurred. With carriage 
fees for existing channels expected to remain stable or go up 
slightly in the short term, profitability of news broadcasters 
can remain under duress. Given the fragmented nature of 
the news industry coupled with increasing cost pressures the 
News genre appears ripe for consolidation. However, industry 
experts believe that there is limited scope for consolidation in 
the short term, as non-economic factors play an important 
role in the industry.
OTHER DEVELEOPMENTS: Other themes in 2015 and going 
forward-Upcoming regulations that can impact the industry
Commercial establishments

As per the amendment to the 2004 broadcasting and cable TV 
tariff order made by TRAI in July 2014, broadcasters cannot 
charge differential rates to commercial subscribers which do 
not specifically charge customers on account of showing TV 

TV Today 1(1-49).indd.indd   28 7/20/2015   6:33:32 PM



T.V. Today Network Limited

	 ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15	 29

programmes. Instead broadcasters should charge them on 
a per television basis like an ordinary subscriber. However, 
in cases in which commercial establishments specifically 
charge extra to its clients or visitors on account of viewing of 
channels at its premises, the tariff would be as mutually agreed 
between the broadcaster and the commercial subscriber. 
The amendment also directs that commercial subscribers 
cannot obtain television service from broadcasters directly 
and have to do so only from a distribution platform such as 
MSO or DTH operator.
The TV broadcasters did not respond well to these amendments 
since at present they charge commercial establishments with 
a high premium. The Indian Broadcasting Federation (IBF) 
appealed against the order with TDSAT and the case is still 
pending. While revenues from commercial establishments is 
still undermonetised, it is said to contribute 2.7 per cent of the 
overall subscription revenues of broadcasters. 
New TV audience measurement system from Broadcast 
Audience Research Council (BARC) to be rolled out in 
April-The TV audience measurement system from BARC,78 
proposed as an alternative to the current system being 
operated by TAM India, is likely to be rolled out in April 
2015. There were several reasons for the delay from the 
earlier launch date of October 2014 are i) the scale of the 
set-up, ii) technological re-checks to assure completeness 
to the process and results, iii) data availability issues, iv) 
cost and v) avoiding plausible anomalies like IRS data 2013 
had to face. BARC intends to start operations with 20,000 
peoplemeters, which is expected to be increased to 50,000 
over the next few years. In the first batch 70 per cent of the 
meters will be in urban markets, and 30 per cent will be in 
rural markets. Inclusion of markets such as rural India, North 
East and Jammu and Kashmir in the measurement for the 
first time and increase in number of households measured, 
could impact the ratings significantly in some genres. While 
this would mean broadcasters will be able to monetise on the 
viewership in previously untapped markets, it could also lead 
to reshuffling in current rankings of channels.
DIGITAL MEDIA

The growth in popularity of the new/digital media continued 
its steady run in 2014. The advent of 4G services, healthy 
growth in number of 3G subscribers, continued adoption 
of 2G by masses in the hinterland and concerted efforts by 
various digital ecosystem players under the Digital India 
Programme have played a major role to make this possible. 
Digital ad spends accounted for 10.5 per cent of the total ad 
spends of INR 41400 crore in India in 2014. Digital media 
advertising in India grew around 45 per cent in 2014, and 
continues to grow at a faster rate than any other ad category.
The digital advertising industry grew from INR 3010 crore in 
2013 to INR 4350 crore in 2014, a growth of around 45 per 
cent, driven by a steady growth in ad spends across most 
digital platforms. It is projected that the share of digital ad 
spends is going to be around 20 per cent of the total media 
ad spending in India by 2019 and mobile ad spends will 
contribute around 3 per cent of the total media spend.

RADIO

What seemed like a year lost due to further delays in phase III 
auctions, ended with a phenomenal growth of 17.6 percent. 
This growth exceeded our earlier estimate and catapulted the 
industry size in 2014 to INR 1720 crore. The radio industry 
showed one of the highest growth rates amongst other 
traditional media segments, and this too, without phase III.
The issue of migration for existing operators from phase II 
to phase III was also potentially resolved, by extending the 
deadline for migration to 31 March 2015 after the partial phase 
III auctions, the price of which would also form the basis of 
the migration fees. Though some key contentious issues of 
exorbitant reserve prices for the auctions, the 15 per cent limit 
on the total number of frequencies that an entity may hold, as 
well as dearth of new frequencies in the larger markets of A and 
A+ cities remain, the commencement on phase III provided the 
required fillip to the industry and reach its full potential.
Allowing news bulletins in private FM channels, fed directly 
from Prasar Bharti, would provide the necessary impetus 
to the industry. The Hon’ble Minister for Information and 
Broadcasting also suggested independent news content 
to be permitted in future course of time. With the launch of 
phase III as well as resolution of the minimum spacing issue, 
it is expected that radio will significantly expand its presence 
in cities with existing licenses as well as enter new towns.
Phase-III offers exciting opportunities for companies to 
expand – both into new cities and within cities with a second 
and even third frequency in the existing large markets. With 
economic activity increasing in smaller towns, operators have 
a positive outlook for these markets. Phase III is going to be a 
game changer for the industry as the medium will enter newer 
geographies enabling players to tap new audience segments.
Major implications

Geographical expansion-With phase III, industry will see 
FM radio increase its reach to 85 per cent of the Indian 
territory. It is expected to result in the creation of stronger 
regional networks.
Radio’s share in the M&E Ad Pie-Phase III will see large 
players as well as smaller players looking for expansion in 
Tier 2 and Tier 3 regions. The small operators operating 
standalone FM channels have a strong understanding of the 
local markets and advertisers. Local advertisers would want 
to use radio as a cost effective medium ensuring increase in 
radio’s share in the advertising mix in these areas. 
Inventory utilization and rates- Inventory utilization 
of existing stations in metros is estimated to be largely 
unaffected by phase III. While smaller stations could see a 
slight reduction initially, they are likely to eventually stabilize. 
New towns are expected to take some time to fill their 
inventory. Due to additional inventory, rates are expected to 
decrease or stay flat.
Operating efficiency and margins- Industry experts 
believe that the operating efficiency and margins are likely 
to improve with the implementation of phase III. This would 
be mainly attributed to the improved utilisation rates as well 
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as expected reduction in the cost of operations from sharing 
of common infrastructure for stations across several cities.
Mergers and acquisitions- The year 2014 and early 2015 
saw two big deals happen in the radio space. First was the 
acquisition of Radio City by the Jagran Prakashan Group 
and the second was ENIL’s acquisition of TV Today group’s 
Oye FM. Oye FM operates in 7 cities and probably fits 
into ENIL’s expansion plan under Phase –III. Although, as 
already mentioned the clause of minimum lock-in period of 3 
years could prove detrimental to the prospect of M&A in the 
radio industry as companies are not allowed to change their 
ownership pattern during this period.
Copyright Board

Pursuant to the Copyright Amendments on June 21, 2012, the 
erstwhile Copyright Board was dissolved in order to reconstitute 
the same as per the amended provisions of the new Copyright 
Act. It is unfortunate that almost 2 years have elapsed and till 
date the Copyright Board has not been reconstituted. Hence, 
this unreasonable delay in reconstitution of the Copyright Board 
has led to the unnecessary delay in adjudication of the long 
pending issues. The Copyright Rules envisages publication of 
Tariffs that would be payable by a person for exploitation of 
the content. The landmark judgment dated August 25, 2010 
passed by the old Copyright Board specified that the royalty 
rate be fixed at 1 per cent of the Net Revenue. However, due 
to the non-functioning of the Copyright Board, the tariffs have 
not been published. The amendments have introduced a new 
right in favor of broadcasters i.e. “Statutory License”, which 
applies to all broadcasters. It is pertinent to mention that though 
the Copyright Rules have been framed in 2013, till date the 
procedural aspects of availing the benefits of statutory licensing 
by the radio broadcasters still remains to be framed.
Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in the Radio sector is 
currently capped at 26 per cent which the industry believes 
is a major hindrance for the growth of the industry. TRAI’s 
recommendation of increasing the limit to 49 per cent was in 
coherence with the suggestion of the Finance ministry Panel. 
The approval would not only entail infusion of capital but will also 
facilitate transfer of technology, strengthening infrastructure, 
raising productivity, enhancing competitiveness etc
Deal Activities-

Television-The television segment, one of the largest 
segments in the media and entertainment industry, did not 
see much deal activity in 2014, in terms of volume. However, 
this segment constituted 79 per cent of deal activity in terms 
of value. This is primarily because Reliance Industries Limited 
(RIL), through Independent Media Trust, acquired control of 
Network18 Media & Investments Ltd. and its subsidiary TV18 
Broadcast Ltd. The transaction will enable RIL’s Jio Infocomm 
to get access to broadcast, digital and e-commerce content 
for its 4G mobile data services platform.
Radio- Large, national level radio operators are gearing up for 
the much awaited phase III auctions. The third phase of FM 
expansion is looking to expand the scope of the airwaves to 
more than 800 stations and nearly 300 cities. Additionally, FM 

radio channels will be allowed to carry news bulletins of All India 
Radio in unchanged form. Moreover, TRAI has recommended 
increasing FDI limit for FM radio services to 49 per cent. Many 
players are expected to enter new markets through M&A rather 
than going through the auction process. This is likely since the 
cost of setting up and running a station, as well as getting the 
required licenses is high for smaller players in India. 
Tax and Regulatory Concerns:

Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) on various payments by TV 
channel companies Television broadcasting companies make 
significant payments to software production houses towards 
production of TV programs. They also pay placement/carriage 
fees to DTH operators, multi system operators and various 
cable operators towards placement/carriage of the channels. 
The channel companies are of the view that such payments 
attract TDS under Section194C of the IT Act at the rate of 
2 per cent. However, the tax authorities contend that such 
payments are liable for TDS at 10 per cent on the ground that 
the payments are towards technical services/’royalty’. This 
has resulted in protracted litigation. A suitable clarification by 
the Central Government to the effect that tax needs to be 
deducted on the above payments at the rate of 2 per cent 
and not at the rate of 10 per cent is much needed to put the 
above controversy to rest.
Discount given to advertising agencies by broadcasters-
Generally, advertising agencies purchase advertisement 
airtime from broadcasters for placement of advertisements of 
their clients on the television channels of the broadcasters. As 
a customary practice followed by the broadcasting industry, 
the invoice raised by them on advertising agencies reflected 
standard commission (i.e. discount) of 15 per cent. The tax 
authorities have been contending that such discount is in 
the nature of ‘commission or brokerage’ paid by television 
channels to advertising agencies and accordingly, is liable to 
withholding tax at 10 per cent under Section 194H of the IT Act. 
However, taxpayers believe that the aforesaid discount given 
to advertising agencies is not in the nature of ‘commission or 
brokerage’ and hence, not liable for TDS under Section 194H 
of the IT Act. The above controversy has resulted in protracted 
litigation on the matter. It is imperative that the government 
issues a clarification on the matter to avoid this litigation.
Taxation of Transponder charges- Broadcasting companies 
make payments for-transponder charges to the satellite 
companies for transmission of their TV signals. The tax 
authorities contend that payments made towards transponder 
charges are in the nature of ‘royalty’. However, in the case 
of Asia Satellite Telecommunications Co. Ltd. (Asia Sat), 
the Delhi High Court has held that such payments do not 
constitute ‘royalty’ and are not liable to tax in India.
With a view to override the above decision, the definition of 
‘royalty’ under the IT Act was amended vide the Finance Act, 
2012, to bring within its ambit payments made for transmission 
of signals by satellite. The Delhi High Court in the case of TV 
Today Network Limited affirmed the taxability of payments 
towards transponder charges as ‘royalty’ under the IT Act, in 
view of the retrospectively amended definition of ‘royalty’.
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However, non-resident taxpayers can continue to take the 
benefit of tax treaties entered into with India to contend 
that such payment is not in the nature of ‘royalty’ under the 
tax treaty and hence, not liable to tax in India. Having said 
that, one needs to be mindful of the decision of the Mumbai 
Tribunal in the case of Viacom 18 Media (P.) Ltd. wherein it 
was held that post the retrospective amendment in the IT 
Act, payments for transponder hire charges are taxable as 
‘royalty’ even under the tax treaty.
Radio Industry

Key tax issues

•	 Deductibility of License fees-Radio broadcasters are 
required to pay license fees (one time entry fee and 
recurring annual fees) to the Central Government as 
per license terms. The issue that has arisen is whether 
such fees are in the nature of revenue expenditure to 
be claimed as deduction in the year in which they are 
incurred or are in the nature of capital expenditure, 
entitled to depreciation. Since the annual license fee is 
payable for each year of operation, it could be allowed 
as revenue expenditure. Further, the one time entry fee 
could be allowable as a deduction over the period of 
license. However, another view is that the payment for 
the one time entry fee could be treated towards license 
acquisition, specifically covered as an intangible asset, 
eligible for depreciation at the rate of 25 per cent. This 
has resulted in dispute between the taxpayer and the 
tax authorities. The government could issue a Circular 
or clarification on this aspect so as to avoid protracted 
litigation.

•	 Service tax on sale of advertisements- From a 
service tax perspective, selling space or time slots for 
advertisements other than advertisements broadcast on 
radio or television was exempt from the levy of service 
tax by way of an entry in the negative list. However, the 
said entry has been amended with effect from 1 October 
2014 by the Finance Act 2014 to include only ‘selling 
of space for advertisements in print media’. Thus, the 
sale of space or timeslots on radio continues to remain 
liable to service tax in spite of the fact that radio is a cost-
free and easy medium of mass communication even to 
the illiterate population unlike print media. Therefore, 
the industry is of the view that, the aforesaid benefit of 
exclusion from the levy of service tax which is granted 
to print media but not to radio industry, is an unfair 
treatment to the radio industry. The government may 
consider extending the benefit to the radio industry as 
well.’

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

OUTLOOK

TV Today Network Limited has shown considerable growth 
this year and the TV News channels from your company - 
Aaj  Tak, India Today Television, Tez and Dilli Aaj Tak have 
all shown growth in  market share, reach and the credibility 
they enjoy with the audience. The leadership position of Aaj 
Tak as the No.1 news channel for the 14th consecutive year 

has contributed to the growth in advertising revenue. Aaj Tak 
has maintained its Leadership among Hindi News Channels 
in the New Audience Measurement System BARC also with 
a Market Share of 16.4% (CS 15+ NCCS All, HSM, Wk 
 21-25’15).
This year your company has launched India Today Television, 
a 24 hr English News channel that is built on the 40 year 
legacy of the India Today Gold Standard of journalism. India 
Today Television has already become the No. 2 Channel with 
a Market Share of 24.2% (Source: BARC, CS 22+ M NCCS 
AB 6 Megacities, Wk 21-25’15). The channel was also # 1 
on Wk 22’15 and had the highest coverage among English 
News channels over 5 consecutive Weeks (CS 15+ NCCS 
AB, 6 Megacities, Wk 21-25’15). 
The Hindi News channel “Tez”  has grown tremendously on 
its new peg of ‘Boring News Khallas’ and has already left 
behind a lot of established news channels like NDTV India, 
IBN 7 and News 24.  The Delhi focused channel from your 
company - “Dilli Aaj Tak” is also delivering good ratings with a 
market share in Delhi of 4.2% (CS 15+ NCCS All, Delhi, Wk 
21-25’15). With the contribution made by the channels, TV 
Today Network was ranked as the No. 1 News Network on 
15+ All India 1 Lac+ over Wk 21-25’15 period (Source: BARC 
Rating System).
All channels have contributed to the revenue growth of 
the Company in the financial year ended 2015 and all the 
brands are expected to further contribute for the Company 
in the coming years. Your Company is constantly investing 
in content as well as marketing & distribution on the basis of 
detailed research in order to achieve better ratings.
Advertising revenues have grown in 2014 led by election 
related advertising and the improved macro-economic 
outlook. The new rating currency of BARC Rating System 
has ranked Aaj Tak, India Today Television, Tez and Dilli Aaj 
Tak at very positive ratings. The robust ratings are expected 
to drive your company towards more growth in the coming 
times.  
As per industry estimates, subscription revenues are expected 
to see a growth over a period of time, your Company is 
expected to benefit from increased subscription revenue with 
the Industry through more transparency and addressable 
reporting of subscription revenues. Your company’s focus 
towards digital and new media is geared for substantial 
revenue growth.
RISK AND CONCERNS

A.	 Television

	 Issues of MSO’s and LCO’s

	 The larger MSOs are increasingly depending on 
technology to improve addressability and collections. 
Even though customer-level addressability remains a 
challenge, MSOs are implementing systems to track 
addressable active STBs and collection at LCO level. 
There have been several differences between LCOs and 
MSOs overbilling responsibility, ownership of customers 
and revenue share formula. However, there is increasing 
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acceptance among the MSOs that LCOs are integral to 
their operations and among the LCOs that they do not 
have access to funding. 

	 Competition leading to increasing content and 
distribution cost

	 In the current scenario, broadcasters are vying for a 
share of viewer eye balls, in order to chase and spends. 
Fragmentation of viewership ratings and excess capacity 
are forcing players to incur high marketing, content and 
distribution costs in order to stay competitive.

	 Measurements systems

	 The TV audience measurement system from BARC 
proposed as an alternative to the current system has 
been rolled out this year. Currently, the BARC team is in 
the process of conducting roadshows with broadcasters 
and media agencies to explain the workings of the new 
ratings system while making the new ratings system 
available to some broadcasters on a pilot basis. While 
this would mean broadcasters will be able to monetise on 
the viewership in previously untapped markets, it could 
also lead to reshuffling in current rankings of channels. 
As the industry gears up for the launch of the new ratings 
system some participants are also anxious around the 
coexistence of two rating systems since in any market 
only a single currency can exist.

	 FM Radio

	 The Board on February 6, 2015 approved the sale 
of Radio FM Business (seven radio stations) of the 
Company subject to regulatory approvals and authorised 
a Committee of Senior Officials to negotiate and execute 
requisite documents with potential buyers. On February 
16, 2015, an application was filed with the Ministry 
of Information and Broadcasting (“MIB”) seeking its 
approval for the sale of Radio FM Business to ENIL. 
Since there was no response from the MIB on the 
application filed by the Company, the Company filed a 
writ petition in the Delhi High Court to expedite the matter. 
On April 20, 2015, the Court directed the MIB to decide 
the Company’s application within two weeks. MIB by its 
order dated May 1, 2015 denied approval to the sale of 
Radio FM Business on the ground that the proposed sale 
was not in conformity with the FM Radio Guidelines.

	 The Committee has further decided to challenge the 
above referred MIB order with the Delhi High Court.

	 Another area of concern is the amendment to the 
Copyright Act, which have introduced a new right in favor 
of broadcasters i.e. “Statutory License”, which applies to 
all broadcasters. It is pertinent to mention that though 
the Copyright Rules have been framed in 2013, till date the 
procedural aspects of availing the benefits of statutory 
licensing by the radio broadcasters still remains to be framed.

	I NTERNAL CONTROL AND SYSTEMS

	 Your Company has adequate internal control system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 
Your Company’s internal audit process is being handled 

by one of the top four audit firms, Ernst & Young. The 
Audit reforms initiated by the New Companies Act, 2013 
are also being implemented by your Company.

	 Your Company’s internal control is designed to:
	 •	 Safeguard the Company’s assets and to identify 

liabilities.
	 •	 Ensure the transactions are properly recorded and 

authorized.
	 •	 Ensure maintenance of proper records and processes 

that facilitates relevant and reliable information.
	 •	 Ensure compliance with applicable laws and 

regulations.
	 Further, Ernst & Young conducts extensive audits 

round the year covering each and every aspect of the 
business activity so as to ensure accuracy, reliability and 
consistency of records, systems and procedures. The 
recommendations and observations of the internal auditors 
are being reviewed regularly by the Audit Committee.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH 
RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company’s employee strength as on 31st March, 2015 
was 1073. Your Company considers human resources to be 
one of the key elements to sustain competitive advantage in 
the Media sector. Media organizations are human resource 
driven; its growth depends upon the quality contribution 
made by the people in the organization. Therefore your 
Company recognizes human resource as a key component 
for facilitating organizational growth. Your Company has 
continuously worked to create and nurture an organization 
that is highly motivated, result oriented and adaptable to the 
changing business environment.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statement made in this report describing the Company’s 
objective, expectations and predictions may be forward looking 
statement within the meaning of applicable securities laws and 
regulations. These statements and expectations envisaged by 
the management are only estimates and actual results may 
differ from such expectations due to known and unknown 
risks, uncertainties and other factors including, but not limited to, 
changes in economic conditions, government policies, technology 
changes and exposure to market risks and other external and 
internal factors, which are beyond the control of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

	 Aroon Purie
	 Chairman & Managing Director
	 DIN: 00002794
	 Address: 6, Palam Marg,
Place: New Delhi	 Vasant Vihar, New Delhi,
Date: 12th May, 2015	 110057
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.	 Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance:

	 Corporate Governance is an insight into the management of affairs of the Company. It implies governance with the highest 
standards of professionalism, integrity, accountability, fairness, transparency, social responsiveness and business ethics 
for efficient and ethical conduct of business. Company is committed to and firmly believes in, following good corporate 
governance practices, as they are critical for meeting its obligations towards shareholders and other stakeholders. Our 
Corporate Governance framework ensures effective engagement with our stakeholders and helps us evolve the changing 
times.

	 Corporate Governance encompasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company’s affairs are being 
managed in a manner which ensures accountability, transparency and fairness in all transactions in the widest sense. 
For us, Corporate Governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values aimed at enhancing an 
organization’s brand and reputation.

	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) amended the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock 
Exchanges,effective on October 1, 2014, to bring in additional corporate governance norms for listed entities and provide 
for stricter disclosures and protection of investor rights, including equitable treatment for minority shareholders. 

	 We believe that an active, well-informed and independent Board is necessary to ensure the highest standards of Corporate 
Governance. We firmly believe that Board independence is essential to bring objectivity and transparency in the management 
and in the dealings of the Company. As on March 31, 2015, the Board consists of 6 members out of which 3 members are 
Independent Directors.

	 Over the years, we have strengthened governance practices. These practices define the way in which business is conducted 
and value is generated. Stakeholders’ interest taken into account, before making any business decision.

2.	 Board of Directors:

	 Composition:

	 The Company’s Board of Directors (“the Board”) is the guardian of fairness, transparency and accountability and provides 
appropriate directions with regard to leadership, vision, strategy, policies, monitoring, supervision and accountability to 
shareholders and to achieve greater levels of performance on a sustained basis as well as adherence to the best practices 
of Corporate Governance. The Board also provides directions and exercises appropriate control to ensure that the Company 
fulfills stakeholders’ aspirations and societal expectations.

	 a.	 Composition of Board of Directors of the Company and their Directorship(s)/ Committee Membership(s)/
Chairmanship(s), number of meetings held and attended by them etc. during the financial year ended March 
31, 2015 are provided below: 

Name of the 
Director

Category Board  
Meetings 

held during 
the F.Y. 
2014-15

Board 
Meetings 
attended 

during the 
F.Y. 2014-15

Whether 
last AGM 
attended

Director-
ships in 

other public 
limited  

companies

No. of Memberships/ 
Chairmanships of other 

Board Committees
Membership Chairmanship

Mr. Aroon 
Purie

(Promoter)- 
Chairman & 
Managing 
Director

4 4 Yes 5 NIL NIL

Ms. Koel 
Purie 
Rinchet*

Non – Executive 
Director

4 3 No 1 NIL NIL

Mr. Anil Vig Independent 
Director

4 3 No NIL NIL NIL

Mr. Rajeev 
Thakore

Independent 
Director

4 4 Yes 3 3 3

Mr. Ashok 
Kapur 

Independent 
Director

4 3 Yes 3 NIL NIL

Mr. Devajyoti 
Bhattacharya

Non- Executive 
Director

4 2 No 1 1 NIL

		  *Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet has resigned as Whole Time Director w.e.f. June 27, 2015 and thereafter she continues to hold 
the position of Non-Executive Director on the Board of the Company.
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	 b.	 Number of Board meetings -

		  During the financial year ended March 31, 2015, the Board met four times on May 12, 2014 - meeting adjourned to May 
14, 2014, August 01, 2014, November 10, 2014 and February 06, 2015. 

	 Notes:

	 1.	 None of the directors is a member in more than ten Board Committees or a chairman of more than five Committees as 
required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

	 2.	 For the purposes of the membership in the committee Chairmanship/membership of Audit Committee and the 
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is considered.

	 3.	 The Directorship/Membership of Committee(s) of Director, excludes their directorship of Committee(s) in T.V. Today 
Network Limited.

	 4.	 Mr. Aroon Purie is the father of Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet. No other Director is related to any other Director in terms of the 
definition of relative given in the Companies Act, 2013.

	 c.	 Code of Conduct

		  The Board had laid down a revised code of conduct for all the Board members and senior management personnel of the 
Company as per the revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges which is also 
posted on the web-site of the Company (www.aajtak.intoday.in).

		  All Board members and senior management personnel to whom the code of conduct is applicable have affirmed 
compliance with the code for the financial year 2014-15.

		  A declaration signed by the Chairman & Managing Director to this effect is attached as Annexure-6 to the Corporate 
Governance Report. 

3.	 Committees of the Board

	 I.	 Audit Committee:

		  i.	 Brief description of terms of reference:

			   The terms of reference of the Audit Committee including its role & powers are as specified in 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and also in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, as amended from time to time, Terms of reference of the 
Audit Committee, inter alia, includes the following:

			   1.	 The recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;
			   2.	 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
			   3.	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 
			   4.	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
			   5.	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;
			   6.	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
			   7.	 Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters. 
			   8.	 Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 

that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible. 
			   9.	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before 

submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 
				    a.	 Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 

report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 
				    b.	 Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 
				    c.	 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 
				    d.	 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 
				    e.	 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 
				    f.	 Disclosure of any related party transactions. 
				    g.	 Qualifications in the draft audit report. 
			   10.	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements, annual financial statements and auditors’ 

report thereon before submission to the board for approval; 
			   11.	 Review of Management Discussion & Analysis of Financial conditions & results of operations; 
			   12.	 Review of management letters/ letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors; 
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			   13.	 The Audit Committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems, the scope of 
audit, including the observations of the auditors and review of financial statement before their submission to the 
Board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal and statutory auditors and the management of 
the Company; 

			   14.	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 
			   15.	 Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 

control systems;
			   16.	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 

post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.
			   17.	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, 

staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of 
internal audit;

			   18.	 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon; 
			   19.	 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 
matter to the board; 

			   20.	 Review of internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;
			   21.	 The Appointment, removal & terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be subject to review by 

the Audit Committee. 
			   22.	 The Audit Committee shall have authority to investigate into any matter in relation to the items specified above 

or referred to it by Board and for this purpose shall have power to obtain professional advice from external 
sources and have full access to information contained in the records of the Company; 

			   23.	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public 
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated 
in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the 
utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take 
up steps in this matter;

			   24.	 To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

			   25.	 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism. 
			   26.	 To review the financial statements, in particular, the investments made by the unlisted subsidiary company. 
		  ii.	 Composition, name of members and Chairperson:

			   The Audit Committee has been constituted as per the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and comprises of Mr. Ashok Kapur as Chairman and Mr. Rajeev Thakore and 
Mr. Anil Vig, as its members. All the members of the Committee including the Chairman are Independent Directors. 
The composition of the Committees is in conformity with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the 
Stock Exchanges. 

			   All members of the Committee are financially literate. Mr. Rajeev Thakore is a financial expert. The Company 
Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

		  iii.	 Meetings and attendance during the year:

			   The Audit Committee met four times during the year on May 14, 2014, August 01, 2014, November 10, 2014 and 
February 06, 2015.

			   The attendance record of the members is as follows:

Name of the Director Status No. of meetings held No. of meetings attended
Mr. Ashok Kapur Chairman 4 3
Mr. Rajeev Thakore Member 4 4
Mr. Anil Vig Member 4 2

		  iv.	R eview of information by the Audit Committee

			   The Audit Committee reviews the reports of the Internal Auditors, meets Statutory and Internal Auditors as and when 
required & discusses their findings, observations, suggestions, internal control system, scope of audit and other 
related matters. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of Internal Auditors is subject to review of the 
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee also reviews Management Discussion & Analysis of financial conditions and 
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results of operations. It also approves related party transactionsas required as per Section 188 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with rules made there underalong with Clause 49 of Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock 
Exchanges submits the same to the Board of Directors for their subsequent approval.

	 II.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

		  i.	 Brief description of terms of reference: 

			   The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (hereinafter referred as Committee) has been constituted pursuant to 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock 
Exchanges for considering the appointment, removal, fixing/ determination of remuneration of Managing Director/ 
Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel and personnel one Level below the Board of the Company and to review 
the same from time to time and for carrying out evaluation of every director’s performance.

			   Terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter alia, includes the following:
			   1.	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 

accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal 
			   2.	 Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 

recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, KMP and other employees; 
			   3.	 Formulate a familiarization programme to acquaint Directors with the Company and its business etc. 
			   4.	 Formulating the criteria for evaluation of every directors performance; 
			   5.	 Devising a policy on Board diversity; 
			   6.	 The Committee shall take into consideration and ensure the compliance of provisions of Section 196, 196 read 

with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 while appointing and fixing remuneration of Managing Directors / 
Whole-time Directors; 

			   7.	 While approving the remuneration, the Committee shall take into account financial position of the Company, 
trend in the industry, qualification, experience and past performance of the appointee; 

			   8.	 The Committee shall consider and recommend to the Board shares to be allotted to the eligible employees 
pursuant to the ESOP Scheme of the Company. Further, the Committee shall have the authority in its discretion: 

				    i.	 To determine the Exercise Price; 
				    ii.	 To select the Employees to whom Options may from time to time be granted hereunder; 
				    iii.	 To determine whether and to what extent Options are granted hereunder; 
				    iv.	 To determine the number of Shares to be covered by each Options granted hereunder; 
				    v.	 To approve forms of agreement for use under the Plan; 
				    vi.	 To determine the terms and conditions, not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, of any award granted 

hereunder; 
				    vii.	 To prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulations relating to the Plan; 
				    viii.	 To construe and interpret the terms of the Plan and Shares issued pursuant to the Plan; and 
				    ix.	 To take decisions on other matter as may be necessary for administration of this Plan. 
			   9.	 The Committee shall perform other activities as requested by the Board of Directors or to address issues 

related to any significant subject within its term of reference. 
		  ii.	 Composition, name of members and Chairperson: 

			   The Committee comprises of Mr. Ashok Kapur as Chairman and Mr. Devajyoti Bhattacharya and Mr. Anil Vig, as its 
members. Mr. Ashok Kapur the Chairman of Committee and Mr. Anil Vig are Independent Directors.

			   The Company Secretary of the Company act as the Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
		  iii.	 Attendance during the year:

Name of the Director Status No. of meetings held No. of meetings attended
Mr. Ashok Kapur Chairman 4 4
Mr. Anil Vig Member 4 3
Mr. Devajyoti Bhattacharya Member 4 2

			   Requisite quorum was present in all meetings of the Committee.
		  iv.	 Number of Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings

			   During the financial year 2014-15, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met four times i.e. 14th May, 
2014, 01st August, 2014, 10th November, 2014 and 06th February, 2015.

TV Today 1(1-49).indd.indd   36 7/20/2015   6:33:33 PM



T.V. Today Network Limited

	 ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15	 37

		  v.	R emuneration policy:

			   The Committee, pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and 
approved by the Board, has formulated a Nomination & Remuneration Policy, as mentioned below, relating to the 
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

I.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

	 As per the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, theBoard of Directors of every listed Company 
shall constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee as required by the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges and the Companies Act, 2013. 

	 This Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated are in compliance with Companies Act, 2013 read 
along with the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

II.	O BJECTIVE AND PURPOSE OF THE POLICY

	 The primary function of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its 
governance and supervisory responsibilities relating to human resource management and compensation.

	 The Key Objectives of the Policy are: 
	 a.	 To outline a framework to ensure that the Company’s remuneration levels are aligned with industry practices and are 

sufficient to attract and retain competent directors on the Board, KMPs,Senior Management Personnel and Other 
Employees of the quality required, while allowing fair rewards for the achievement of key deliverables and enhanced 
performance. The key objectives of this Policy include: 

		  i.	 Guiding the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management; 

		  ii.	 Evaluating the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary criteria for evaluation to the Board 
for further evaluation of the Board and Committees of the Board.

		  iii.	 Recommending to the Board the remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and setting forth 
a policy for determining remuneration payable to Senior Management Personnel.

		  iv.	 Remuneration of other Employees of the Company as per the internal policies of the Company
	 b.	 While determining the remuneration for the Directors and KMPs,Senior Management Personnel and other employees, 

regard should be had to prevailing market conditions, business performance and practices in comparable companies, 
also to financial and commercial health of the Company as well as prevailing laws and government/other guidelines, 
internal policies and procedures of the company, to ensure that pay structures are appropriately aligned and the levels 
of remuneration remain appropriate. 

	 c.	 The Committee may consult with the chairman of the Board as it deems appropriate. 
III.	DEFI NITIONS

	 1.	 “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company. 
	 2.	 “Company” means “T.V. Today Network Limited”.
	 3.	 “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
	 4.	 “Key Managerial Personnel” or “KMP” means Key Managerial Personnel of the Company in terms of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under. (As per Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following are whole-
time Key Managerial Personnel: 

		  i.	 Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer or the Manager and in their absence a whole- time Director; 
		  ii.	 Company Secretary; and
		  iii.	 Chief Financial Officer
	 5.	 “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” or “Committee” shall mean a Committee of Board of Directors of the 

Company, constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of 
Listing Agreement. 

	 6.	 “Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomination and Remuneration Policy.”

	 7.	 “Senior Management Personnel” for this purpose shall mean personnel of the Company who are members of its core 
management team excluding Board of Directors. It would comprise all members of management one level below the 
executive director(s), including the functional heads. 

		  Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but defined 
in the Companies Act, 2013 and/or Listing Agreement as may be amended from time to time shall have the meaning 
respectively assigned to them therein. 
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IV.	 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

	 A.	 COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

		  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall consist of at least three non-executive directors as members out of 
which atleast half shall be independent directors. The appointment and removal of the members of the Committee shall 
be as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under and as per the Listing Agreement. 

	 B.	RO LE OF THE COMMITTEE

		  1.	 Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees. 

		  2.	 Formulating the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board 
		  3.	 Devising a policy on Board diversity 
		  4.	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 

accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out 
evaluation of every director’s performance. 

		  5.	 The Committee shall take into consideration and ensure the compliance of provisions under Schedule V of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for appointing and fixing remuneration of Managing Directors / Whole-time Directors; 

		  6.	 While approving the remuneration, the Committee shall take into account financial position of the Company, trend 
in the industry, qualification, experience and past performance of the appointee; 

	 C.	 CHAIRMAN OF THE COMMITTEE

		  1.	 Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. 
		  2.	 In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose one amongst 

them to act as Chairman. 
		  3.	 Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee could be present at the Annual General Meeting to 

answer the Shareholder queries. However it would be up to the Chairman to decide who should answer the queries.
	D .	FRE QUENCY OF MEETINGS

		  The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.
	 E.	 COMMITTEE MEMBER’S INTEREST

		  •	 A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a 
meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated. 

		  •	 The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the 
Committee. 

	F .	 VOTING AT THE MEETING

		  Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members present 
and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee. In the case of equality 
of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.

	 G.	 MINUTES OF THE MEETING

		  Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the said meeting or the Chairman of the 
next succeeding meeting. Minutes of the Committee meeting will be tabled at the subsequent Board and Committee 
meeting.

	 H.	 APPLICABILITY

		  This Policy is Applicable to: 
		  i.	 Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent)
		  ii.	 Key Managerial Personnel 
		  iii.	 Senior Management Personnel 
		  iv.	 Other employees as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
V.	 APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

	 A.	 APPOINTMENT CRITERIA AND QUALIFICATIONS

		  i.	 Subject to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Listing Agreement, other applicable laws, if 
any and HR Policy, the Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience 
of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his/
her appointment. 
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		  ii.	 The potential candidate should possess adequate qualifications, experience and expertise for Appointment to the 
position of directors, KMP’s and Senior Management. The Committee has discretion to decide the adequacy of 
qualification, expertise and experience for the concerned position. 

		  iii.	 Letter of Appointment shall be issued based on the recommendations of the Committee on the basis of guidelines 
for the same under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies Policy.

		  iv.	 The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director/Whole-time 
Director/Manager who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this 
position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special 
resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for 
extension of appointment beyond seventy years. 

		  v.	 The maximum number of public companies in which a person can be appointed as a director shall not exceed ten. 
For reckoning the limit of public companies in which a person can be appointed as director, directorship in private 
companies that are either holding or subsidiary company of a public company shall be included.

	 B.	 TERM/ TENURE

		  1.	 Managing Director / Whole-time Director / Manager (Managerial Personnel) 

			   The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director/Whole-time Director/Manager for a 
term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of 
term.

		  2.	I ndependent Director 

			   i.	 An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company 
and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such 
appointment in the Board’s report. 

			   ii.	 No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director 
shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. 
Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be 
associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. 

			   iii.	 At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such 
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed 
companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed 
company. 

	 C.	E VALUATION

		  Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Committee shall carry 
out the evaluation of Directors periodically.

	 D.	RE MOVAL

		  Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder or under any other 
applicable laws, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing for 
removal of a Director, KMP, subject to the provisions and compliance of the applicable laws, rules and regulations.

	 E.	RE TIREMENT

		  The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, and 
Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, 
in the interest and for the benefit of the Company.

VI. PROVISIONS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, KMP,SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

	 1.	RE MUNERATION TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, DIRECTORS OTHER THAN EXCEUTIVE DIRECTOR AND KMP

		  i.	 The remuneration/compensation/commission etc. to Directors and KMP will be determined by the Committee and 
recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration/ compensation/commission etc. shall be subject to the 
prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required. 

		  ii.	 The remuneration and commission to be paid to Directors shall be as per the statutory provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, and the rules made there under for the time being in force.

		  iii.	 Increments to the existing remuneration/compensation structure of Directors and KMP shall be recommended by the 
Committee to the Board.In case of Directors increments should be within the slabs approved by the Shareholders 
in case the Company has taken approval of Shareholders. 
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		  iv.	 Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Directors and KMP for indemnifying them against 
any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any 
such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be 
treated as part of the remuneration. 

	 2.	RE MUNERATION TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND KMP

		  •	 FIXED PAY

			   a.	 Executive Directors and KMP shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on 
the recommendation of the Committee in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force.

			   b.	 The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution to P.F, pension 
scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board on the recommendation 
of the Committee and approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required. 

		  •	 VARIABLE COMPONENTS

			   The Executive Director and KMP participate in a performance linked variable pay scheme, if any which will be 
based on the individual and company performance for the year, pursuant to which the Executive Director and KMP 
are entitled to performance-based variable remuneration. 

		  •	 PROVISIONS FOR EXCESS REMUNERATION

			   a.	 If any Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of 
the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or without the prior sanction of the Central Government, 
where required, he/she shall refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust 
for the Company.

			   b.	 The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government. 
	 3.	RE MUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE/ INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

		  •	 REMUNERATION/ COMMISSION

			   The remuneration/commission shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
the rules made thereunder for the time being in force.

		  •	 SITTING FEES

			   The Non- Executive/Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board 
or Committee thereof. 

			   Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in the Companies Act, 
2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government 
from time to time. 

		  •	 STOCK OPTIONS

			   An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.
	 4.	RE MUNERATION TO SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

		  •	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has authorized the Managing Director to determine from time to 
time the remuneration payable to Senior Management Personnel including their increments. The powers of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in this regard have been delegated to the Managing Director. 

		  •	 The Board of Directors shall from time to time be intimated of the remuneration payable to the Senior Management 
Personnel.

		  •	 Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Senior Management Personnel for indemnifying 
them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration 
payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such 
insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration. 

			   I.	FI XED PAY

				    i.	 Senior Management shall be eligible for a monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Committee in 
accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made there under for 
the time being in force. 

				    ii.	 The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s contribution to P.F, pension 
scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Committee.
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			   II.	 VARIABLE COMPONENTS

				    The Senior Management Personnel participate in a performance linked variable pay scheme, if any which will 
be based the individual and company performance for the year, pursuant to which the Senior Management are 
entitled to performance-based variable remuneration. 

	 5.	RE MUNERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES

		  The power to decide the criteria for evaluating performance of other employees has been delegated to the HR 
Department of the Company as per HR Policy of the Company.

VII.	 CRITERIA FOR EVALUATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES OF 
BOARD

	 In compliance with Listing Agreement as entered with the Stock Exchanges and Companies Act, 2013, formal annual 
evaluation shall be done by the Board of its own performance and that of Committees and individual directors and the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee shall also evaluate the performance of each director. The Objective is to lay down 
the criteria to evaluate the performance of the entire Board of the Company including the Committees thereof.

	 A.	RES PONSIBILITY OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

	 Independent Directors are duty bound to evaluate the performance of non-independent directors and board as a whole. 
The Independent Directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a year to review the performance of the non-
independent directors, performance of Chairperson of the Company and board as a whole, taking into account the views of 
executive directors and non- executive directors.

	 B.   PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

		  i.	 The following criteria are laid down for evaluation of performance of Independent directors and Non Independent 
Directors/Executive Directors:-

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OVERALLRATING
• Compliance with Articles of Association, Companies Act & other laws 
• Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct of Company
• Assistance in implementing corporate governance practices
• Rendering Independent, unbiased opinion
• Attendance & presence in meetings of Board & Committees
• Attendance & presence in general meetings
• Leadership qualities
• Qualifications
• Independent view on key appointments & strategy formulation
• Objective evaluation of Board’s performance
• Review of integrity of financial information & risk management 
• Safeguard of stakeholders’ interests
• Appointment & removal of KMP’s 
• Updation of skills and knowledge
• Punctuality
• Information regarding external environment
• Seeking expert opinion, when required
• Raising of concerns to the Board
• Safeguarding interest of whistle-blowers under vigil mechanism
• Reporting of frauds, violation, etc. 
• Team work attributes
• Safeguard of confidential information

NON-INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS/ EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS OVERALL RATING
• Compliance with Articles of Association, Companies Act & other laws
• Strategic Planning- financial & business
• Monitoring performance against plans
• Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct
• Exercising duties diligently
• Qualifications
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NON-INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS/ EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS OVERALL RATING
• Punctuality
• Disclosure of interest
• Leadership skills
• Motivating employees, providing assistance & directions
• Establishment of internal control processes
• Communication skills
• Attendance & presence in meetings of Board & Committees
• Attendance in general meetings
• Team work attributes
• Monitoring policies, encouraging suggestions
• Supervising & training the staff members
• Safeguard of confidential information

		  ii.	 The following criteria are laid down for evaluation of performance of the Board of the Company: 

S. 
No.

Assessment Criteria Overall Rating

1. Is the composition of the board is appropriate with the right mix of knowledge and 
skills sufficient to maximize performance in the light of future strategy.

2. Are all directors allowed or encouraged to participate fully in board discussions?
3. The Board of Directors of the company is effective in decision making.
4. The Board of Directors is effective in establishing a corporate environment that 

promotes timely and effective disclosure, fiscal accountability, high ethical standards 
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

5. The Board of Directors is effective in developing a corporate governance structure 
that allows and encourages the Board to fulfill its responsibilities.

6. The Company’s systems of control are effective for identifying material risks and 
reporting material violations of policies and law.

7. The Board receives regular financial updates and takes all necessary steps to ensure 
the operations of the organization are sound.

8. The Board reviews the organization’s performance in carrying out the stated mission 
on a regular basis.

9. The Board of directors is provided with sufficient information about material risks and 
problems that affects the Company’s business and prospects.

10. The Board of Directors is effective in providing necessary advice and suggestions to 
the company’s management.

11. Are inside and outside board relationships working effectively?
12. Is the board as a whole up to date with latest developments in the regulatory 

environment and the market?
13. The number of meetings during the year is adequate for the Board to be effective.
14. Are sufficient board meetings, of appropriate length, being held to enable proper 

consideration of issues?
15. The information provided to directors prior to Board meetings meets your expectations 

in terms of length and level of detail.
16. Board members come prepared to meetings and ask appropriate questions of 

management
17. Timely inputs on the minutes of the meetings of the Board
18. Board meetings are conducted in a manner that encourages open communication, 

meaningful participation, and timely resolution of issues.
19. Board members fully and positively participate in discussions.
20. The Board Chairman effectively and appropriately leads and facilitates the Board 

meetings and the policy and governance work of the board.
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S. 
No.

Assessment Criteria Overall Rating

21. Nomination and appointment of board members follow clearly established procedures 
using known criteria.

22. The Board is provided with sufficient information and time to address issues that 
might present a conflict of interest.

23. The Board appropriately considers internal audit reports, management’s responses, 
and steps towards improvement.

24. The Board oversees the role of the independent auditor from selection to termination 
and has an effective process to evaluate the independent auditor’s qualifications and 
performance.

25. The board considers the independent audit plan and provides recommendations.
26. Compliance with policies of the Company, ethics, code of conduct, etc.

		  iii.	 The Board has constituted various Committees, for evaluating the performance of each Committee, the Board of 
Directors shall pay regard to the following aspects:-

PERFORMANCE CRITERIA RATING
Compliance with Memorandum and Articles of Association, Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreement 
and other Laws 
Compliance with the ethical standards & Code of Conduct of the Company.
Raising of concerns to the Board
Committee’s accomplishment w.r.t. performance Objectives
Redressal of Complaints & Grievances
Coordination with Other Committees and Board of Directors
Fulfillment of Roles & Responsibilities
Adherence to the Companies Policies and Internal Procedures

			   In respect of the evaluation factors various aspects have been provided to assist with the evaluation process in 
respect of performance of Independent directors and Board of the Company including Committees of directors as 
such, the evaluation factors may vary in accordance with their respective functions and duties.

Rating Scale
Scale Performance
5 Excellent
4 Very Good
3 Satisfactory
2 Needs Improvement
1 Unacceptable

VIII.	BOARD DIVERSITY

	 The Company aims to enhance the effectiveness of the Board by diversifying it and obtain the benefit out of it by better and 
improved decision making. In order to ensure that the Company’s boardroom has appropriate balance of skills, experience 
and diversity of perspectives that are imperative for the execution of its business strategy, the Company shall consider a 
number of factors, including but not limited to skills, industry experience, background, race and gender. 

	 The Policy shall confirm with the following two principles for achieving diversity on its Board: 
	 i.	 Decisions pertaining to recruitment, promotion and remuneration of the directors will be based on their performance and 

competence; and
	 ii.	 For embracing diversity and being inclusive, best practices to ensure fairness and equality shall be adopted and there 

shall be zero tolerance for unlawful discrimination and harassment of any sort whatsoever. 
	 In order to ensure a balanced composition of executive, non-executive and independent directors on the Board, the Company 

shall consider candidates from a wide variety of backgrounds, without discrimination based on the following factors:
	 	 Gender - The Company shall not discriminate on the basis of gender in the matter of appointment of director on 

the Board. The Company encourages the appointment of women at senior executive levels to achieve a balanced 
representation on the Board. 
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	 	 Age - Subject to the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, age shall be no bar for appointment of an individual 
as director on the Board of the Company.

	 	 Nationality and ethnicity - The Company shall promote having a boardroom comprising of people from different ethnic 
backgrounds so that the directors may efficiently contribute their thorough knowledge, sources and understanding for 
the benefit of Company’s business;

	 	 Physical disability - The Company shall not discriminate on the basis of any immaterial physical disability of a candidate 
for appointment on Company’s Board, if he/she is able to efficiently discharge the assigned duties.

	 	 Educational qualification - The proposed candidate shall possess desired team building traits that effectively contribute 
to his/ her position in the Company. The Directors of the Company shall have a mix of finance, legal and management 
background, that taken together, provide the Company with considerable experience in a range of activities including 
varied industries, education, government, banking, and investment. 

IX.	DIS CLOSURES

	 This Policy shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.
X.	 POLICY REVIEW AND FUTURE AMENDMENT

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall review this Policy from time to time and make suitable changes as may 
be required and submit the same for the approval of the Board. 

		D  etails of remuneration to all the directors is mentioned below: 

		  (i)	D etails of remuneration of Mr. AroonPurie, Chairman & Managing Director

			   No remuneration has been paid to Directors except Mr. AroonPurie, Chairman & Managing Director and Ms. Koel 
Purie Rinchet, Whole Time Director. Mr. Aroon Purie is entitled to remuneration by way of commission @ 5% of the 
net profits of the Company, which also includes the facility of a Chauffer driven car partly for official and personal 
purposes. He was not entitled to any other benefit, salary, bonus, stock option, pension, etc. The monetary value of 
the remuneration (commission) paid to him during the financial year is Rs. 67,084,720.

		  (ii)	 Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet as Whole time Director as on March 31, 2015 

			   Remuneration

Particulars Annual (Rs)
Salary 72,55,708
Perquisites 39,600
Bonus NIL
Stock options NIL
Performance linked incentive, along with performance criteria 25,92,000

			�   Service Contract - 24th May, 2010 to 23rd May, 2015 which is further extended by the board of Director’s till 27th June  
2015 as a whole time director subject to shareholders approval in the 16th annual general meeting. After 27th June 
2015 she will be non executive director as she has resigned as whole time director from the board of the Company.

			   Notice Period and Severance fees

			   The Management reserves the right to terminate the services on giving 3 months notice or payment of salary in lieu 
thereof. Similarly, Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet is at liberty to resign from the services upon 3 month’s notice or payment 
of salary in lieu thereof.

	 	 (iii)	Compensation to Non-executive Directors:

			�   During the financial year, Non- Executive and Independent Directors were paid sitting fees @ Rs. 10,000 for each 
Board meeting and Committee Meeting attended by them.

			S   hares held by Non-executive Directors as on 31st March, 2015

Name of the Director No. of Shares held
Mr.Rajeev Thakore 300
Mr. Anil Vig NIL
Mr. Ashok Kapur NIL
Mr. Devajyoti Bhattacharya NIL

	III .	S takeholders’ Relationship Committee:

			   i.	 Composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

				    The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of Mr. Anil Vig, Independent Director, as Chairman and 
Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet and Mr. Ashok Kapur, as its members. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to 
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the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee. The composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is in 
conformity with Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges. 

			   ii.	 Name and designation of Compliance Officer: 

				    Dr. Puneet Jain, Head- Legal & Compliances & Company Secretary & Vice President- Internal Audit is the 
Compliance Officer. 

			   iii.	 Number of shareholders’ complaints received and resolved during the year:

				    During the year under review, one complaint was received. No complaint was pending as at the end of the 
financial year.

4.	 General Body meetings:

	 i.	 Location and time, where last three AGMs held:

Financial 
Year

Date Time Venue Details of special resolutions 
passed, if any

2013-2014 20.08.2014 3.00 P.M. Airforce Auditorium, Subroto Park, 
DhaulaKuan, New Delhi-110010

Yes, Alteration of Articles of 
Association

2012-2013 22.08.2013 3.00 P.M. Airforce Auditorium, Subroto Park, 
DhaulaKuan, New Delhi-110010

None

2011-2012 22.08.2012 3.00 P.M. Airforce Auditorium, Subroto Park, 
DhaulaKuan, New Delhi-110010

None

	 ii.	 Postal Ballot

		  No Special Resolution was passed last year through Postal Ballot.
5.	D isclosures:

i.	 The details of related party transaction with the Company are given in Note No. 36 of the Notes to Accounts of the 
Company. Besides this, the Company has no material significant transaction with the related parties viz. promoters, 
directors of the Company, management, their relatives, subsidiaries of promoter Company etc. that may have a potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

ii.	 No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other statutory 
authority on any matter related to capital markets for non-compliance by the Company during the last three years.

iii.	 The Company has a centralized Human Resource Department which attends to the grievances of the employees on 
regular basis and has an exit policy which records the reasons of separation which are shared with the Management. 

iv.	 All mandatory requirements as applicable to the Company are being complied.
v.	 The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism of reporting 

illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has a Vigil Mechanism and whistle blower policy wherein the employees 
and others as included in the policy are free to report violations of laws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct to 
the vigilance Officer and no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The confidentiality of those 
reporting violations is maintained and they are not subjected to any discriminatory practice.

6.	 Means of communication:

	 The quarterly/ half yearly results are published in leading English & Hindi Newspapers - Financial Express and Jansatta 
respectively and are also displayed on website of the Company- www.aajtak.intoday.in along with official news releases. 
The same is also being sent to the institutional investors and to the analysts. The presentations made to institutional 
investors or analyst, if made, are displayed on the website of the Company.

7.	 General Shareholder information:

	 i.	 Annual General Meeting

		  Date	 :	 August 20, 2015
		  Venue	 :	 The Airforce Auditorium, Subroto Park, 

				    DhaulaKuan, New Delhi-110010.
		  Time	 :	 3:00 P.M.
	 ii.	F inancial Calendar: 

		  The next financial year 2015-16 ends on March 31, 2016. The tentative dates for approval of un-audited financial results 
are as follows: 

		  Quarter ending June 30, 2015: upto August 14, 2015.
		  Quarter ending September 30, 2015: upto November 14, 2015. 
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		  Quarter ending December 31, 2015: upto February 14, 2016.
		  Quarter ending March 31, 2016: upto May 14, 2016 (un audited)/upto May 30, 2016 (audited). 
	 iii.	 Book closure

		  The register of members and share transfer records of the Company shall remain closed from August 7, 2015 to August 
20, 2015. (both days inclusive)

	 iv.	D ividend Payment Date: Dividend, if any, declared in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting will be paid on or after 
24th August, 2015.

	 v.	 Listing on Stock Exchanges and Stock Code

		  The names of the Stock Exchanges at which the equity shares are listed and the respective stock codes are as under: 
		  Name of the Stock Exchanges 	 Stock Code/ Symbol
		  Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 	 532515
		  National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 	 TVTODAY
		  Listing fee for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2015, as payable to the aforesaid Stock Exchanges, has already 

been paid. 
		  The ISIN number allotted to the Company for dematerialization of shares is INE 038F01029.
	 vi.	 Market Price Data

		  The High/Low of the market price of the Company’s equity shares traded on the BSE Limited, and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited, during the financial year ended March 31, 2015 were as follows:

Month BSE NSE
High Low High Low

April 2014 137.10 116.90 137.20 116.25
May 2014 154.95 116.00 155.90 115.80
June 2014 154.40 122.00 154.80 123.65
July 2014 144.95 119.30 145.10 119.05
August 2014 226.85 134.00 226.80 133.60
September 2014 244.00 198.05 243.85 197.00
October 2014 227.95 202.00 228.00 203.00
November 2014 259.00 185.40 259.35 184.85
December 2014 228.00 191.10 228.00 192.50
January 2015 239.40 200.75 239.65 200.00
February 2015 261.85 212.00 262.00 211.80
March 2015 243.75 200.00 243.80 199.45

		   (Source: www.bseindia.com) (Source: www.nseindia.com)
	 vii.	 Performance of Company’s equity shares in comparison to BSE SENSEX and NSE NIFTY:

Comparison of the Stock Exchange Performance with NSE NIFTY

T.V. Today Share Price

		  (Source: www.nseindia.com)

TV Today 1(1-49).indd.indd   46 7/20/2015   6:33:35 PM



T.V. Today Network Limited

	 ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15	 47

Comparison of the Stock Exchange Performance with BSE Sensex

T.V. Today Share Price

		  (Source: www.bseindia.com)
	 viii.	Registrar & Share Transfer Agent

		  MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
		  F-65, Okhla Industrial Area
		  Phase-I, New Delhi-110020
		  Ph. 011-41406149/51-52
		  Fax No. 011-41709881
		  E-mail: admin@mcsdel.com
	 ix.	S hare Transfer Systems

		  All share transfers are handled by Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. Share transfers in physical form are 
registered within fifteen days from the date of receipt, provided the documents are found to be in order.

	 x.	D istribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2015

Sr. No. Shareholders %
1. Indian Promoters 57.4198
2. Mutual Funds/ UTI 2.6644
3. Banks/ FI’s, Insurance Companies 0.8956
4. Bodies Corporate 7.8379
5. Indian Public 29.3492
6. NRI & Trust 1.8331

Total 100.00
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	 xi.	S hares held in physical and dematerialized form

		  As on March 31, 2015, 99.99% of the Company’s total equity shares representing 5,96,40,598 were held in dematerialized 
form and 0.01% equity shares representing 8017 shares were held in physical form. The shares of the Company are 
traded in ‘B1’ group in BSE.

	 xii.	 There are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments. 

	 xiii.	Plant Locations

		  Not Applicable
	 xiv.	Address for correspondence

		  T.V. Today Network Limited
		  India Today Group Mediaplex
		  FC-8, Sector- 16A, 
		  Film City, Noida- 201301.
		  Uttar Pradesh.
		  Telephone: 0120-4807100
		  Fax: 0120-4325028
		  E-Mail- puneet.jain@aajtak.com
	 xv.	 Bank details in respect of Shares held in dematerialized form

		  Shareholders holding shares in electronic form may give instructions regarding bank details, which they wish to 
incorporate on their dividend warrants, to their depository participants. As per the regulations of NSDL and CDSL, 
the Company is obliged to print the bank details on the dividend warrants, as furnished by these depositories to the 
Company.

8.	 CEO and CFO certification

	 As required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the CEO and CFO had provided certification.
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Annexure-6

DECLARATION ON THE COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT

In compliance with the provisions of revised Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement for Equity, the Company had laid down a Code of Conduct for 
all Board members and senior management personnel of the Company (hereinafter referred as ‘Code’).  The Code lays down the standards of 
ethical and moral conduct to be followed by the Board members and senior management personnel in the course of proper discharge of their 
official duties and commitments. 

I confirm that all the members of the Board and senior management personnel have conformed to and complied with the Code during the 
financial year 2014-15.

Place: New Delhi	 Ashish Kumar Bagga
Date  : 12th May, 2015	 Chief Executive Officer

Annexure-7

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF  
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members,
T.V. Today Network Limited

We have examined the compliance requirements of Corporate Governance by T.V. Today Network Limited (‘the Company’), for the year ended 
March 31, 2015, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement(s) of the said Company with stock exchange(s) in India.

The compliance requirements of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examination has been limited 
to review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the said clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information, and according to the explanation given to us and based on the representation/s made by the 
Company and its management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in clause 
49 of the above mentioned Listing Agreement. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For PI &Associates
Company secretaries

Sd/-
Sakshi Seth

Partner
Place: New Delhi	 M. No. ACS 20740
Date  : 12th May, 2015	 COP 8050
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the Members of T.V. Today 
Network Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

1.	 We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of T.V. Today Network Limited (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the 
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone 
Financial Statements

2.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of 
these standalone financial statements to give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
Auditors’ Responsibility

3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
standalone financial statements based on our audit.

4.	 We have taken into account the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder including the accounting 
standards and matters which are required to be included 
in the audit report.

5.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act 
and other applicable authoritative pronouncements 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and pronouncements require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

6.	 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation 
of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view, in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has 
in place an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

7.	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.
Opinion

8.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015, and its 
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Emphasis of Matter

9.	 We draw attention to Note 40 of the financial statements 
regarding the carrying value of investment in Mail Today 
Newspapers Private Limited (Mail Today) amounting to 
Rs. 455,212,482, which is considered appropriate by 
the management based on the guarantee received from 
the holding company, Living Media India Limited, for 
indemnifying any loss to the Company arising from the 
sale of the said investment. The appropriateness of the 
carrying value of the said investment is dependent on 
the continuance of the guarantee till the date of sale of 
investment and availability of funds to indemnify the loss. 
Our conclusion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10.	 As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2015’, issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such 
checks of the books and records of the Company as we 
considered appropriate and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order.
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11.	 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 

and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit.

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

	 (c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act.

	 (f)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us:

		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations as at March 31, 2015 on 
its financial position in its standalone financial 
statements – Refer Note 19; 

		  ii.	 The Company does not have derivative contracts 
and in respect of other long-term contracts there 
are no material foreseeable losses as at March 
31, 2015; 

		  iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company during the year ended March 
31, 2015. 

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration Number: 301112E

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Sougata Mukherjee 

Place: Gurgaon 			  Partner
Date: May 12, 2015		  Membership Number 57084
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Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ 
Report of even date to the members of T.V. Today Network 
Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and 
for the year ended March 31, 2015 

i. 	 (a)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation, of fixed assets.

	 (b)	 The fixed assets are physically verified by the 
Management according to a phased programme 
designed to cover all the items over a period of 
three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, 
a portion of the fixed assets has been physically 
verified by the Management during the year and no 
material discrepancies have been noticed on such 
verification. 

ii. 	 The Company is in the business of rendering services, 
and consequently, does not hold any inventory. 
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order 
are not applicable to the Company. 

iii. 	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered 
in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. 
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a) and (iii)
(b) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. 	 In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, there is an adequate 
internal control system commensurate with the size 
of the Company and the nature of its business for the 
purchase of fixed assets and for the sale of services. 
The Company’s operations do not involve purchase of 
inventory and sale of goods. Further, on the basis of our 
examination of the books and records of the Company, 
and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, we have neither come across, nor have been 
informed of, any continuing failure to correct major 
weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system. 

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 
of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent 
notified.

vi. 	 We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
maintained by the Company in respect of products where, 
pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government 
of India, the maintenance of cost records has been 
specified under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, 
and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed 

accounts and records have been made and maintained. 
We have not, however, made a detailed examination of 
the records with a view to determine whether they are 
accurate or complete. 

vii. (a)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in 
depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including 
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income 
tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, value added tax, cess and other material 
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate 
authorities. 

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations 
given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, there are no dues of income-
tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax, duty of customs, value 
added tax, cess which have not been deposited 
on account of any dispute. The particulars of dues 
of service tax as at March 31, 2015 which have 
not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as 
follows:-	
Name 
of the 
statute

Nature 
of dues

Amount  
(Rs.)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum 
where the 
dispute is 
pending

Finance 
Act, 
1994

Service 
tax 

Rs. 
93,804,477 
(including 
interest 
of Rs. 

35,239,126 
and penalty 

of Rs. 
28,072,911)

FY 2006-
07 to  

FY 2011-12

Customs, 
Excise and 

Service 
Tax 

Appellate 
Tribunal

	 (c)	 The amount required to be transferred to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund has been transferred 
within the stipulated time in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules 
made thereunder.

viii.	 The Company has no accumulated losses as at the end 
of the financial year and it has not incurred any cash 
losses in the financial year ended on that date or in the 
immediately preceding financial year.

ix.	 According to the records of the Company examined by 
us and the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any 
financial institution or bank or debenture holders as at 
the balance sheet date.

x.	 In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not given 
any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or 
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financial institutions during the year. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(x) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

xi.	 In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the term loans have been 
applied, on an overall basis, for the purposes for which 
they were obtained. 

xii.	 During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanations given 
to us, we have neither come across any instance of 

material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such 
case by the Management.

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration Number: 301112E

Chartered Accountants

	 Sd/-
Sougata Mukherjee 

Place: Gurgaon 			  Partner
Date: May 12, 2015		  Membership Number 57084
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015
As at  

Note
March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Equity and Liabilities

Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 2  298,243,075  297,440,575 
Reserves and surplus 3  4,201,388,637  3,493,189,827 
Sub - total  4,499,631,712  3,790,630,402 
Non-current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities 4  17,849,059  18,427,625 
Long-term provisions 5  109,180,155  105,701,870 
Sub - total  127,029,214  124,129,495 
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 6  67,258,112  -   
Trade payables 7  676,289,943  516,882,212 
Other current liabilities 8  339,691,277  475,612,158 
Short-term provisions 9  114,223,487  78,895,572 
Sub - total  1,197,462,819  1,071,389,942 
Total  5,824,123,745  4,986,149,839 
Assets

Non-current assets

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 10  1,975,720,996  2,105,881,722 
Intangible assets 11  376,524,553  45,098,225 
Capital work-in-progress  30,807,185  19,169,644 

Non-current investments 12  456,712,482  456,712,482 
Deferred tax assets (net) 13  157,315,341  157,040,057 
Long-term loans and advances 14  62,880,068  55,922,623 
Sub - total  3,059,960,625  2,839,824,753 

Current assets
Trade receivables 15  1,405,823,404  1,103,489,808 
Cash and bank balances 16  945,101,254  570,365,086 
Short-term loans and advances 17  398,551,691  465,827,137 
Other current assets 18  14,686,771  6,643,055 
Sub - total  2,764,163,120  2,146,325,086 

Total  5,824,123,745  4,986,149,839 

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse		  For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 	
Sougata Mukherjee	 Dr. Puneet Jain	 Ashok Kapur 	 Aroon Purie
Partner	 Head - Legal and Compliances,	 Director 	 Chairman and
Membership No. 57084	 Company Secretary and	 	 Managing Director 
	 Vice President - Internal Audit

	 Dinesh Bhatia
	 Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gurgaon	 Place : Noida
Date : May 12, 2015	 Date : May 12, 2015
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2015
	

 Note

  Year ended

 March 31, 2015 
Amount (Rs.)

March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.)

Revenue from operations 22  4,765,616,768  3,894,436,048 
Other income 23  226,900,814  116,988,832 
Total revenue  4,992,517,582  4,011,424,880 

Expenses:
Production cost 24  544,613,272  408,488,131 
Employee benefits expense 25  1,168,131,271  929,733,311 
Finance costs 27  14,773,511  35,901,427 
Depreciation and amortization expense 28  300,220,737  241,794,681 
Other expenses 29  1,736,007,783  1,463,499,093 

Total expenses  3,763,746,574  3,079,416,643 

Profit before tax  1,228,771,008  932,008,237 

Tax expense
Current tax [including Rs. 17,603,228  
(previous year Rs. 2,255,162) relating to earlier year]

 416,103,226  308,235,364 

Deferred tax [including Rs. (-) 18,000,541  
(previous year Rs. 556,047) relating to earlier year]

 2,340,230  10,592,422 

Profit for the year  810,327,552  613,180,451 

Earnings per equity share: 
[Nominal value per share: Rs. 5 (Previous Year Rs. 5)]

33

Basic  13.60  10.31 
Diluted  13.60  10.31 
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse		  For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 	
Sougata Mukherjee	 Dr. Puneet Jain	 Ashok Kapur 	 Aroon Purie
Partner	 Head - Legal and Compliances,	 Director 	 Chairman and
Membership No. 57084	 Company Secretary and	 	 Managing Director 
	 Vice President - Internal Audit

	 Dinesh Bhatia
	 Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gurgaon	 Place : Noida
Date : May 12, 2015	 Date : May 12, 2015
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Cash Flow Statement For the year ended March 31, 2015
Year ended

March 31, 2015 
Amount (Rs.)

March 31, 2014 
Amount (Rs.)

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxation 1,228,771,008 932,008,237 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation 240,113,455 216,902,240 
Amortisation 60,107,282 24,892,441 
Employee stock option scheme (280,531) (674,496)
Provision for doubtful debts and advances  86,217,400 91,020,876 
Provisions / liabilities written back to the extent no longer required (111,343,340) (34,527,453)
Provision for wealth tax  353,029 249,734 
Loss / (profit) on sale of tangible assets (net)  88,456 (1,274,393)
Fixed assets written off  1,473,320  -   
Interest income (78,554,051) (42,840,279)
Interest and other finance costs 14,773,511 35,901,427 

Operating profit before working capital changes 1,441,719,539 1,221,658,334 

Changes in working capital: 
Increase / (decrease) in other long-term liabilities (1,598,822) (14,154,818)
Increase / (decrease) in long-term provisions 3,478,285 (79,160)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 228,128,765 (53,088,287)
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities 68,581,403 119,023,255 
Increase / (decrease) in short-term provisions (2,539,505) (1,900,209)
(Increase) / decrease in long-term loans and advances (2,141,309) (16,184,010)
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (337,986,167) (229,462,351)
(Increase) / decrease in other bank balances (267,955,886) (8,603)
(Increase) / decrease in short-term loans and advances 40,276,168 109,548,038 
(Increase) / decrease in other current assets (1,198,917) 8,965,467 
Cash generated from operations 1,168,763,554 1,144,317,656 
Taxes paid (net of refunds) (389,353,707) (338,942,219)

Net cash generated from operating activities 779,409,847 805,375,437 

B. Cash flow from investing activities 

Purchase of tangible / intangible assets (571,311,000) (80,454,986)
Sale of tangible assets 4,342,097 9,861,780 
Interest received  73,313,784 39,970,922 

Net cash used in investing activities (493,655,119) (30,622,284)
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Cash Flow Statement For the year ended March 31, 2015
Year ended

March 31, 2015 
Amount (Rs.)

March 31, 2014 
Amount (Rs.)

C. Cash flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from share allotment under employee stock option 
scheme 

11,466,175 1,869,525 

Repayments of long-term borrowings (172,800,000) (162,000,000)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings  67,258,112  -   
Repayment of short-term borrowings  -   (266,895,653)
Interest and other finance costs (15,249,303) (36,183,795)
Dividend paid (59,529,228) (44,583,858)
Dividend distribution tax  (10,120,202) (7,578,489)

Net cash used in financing activities (178,974,446) (515,372,270)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 106,780,282 259,380,883 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 549,209,127 289,828,244 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 655,989,409 549,209,127 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: 

Cash on hand 1,130,704 569,317 
Cheques on hand  -   2,349,991 
Bank balances 

In current accounts 153,877,025 286,289,819 
Term deposits (less than 3 months maturity) 500,981,680 260,000,000 

Total 655,989,409 549,209,127 
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse		  For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 	
Sougata Mukherjee	 Dr. Puneet Jain	 Ashok Kapur 	 Aroon Purie
Partner	 Head - Legal and Compliances,	 Director 	 Chairman and
Membership No. 57084	 Company Secretary and	 	 Managing Director 
	 Vice President - Internal Audit

	 Dinesh Bhatia
	 Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gurgaon	 Place : Noida
Date : May 12, 2015	 Date : May 12, 2015
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

1. 	 Significant Accounting Policies 

a.	B asis of Preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in 
India under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, till the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto are 
prescribed by Central Government in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial Reporting Authority, 
the existing Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to apply. Consequently, these 
financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under 
Section 211(3C) [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services provided, the Company 
has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current – non current classification of assets and 
liabilities.	

b.	 Tangible Assets

Tangible assets are stated at their original cost and include all expenses relating to acquisition and installation. 

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains and losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at 
cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c.	 Intangible Assets

Acquired intangible assets expected to provide future enduring benefits are stated at their original cost and include all 
expenses relating to acquisition and installation.

d.	 Depreciation / Amortisation

•	 Depreciation on tangible assets (other than leasehold land, leasehold improvements, continuous process plant and 
machinery and vehicles) is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives 
of the assets as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

	 Till last year, depreciation on these assets used to be provided for at the rates mentioned in Schedule XIV of the 
Companies Act, 1956. Had the earlier years’ basis been followed, depreciation for the year would have been lower 
by Rs. 48,803,683. Further, based on the transitional provisions as per Note 7(b) of Schedule II of such Act, an 
amount of Rs. 5,079,444 (net of deferred tax of Rs. 2,615,514) has been adjusted against opening balance of 
retained earnings

•	 Leasehold land is depreciated over the period of the lease.

•	 Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lease term or their useful life (based on a technical evaluation), 
whichever is shorter.

•	 Continuous process plant and machinery are depreciated over the useful life of 9.67 years, based on a technical 
evaluation.

•	 Vehicles are depreciated over the useful life of 5 years on straight-line method, based on a technical evaluation.

•	 Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated over a period of 12 months.

•	 Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, as follows:-

a. 	 Computer software are depreciated over a period of three years.

b.	 Production software are depreciated over a period of three years.

c.	 CTI sites BECIL are depreciated over the license period of ten years.

d.	 Digital rights of news channels are depreciated over a period of ten years.
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e.	 Revenue Recognition

Advertisement and digital business income is recognized for the period for which services have been provided and for 
which there is certainty of ultimate collection. Subscription income is recognized on the basis of terms of contract with 
the distributors. Fee from training is recognized over the duration of the course offered by the media institute of the 
Company.

f.	 Interest Income 

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable.

g.	 Investments

Long-term investments are stated at cost of acquisition. Provision is made for diminution, other than temporary, in the 
carrying value thereof, in valuation of investments. Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value.

h.	 Employee Benefits

(a)	 Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognised in the period during which the services have been rendered.

(b)	 Long Term Employee Benefits

	 i)	 Defined Contribution Plans

Company’s contributions to Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance Scheme and Employee Pension 
Scheme, which are Defined Contribution Plans, are expensed to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual 
basis. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions to the 
respective government funds.

	 (ii)	G ratuity (Defined Benefit Plan) and Compensated Absences (Other Long-Term Employee Benefits)

The Company provides for the liability at year end as per actuarial valuation carried out by an independent 
actuary as per the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments 
and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss as income or expense.

The Gratuity Plan of the Company provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or on 
termination of employment, based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. Gratuity 
Fund is recognized by the income tax authorities and is administered and managed by the Life Insurance 
Corporation of India (“LIC”).

 	 (iii)	 Termination benefits are recognized as an expense immediately. 

i.	F oreign Currency Transactions

Foreign exchange transactions during the year are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. 
Gains or losses arising out of fluctuations in exchange rate between transaction date and settlement date are recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary Assets and Liabilities are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the year end and the resultant gain / 
loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

j.	 Taxes on Income

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, is included in determining the net profit for the year. 
Current tax is determined based on liability computed in accordance with relevant tax rates and tax laws.

Deferred tax is recognized for all timing differences arising between accounting income and taxable income and is 
measured at the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. 

Notes forming part of the financial statements
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Deferred tax assets are carried forward to the extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable profits 
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed 
depreciation or brought forward losses are recognized to the extent of virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable 
profits will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

k.	 Leases

As a lessee:

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.  

As a lessor:

The Company has leased a tangible asset and such leases where the Company has substantially retained all the risks 
and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Lease income on such operating leases are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term which is representative of the time pattern 
in which benefit derived from the use of the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs are recognized as an expense 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.   

l.	 Earnings Per Share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

m.	B orrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of the cost of 
that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

n.	 Employee Stock Based Compensation 

The Company calculates the employee stock compensation expense based on the intrinsic value method wherein the 
excess of market price of underlying equity shares as on the date of the grant of options over the exercise price of the 
options given to employees under the Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company, is recognized as deferred 
stock compensation expense and is amortized over the vesting period on the basis of generally accepted accounting 
principles in accordance with the guidelines of Securities and Exchange Board of India and guidance note issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

o.	 Provisions and Contingencies

Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is more likely than 
not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. These 
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. A disclosure for contingent 
liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that probably will not require an outflow of 
resource or where a reliable estimate of obligation cannot be made.

p.	 Impairment of Assets

Management periodically assesses using, external and internal sources, whether there is an indication that an asset 
may be impaired. Impairment occurs where the carrying value exceeds the present value of future cash flows expected 
to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal. The impairment loss to be expensed is determined 
as the excess of the carrying amount over the higher of the asset’s net sales price or present value, as determined 
above.

q. 	C ash and Cash Equivalents 

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cheques on hand, demand deposits with 
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Notes forming part of the financial statements
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

2. 	S hare Capital 

 Particulars As at
March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.)

 March 31, 2014 
Amount (Rs.)

Authorised: 
68,000,000 (Previous Year 68,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 5 each  340,000,000  340,000,000 
300,000 (Previous Year 300,000) preference shares of Rs. 100 each  30,000,000  30,000,000 

Issued: 
 59,648,615 (previous year 59,488,115) equity shares of Rs. 5 each  298,243,075  297,440,575 

Subscribed and paid-Up: 
59,648,615 (previous year 59,488,115) equity shares of Rs. 5 each (fully paid-up)  298,243,075  297,440,575 

Total  298,243,075  297,440,575 

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares 
Equity Shares : As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

Number of Shares  Amount (Rs.) Number of Shares  Amount (Rs.)
Balance as at the beginning of the year  59,488,115 297,440,575  59,456,615  297,283,075 
Add:  Shares issued under Employee 

Stock Option Plan  160,500  802,500  31,500  157,500 
Balance as at the end of the year  59,648,615 298,243,075  59,488,115  297,440,575 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares 
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 5 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for 
one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders 
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the 
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 
However, no such preferential amounts exist currently.

(c) Shares held by holding company and ultimate holding company 
Particulars  As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
March 31, 2014 
Amount (Rs.)

Equity shares: 
33,954,333 (previous year 33,954,333) shares held by Living Media India 
Limited, India, the holding company

 169,771,665  169,771,665 

1,666 (previous year 1,666) shares held by World Media Private Limited, India, 
the ultimate holding company

 8,330  8,330 

(d)  Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company 
Particulars As at

March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.)

March 31, 2014 
Amount (Rs.)

Equity shares: 
Living Media India Limited, the holding company  33,954,333  33,954,333 
  (56.92%)  (57.08%) 
 Reliance Capital Limited, India  -    5,828,705 
  -    (9.80%) 

(e) Shares reserved for issue under options 
Refer note 26 for details of shares to be issued under the Employee Stock Options Plan 
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(f) Shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash (during 5 
years immediately preceding March 31, 2015) 

 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011  March 31, 2010 
(i) Equity shares of Rs. 

5 each issued to the 
shareholders of Radio 
Today Broadcasting 
Limited pursuant to the 
composite scheme of 
arrangement, without 
payment being received 
in cash 

-  -  -  1,655,999   - 

 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011  March 31, 2010 
(ii) Equity shares issued 

under the Employee 
Stock Option Plan as 
consideration for services 
rendered by employees 
(refer note 26) 

 31,500  -  -  9,000 27,500

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011  March 31, 2010 
(iii)Aggregate number and 

class of shares bought 
back by the Company 
- equity shares of Rs. 5 
each 

 -  - -   203,752 

3. 	 Reserves and Surplus
Particulars As at

 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.)

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.)

Employee Stock Options Outstanding
Options granted till date  3,037,500  4,440,000 
Less: Options forfeited  382,500  930,000 
Less: Transfer to securities premium on exercise of stock options during the year  2,205,000  472,500 
  450,000  3,037,500 
Less: Deferred employee stock compensation  -    101,969 
Balance as at the end of the year  450,000  2,935,531 
General Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year  743,029,332  693,029,332 
Add: Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  -    50,000,000 
Balance as at the end of the year  743,029,332  743,029,332 
Securities Premium Account
Balance as at the beginning of the year  525,618,719  523,434,194 
Add: Transferred from stock options outstanding  2,205,000  472,500 
Add: Received on issue of equity shares  10,663,675  1,712,025 
Balance as at the end of the year  538,487,394  525,618,719 
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year  2,221,606,245 1,728,023,914 
Profit for the year  810,327,552  613,180,451 
Less: Appropriations

Dividend on equity shares for previous year  60,000  -   
Dividend distribution tax on dividend for previous year  10,197  -   
Proposed dividend on equity shares for the year  89,472,923  59,488,115 
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend on equity shares  17,889,322  10,110,005 
Transfer to general reserve  -    50,000,000 
Adjustment on account of revision in useful life of fixed assets [refer note 1(d)]  5,079,444  -   

Balance as at the end of the year  2,919,421,911 2,221,606,245 
Total  4,201,388,637 3,493,189,827
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4. 	 Other Long-Term Liabilities

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Security deposits  11,628,681  13,721,183 
Lease equalization  6,220,378  4,706,442 
Total  17,849,059  18,427,625 

5.	 Long-Term Provisions

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.) 

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.) 

Provision for employee benefits: (Refer note 25)
Provision for gratuity  5,764,076  -   
Provision for compensated absences  41,132,103  46,022,056 

Other provisions: (Refer note 19)
Provision for litigation / disputes  62,283,976  59,679,814 

Total  109,180,155  105,701,870 

Provisions: Litigations  / Disputes
March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Balance as at the beginning of the year  59,679,814  48,276,437 
Additions  2,604,162  11,403,377 
Balance as at the end of the year  62,283,976  59,679,814 
Classified as non-current:  62,283,976  59,679,814 
Total  62,283,976  59,679,814 

	 Provision for litigation/dispute represents claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts that are expected to 
materialize in respect of matter in litigation.

6. 	 Short-Term Borrowings

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Secured:
Cash credit facility from bank [refer note (a) below]  67,258,112  -   
Working capital loan repayable on demand from bank [refer note (b) below]  -    -   
Total  67,258,112  -   
(a) Cash credit facility has been secured by way of first charge against the whole of book debts.
(b) Working capital loan has been secured by charge on book debts of the Company (both present and future), on a first 

pari passu basis with another bank.

Standalone 2015_2(50-81).indd   63 7/20/2015   6:34:53 PM



T.V. Today Network Limited

64	 ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Notes forming part of the financial statements

7.	 Trade Payables

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Trade payables (refer note 39)  676,289,943  516,882,212 
Total  676,289,943  516,882,212 

8.	 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Current maturities of long-term debt  -    172,800,000 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  -    475,792 
Income received in advance  6,845,118  6,278,903 
Unpaid dividends [refer note (a) below]  1,374,847  1,355,959 
Advances from customers  111,633,154  107,986,301 
Employee benefits payable  158,831,788  95,911,069 
Statutory dues (including provident fund and tax deducted at source)  25,671,746  28,556,842 
Others  35,334,624  62,247,292 
Total  339,691,277  475,612,158 
(a) There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 205C of the 

Companies Act, 1956 as at the year end.*
*�Section 125 of Companies Act, 2013 which corresponds to Section 205C of Companies Act, 1956 has not yet been 
enforced.

9.	 Short-Term Provisions

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Provision for employee benefits: (Refer note 25)
Provision for compensated absences  6,508,213  9,047,718 
Other provisions:
Provision for wealth tax  353,029  249,734 
Provision for proposed dividend on equity shares  89,472,923  59,488,115 
Provision for dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend on equity shares  17,889,322  10,110,005 
Total  114,223,487  78,895,572 
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12. 	Non-Current Investments
Particulars As at

 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.) 

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.) 

Trade Investments (valued at cost)

Unquoted equity instruments
a) Investment in subsidiary:

1,50,000 equity shares (Previous Year 1,50,000)
of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in T.V. Today Network (Business) Limited  1,500,000  1,500,000 

b) Investment in others:
10,510,510 equity shares (Previous Year 10,510,510)
of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in Mail Today Newspapers Private Limited
(Refer note 40)

 455,212,482  455,212,482 

  456,712,482 456,712,482

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  456,712,482  456,712,482
13. 	Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful debts and advances  88,503,786  77,178,209 
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences  13,835,956  10,383,207 
Provision for bonus  548,096  595,860 
Other disallowances under section 40(a) of the Income Tax Act  106,845,050  96,310,675 
Other timing differences  1,171,200  -   

Deferred tax liability

Depreciation  53,588,747  27,427,894 
Total  157,315,341  157,040,057 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they relate to the same governing taxation laws.

14. 	Long-Term Loans and Advances

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated) :
Capital Advances

- Considered good  6,129,010  878,349 
- Considered doubtful  1,046,249  1,046,249 

Less: Allowance for doubtful capital advances  1,046,249  1,046,249 
Security Deposits

To related party  2,999,829  1,954,329 
To others
- Considered good  41,681,661  34,357,800 
- Considered doubtful  434,525  -   

Less: Allowance for doubtful security deposits  434,525  -   
Advances recoverable in cash or kind  1,169,144  1,920,197 
Other loans and advances

 - Balances with Government Authorities  299,422  298,861 
 - Prepaid expenses  10,601,002  16,513,087 

Total  62,880,068  55,922,623 
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15. 	Trade Receivables

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Unsecured, considered good
Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date they are due for payment  160,691,435  105,644,940 
Others  1,245,131,969  997,844,868 

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date they are due for payment  180,217,069  160,855,435 
Others  59,172,622  42,881,684 
Less: Provision for doubtful debts  239,389,691  203,737,119 
Total  1,405,823,404  1,103,489,808 

16.	C ash and Bank Balances

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  1,130,704  569,317 
Cheques on hand  -    2,349,991 
Bank balances

In current accounts  153,877,025  286,289,819 
Term deposits (less than 3 months maturity)  500,981,680  260,000,000 

  655,989,409  549,209,127 
Other bank balances

 - Long-term deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months*  287,736,998  19,800,000 
 - Unpaid dividend account  1,374,847  1,355,959 

  289,111,845  21,155,959 
Total  945,101,254  570,365,086 
* Rs. 19,800,000 held as lien by bank against bank guarantees

17. 	Short-Term Loans and Advances

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated:

Security deposits  3,425,579  5,252,938 

Other loans and advances
 - Advance income tax  [Net of provision of Rs. 2,013,528,916  259,874,873  286,874,128 

(Previous Year Rs. 1,597,425,690)]

 - Advance fringe benefits tax [Net of provision of Rs. 49,642,976  1,080,426  1,080,426 
(Previous Year Rs. 49,642,976)]

 - Prepaid expenses  29,851,504  31,479,906 

 - Others
 - Considered good  104,319,309  141,139,739 
 - Considered doubtful  12,331,249  12,331,249 

Less: Allowance for doubtful other loans and advances  12,331,249  12,331,249 
Total  398,551,691  465,827,137 
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18. 	Other Current Assets

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated) :

Interest accrued on deposits  8,939,718  3,699,450 

Claims Recoverable
 - Considered good  5,747,053 2,943,605
 - Considered doubtful  2,950,194  2,950,194 

Less: Allowance for doubtful other current assets  2,950,194  2,950,194 
Total  14,686,771 6,643,055

19. 	Contingent Liabilities

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
Income Tax matters :
The Company has received demand notices from the Income Tax department, 
which the Company has contested. In the opinion of the management, no liability is 
likely to arise on account of such demand notices.

 7,071,751  3,499,211 

Service Tax matters :
The Company has received demand notice from the Service Tax department, 
which the Company has contested. In the opinion of the management, based on 
its understanding of the case and as advised by their counsel, no liability is likely to 
arise on account of such demand notice.

 93,804,477  -   

Other Matters :
(1) Claim from Prasar Bharti towards uplinking charges :-

Provision made in the books on an estimated basis (refer note 5) is  
Rs. 62,283,976 (previous year Rs. 59,679,814). In the opinion of the 
management, based on its understanding of the case and as advised by their 
counsel, the provision made in the books is considered to be adequate.

 20,291,134  18,989,020 

(2) Claim from Phonographic Performance Limited (PPL) towards royalty for use of 
PPL’s sound recordings over Company’s radio stations :-
Liability recorded in the books is Rs. 3,542,604 (previous year Rs. 2,531,401). 
In the opinion of the management, based on its understanding of the case and 
as advised by their counsel, the liability recorded in the books is considered to 
be adequate.

 21,586,956  17,733,300 

(3) The Company has received legal notice of claims / lawsuits filed against it in 
respect of programmes aired on its television channels. In the opinion of the 
management, no liability is likely to arise on account of such claims / lawsuits.

 -    -   

Guarantees:

Bank guarantees  22,840,279  23,083,379 
(a) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash 

outflows, if any, in respect of the above, pending resolution of the respective 
proceedings.

(b) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above 
contingent liabilities.
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20.	C apital Commitments

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to be executed  17,458,640  20,846,479 
Total  17,458,640  20,846,479 

21. 	Proposed Dividend

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
The final dividend proposed for the year is as follows:

On equity shares of Rs. 5 each
Amount of dividend proposed  89,472,923  59,488,115 
Dividend per equity share  1.50  1.00 

22. 	Revenue from Operations

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Sale of Services

Advertisement income  4,353,685,718  3,549,353,792 
Subscription income  378,679,170  332,468,079 
Income from digital business  14,666,970  -   

Other Operating Revenue
Fees from training  14,516,117  12,364,382 
SMS income  165,802  249,795 
Income from sale of animations  3,902,991  -   

Total  4,765,616,768  3,894,436,048 
 

23. 	Other Income

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Interest income  78,554,051  42,840,279 
Profit on sale of tangible assets (net)  -    1,274,393 
Provisions / liabilities written back to the extent no longer required  111,343,340  34,527,453 
Lease rentals  32,063,988  32,063,988 
Miscellaneous income  4,939,435  6,282,719 
Total  226,900,814  116,988,832 
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24. 	Production Cost

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Reporting expenses  115,182,141  80,948,529 
Up-linking charges  27,506,243  19,375,393 
Assignment charges  18,547,013  3,681,785 
Production expenses  265,319,930  175,160,804 
Subscription  12,919,119  19,524,565 
Transponder lease rentals  103,844,388  102,540,547 
Programme procurement  1,294,438  7,256,508 
Total  544,613,272  408,488,131 

25. 	Employee Benefits Expense

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Salaries, wages and bonus  1,098,341,166  883,846,786 
Contribution to provident and other funds [refer note (I) below]  39,575,735  35,956,213 
Gratuity [refer note (II) below]  14,197,389  4,339,950 
Employee stock option scheme (refer note 26)  (280,531)  (674,496)
Staff welfare expenses  16,297,512  6,264,858 
Total  1,168,131,271  929,733,311 
	
Particulars Year ended

 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.) 

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.) 

I Defined Contribution Plans
Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
 - Employer's contribution to Provident Fund  29,227,673  29,595,899 
 - Employer's contribution to Employees' Pension Scheme, 1995  10,260,140  6,261,295 
 - Employer's contribution to Employees' State Insurance Scheme  87,922  99,019 
Total  39,575,735   35,956,213 

II Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity) and Other Long-Term Employee Benefit (Compensated Absences)
(A) The assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation to determine the defined benefit and other 

long-term employee benefit obligations are as follows :
As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Discount rate (per annum) 7.80% 9.10%
Rate of increase in compensation levels (per annum) 6.50% 6.50%
Expected rate of return on plan assets (for gratuity - per annum) 8.99% 8.75%
Remaining working lives of employees (years) 22.12 22.56

The expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the 
assessment made at the beginning of the year on the return expected 
on its existing portfolio, along with the estimated increment to the plan 
assets and expected yield on the respective assets in the portfolio during 
the year.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, 
take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, 
such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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(B) Changes in the present value of defined benefit and other long-term employee benefit obligations
(i) Gratuity (Funded)

As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Balance at the beginning of the year 63,490,903 70,612,749
Interest cost  5,777,672  5,649,019 
Current service cost  10,850,629  8,710,302 
Benefits paid (7,383,011) (15,196,092)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation  6,069,259  (6,285,075)
Balance at the end of the year 78,805,452 63,490,903

(ii) Compensated Absences (Unfunded)
As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 55,069,773 68,452,520
Interest cost 3,872,898 5,476,202
Current service cost 8,768,078 8,881,621
Curtailment cost * (12,510,454)  -   
Benefits paid (4,100,474) (8,037,751)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (3,459,505) (19,702,819)
Balance at the end of the year 47,640,316 55,069,773

* Represents reversal of opening balance of provision for sick leave which is not being carried forward beyond 
one accounting year as per Company’s policy with effect from April 1, 2015.

(C) Changes in the fair value of plan assets (for gratuity)
As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 65,750,365 74,952,699
Expected return on plan assets 5,753,157 6,970,601
Actuarial gain / (loss) 487,552 (976,843)
Contributions  8,433,313  -   
Benefits paid (7,383,011) (15,196,092)
Balance at the end of the year 73,041,376 65,750,365

(D) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit and other long-term employee benefit obligation and fair 
value of plan assets
(i) Gratuity (Funded)

As At
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014  March 31, 2013  March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011

Present value of defined 
benefit obligation

78,805,452 63,490,903 70,612,749 63,987,131 58,035,914

Less: Fair value of plan 
assets

73,041,376 65,750,365 74,952,699 69,141,754 60,756,746

Net asset / (liability) 
recognized in balance 
sheet [under long-term 
provisions (refer note 5)]

(5,764,076) Nil * 4,339,950 5,154,623 2,720,832 

 * An amount of Rs. 2,259,462 was not recognized as an asset as no economic benefit was available in the form of 
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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(ii) Compensated Absences (Unfunded)
As At

 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014  March 31, 2013  March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011
Present value of other 
long-term employee 
benefit obligation

47,640,316 55,069,774 68,452,520 67,892,523 68,393,741

Less: Fair value of plan 
assets

 -    -    -    -    -   

Net asset / (liability) 
recognized in balance 
sheet

 (47,640,316)  (55,069,774)  (68,452,520)  (67,892,523)  (68,393,741)

Recognized under :
Long-term provisions  
(refer note 5)

41,132,103 46,022,056

Short-term provisions 
(refer note 9)

6,508,213 9,047,718

Total 47,640,316 55,069,774
(E) Experience Adjustments on Plan Assets and Liabilities

Year ended
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014  March 31, 2013  March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011

Experience adjustments on 
plan assets - (loss) / gain
- Gratuity (funded)  487,552  (976,843)  -    (165,475) -

Experience adjustments on 
plan liabilities - (loss) / gain
- Gratuity (funded)  190,403  1,633,489  (14,801)  (463,223)  78,385 
- Compensated absences 
(unfunded)

 2,977,378  15,428,660  (5,606,157)  8,748,026  1,552,338 

(F) Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(i) Gratuity (Funded)

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014

Current service cost  10,850,629  8,710,302 
Interest cost  5,777,672  5,649,019 
Expected return on plan assets  (5,753,157)  (6,970,601)
Net actuarial (gain) / loss  5,581,707  (5,308,232)
Total expense  16,456,851**  2,080,488* 
* Represents difference between opening net asset (Rs. 4,339,950) and closing net asset (Rs. 2,259,462 
- not recognized as an asset as no economic benefit was available in the form of refunds from the plan or 
reductions in future contributions to the plan).
** Actual expense for the year is Rs. 14,197,389, i.e., lower by Rs. 2,259,462 on account of net asset not 
recognized in the previous year, as mentioned above.

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014

(ii) Compensated Absences (Unfunded)
Current service cost  8,768,078  8,881,621 
Interest cost  3,872,898  5,476,202 
Curtailment cost *  (12,510,454)  -   
Net actuarial (gain) / loss  (3,459,505)  (19,702,819)
Total expense  (3,328,983)  (5,344,996)
* Represents reversal of opening balance of provision for sick leave which is not being carried forward 
beyond one accounting year as per Company’s policy with effect from April 1, 2015.
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(G) Constitution of Plan Assets (for Gratuity)
 As at 

 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014
Total of plan assets *  73,041,376  65,750,365 
* The contribution is made to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and the detailed information of plan 
assets has not been provided by the LIC.

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014

Actual return on plan assets  6,240,709  5,993,758 
(H) Expected Contribution to the funds in the next year 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014

Gratuity  10,214,024  5,971,095 
Compensated absences  9,406,494  8,059,574 

26. 	Employee Stock Option Plan

	 The Company instituted the Employee Stock Option Plan (TVTN ESOP 2006) to grant equity - based incentives to its eligible 
employees. The TVTN ESOP 2006 was approved by the board of directors in their meeting held on 21st August, 2006 and 
by shareholders in their meeting held on 28th September, 2006, for grant of 2,900,000 options, representing one share for 
each option upon exercise by the employees of the Company, at an exercise price determined by the Board / Remuneration 
Committee. The equity shares covered under the scheme shall vest over a period of four years; vesting shall vary based on 
the meeting of the performance criteria. The Optionee may exercise their vested options at any moment after the earliest 
applicable vesting date and prior to the completion of ten years from the grant date.

	 Accordingly, the Company under the intrinsic value method, as permitted by SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share Based 
Payment issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, has recognized the excess of the market price over 
the exercise price of the option amounting to Rs. (-) 280,531 (Previous Year Rs. (-) 674,496) as expense during the year. 
Further, the liability as at March 31, 2015 in respect of Employee Stock Options Outstanding is Rs. 450,000 (Previous Year 
Rs. 3,037,500). The balance deferred compensation expense of Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 101,969) will be amortized over 
the remaining vesting period of options.

	 The movement in the options granted to employees during the year ended March, 31 2015 under the TVTN ESOP 
2006 is set out below:      

First  
Grant

Second 
Grant

Third 
Grant

Fourth 
Grant

Fifth  
Grant

Sixth Grant Seventh 
Grant

Date of grant 1-Dec-06 1-Mar-07 1-Dec-07 24-Jun-08 5-Apr-10 20-May-10 30-Sep-10
Market price on the date of grant of 
underlying equity shares 

Rs. 74.35 Rs. 134.85 Rs. 152.75 Rs. 93.15 Rs. 113.90 Rs. 102.85 Rs. 85.15

Exercise price  
 - 50% of options Rs. 74.35 Rs. 134.85 Rs. 152.75 Rs. 93.15 Rs. 113.90 Rs. 102.85 Rs. 85.15
 - Balance 50% of options * Rs. 44.35 Rs. 104.85 Rs. 122.75 Rs. 63.15    Rs. 83.90 Rs. 72.85 Rs. 55.15
Vesting Period 4 Years 4 Years 4 Years 4 Years 4 Years 4 Years 4 Years
Options outstanding at the beginning of 
the year (nos.)

 25,500  10,000  -    55,000  5,000  7,500  100,000 

Options granted during the year (nos.)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Options forfeited during the year (nos.)  -    -    -    7,500  5,000  -    -   
Options exercised during the year (nos.)  25,500  -    -    35,000  -    -    100,000 
Options expired during the year (nos.)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Options outstanding at the end of the 
year (nos.)

 -   10,000  -    12,500  -   7,500  -   

Options exercisable at the end of the 
year (nos.)

 -    10,000  -    12,500  -    7,500  -   

* Maximum discount of Rs. 30, which may vary between Rs. 0 to Rs. 30 based on employee’s performance
Weighted average exercise price for stock options exercised during the year : Rs. 71.44 per equity share.
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	 The fair value of options (as determined by an independent valuer) granted under the TVTN ESOP 2006 is estimated 
on the date of grant using Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:

Date of Grant 1-Dec-06 1-Mar-07 1-Dec-07 24-Jun-08 5-Apr-10 20-May-10 30-Sep-10

Risk free interest rate 7.35% 7.87% 8.07% 8.83% 8.09% 7.94% 8.10%
Expected life of options * 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
Expected volatility ** 48.28% 55.44% 51.27% 58.35% 54.44% 52.40% 43.13%
Dividend yield 1.01% 0.56% 0.49% 0.83% 0.66% 0.74% 0.89%

* Expected life is taken as the aggregate of the vesting and exercise period.
** Expected volatility is determined on the basis of the “share price-volume data” available at www.nseindia.com
The Company’s net profit and earnings per share would have been as under, had the compensation cost for 
employees’ stock options been recognized based on the fair value at the date of grant in accordance with Black-
Scholes model.

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Profit after tax (Rs.)  810,327,552  613,180,451 
Less: Additional employee compensation cost based on fair value  284,264  1,609,765 
Profit after tax as per Fair Value Method  810,043,288  611,570,686 

Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic

Number of shares  59,574,539  59,460,844 
Basic EPS as reported (Rs.) (Refer note 33)  13.60  10.31 
Proforma Basic EPS (Rs.)  13.60  10.29 

Diluted 
Number of shares  59,578,758  59,495,326 
Diluted EPS as reported (Rs.) (Refer note 33)  13.60  10.31 
Proforma Diluted EPS (Rs.)  13.60  10.28 

27. 	Finance Costs

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Interest on long-term borrowings  12,729,627  31,638,506 
Interest on short-term borrowings  89,871  500,344 
Interest on shortfall of advance tax  -    2,113,091 
Other borrowing costs  1,954,013  1,649,486 
Total  14,773,511  35,901,427 

28. 	Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Depreciation on tangible assets  240,113,455  216,902,240 
Amortisation on intangible assets  60,107,282  24,892,441 
Total  300,220,737  241,794,681 
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29. 	Other Expenses

Particulars Year ended

 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.) 

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.) 

Advertising, distribution and sales promotion  929,578,072  812,457,581 
Power and fuel  78,972,415  74,713,214 
Rent  48,620,015  48,018,764 
Repairs to building  1,243,079  1,689,222 
Repairs to machinery  46,326,895  45,430,231 
Repairs - others  16,618,298  15,352,665 
Insurance  16,606,404  13,873,431 
Rates and taxes  14,569,412  1,744,416 
Travelling expenses  137,940,235  93,286,126 
Payment to auditors (excluding service tax)

As auditor:
Audit fee  3,500,000  3,500,000 
Tax audit fee  300,000  300,000 
Other services  1,500,000  1,500,000 
Reimbursement of expenses  528,112  509,603 

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities  9,325,944  -   
Legal and professional fees  41,130,360  27,673,831 
Printing and stationery  5,187,284  3,693,594 
Communication expenses  32,836,247  24,872,718 
Car hire charges  70,139,101  60,251,614 
Housekeeping  52,690,864  47,923,145 
Vehicle running and maintenance  3,255,312  4,333,869 
Agency incentive  74,517,875  35,391,786 
Freight and courier  3,229,564  3,186,868 
Guard services  22,170,854  20,408,754 
Newspapers and periodicals  7,992,295  7,106,545 
Business promotion  13,392,295  9,593,188 
Software expenses  3,367,317  3,364,247 
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation  671,502  5,125,046 
Net loss on sale of tangible assets  88,456  -   
Fixed assets written off  1,473,320  -   
Provision for doubtful debts and advances  86,217,400  91,020,876 
Bad debts  1,260,430  -   
Miscellaneous expenses  10,758,426  7,177,759 
Total  1,736,007,783  1,463,499,093 
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30. 	CIF Value of Imports

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Capital goods  45,536,119  12,928,839 
Total  45,536,119  12,928,839 

31. 	Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Foreign travel  15,759,008  6,749,646 
Production cost  129,125,107  120,583,023 
Repair and maintenance  15,085,838  2,664,361 
Other expenses  21,040,105  3,740,673 
Total 181,010,058  133,737,703

32. 	Earnings in Foreign Currency

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Advertisement income  65,189,164  53,535,124 
Subscription income  59,374,918  52,468,078 
Total  124,564,082  106,003,202 

33. 	Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Basic
Profit after tax (Rs.) A  810,327,552  613,180,451 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding B  59,574,539  59,460,844 
Basic EPS (Rs.) A / B  13.60  10.31 
Diluted
Profit after tax (Rs.) A  810,327,552  613,180,451 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding B  59,574,539  59,460,844 
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of 
employee stock options

C  4,219  34,482 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding for diluted EPS D 
(B+C)

 59,578,758  59,495,326 

Diluted EPS (Rs.) A / D  13.60  10.31 
Face value per share (Rs.)   5  5
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Other Disclosures

34. 	Investments

	 The following table includes the classification of investments in accordance with AS 13, Accounting for Investments :
Particulars As at

 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.) 

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.) 

Long Term Investments
1,50,000 equity shares (previous year 1,50,000) of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up held in 
T.V. Today Network (Business) Limited

 1,500,000  1,500,000 

10,510,510 equity shares (previous year 10,510,510) of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 
held in Mail Today Newspapers Private Limited (refer note 40)

 455,212,482  455,212,482

Total investments  456,712,482  456,712,482 
Disclosed Under:
Non-current investments (Refer note 12)  456,712,482  456,712,482 
Total  456,712,482  456,712,482 

35. 	Segment Reporting

	 The Company has considered the business segment as the primary reporting segment on the basis that the risks and 
returns of the Company are primarily determined by the nature of services. Consequently, the geographical segment has 
been considered as a secondary segment.

	 The business segments have been identified on the basis of :
	 - the nature of services
	 - the risks and returns
	 - internal organization and management structure and
	 - the internal performance reporting systems

	 The business segments comprise of the following :
	  - Television Broadcasting
	  - Radio Broadcasting
	 The Company has determined its operations in India as its single reportable geographical segment.
Particulars As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014

Television 
Broadcasting

Radio 
Broadcasting

Total Television 
Broadcasting

Radio 
Broadcasting

Total

Segment revenue
Advertisement income  4,198,915,684  154,770,034  4,353,685,718  3,395,565,685  153,788,107  3,549,353,792 
Subscription income  378,679,170  -    378,679,170  332,468,079  -    332,468,079 
Income from digital 
business

 14,666,970  -    14,666,970  -    -    -   

Other operating income  18,584,910  -    18,584,910  12,614,177  -    12,614,177 
Other allocable income  139,229,401  9,117,362  148,346,763  74,166,212  (17,659)  74,148,553 

Segment result - profit 
/ (loss)

 1,267,116,150  (92,799,738)  1,174,316,412  1,037,451,346  (112,381,961)  925,069,385 

Unallocated corporate 
expenses

 (9,325,944)  -   

Interest expense  (14,773,511)  (35,901,427)
Interest income  78,554,051  42,840,279 
Profit before tax  1,228,771,008  932,008,237 
Income tax expense  (418,443,456)  (318,827,786)
Profit after tax  810,327,552  613,180,451 
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Particulars As at March 31, 2015 As at March 31, 2014
Television 

Broadcasting
Radio 

Broadcasting
Total Television 

Broadcasting
Radio 

Broadcasting
Total

Other information
Segment assets  5,013,545,651  171,034,374  5,184,580,025  4,435,531,649  212,810,806  4,648,342,455 
Unallocated corporate 
assets

 1,410,753,454  1,038,277,018 

Advance tax (net of 
provision)

 260,955,299  287,954,554 

Deferred tax assets (net)  157,315,341  157,040,057 
Less: inter-segment 
assets

 1,189,480,374  1,145,464,245 

Total assets   5,824,123,745  4,986,149,839 

Segment liabilities  1,055,091,111  1,282,289,807  2,337,380,918  883,912,834  1,211,865,069  2,095,777,903 
Unallocated corporate 
liabilities

 176,591,489  245,205,779 

Shareholders’ funds  4,499,631,712  3,790,630,402 
Less: Inter-segment 
liabilities

 1,189,480,374  1,145,464,245 

Total liabilities   5,824,123,745  4,986,149,839 

Capital expenditure  529,982,583  5,852,632  535,835,215  117,112,278  1,052,620  118,164,898 
Depreciation and 
amortisation included in 
segment expense

 273,696,866  26,523,871  300,220,737  213,999,206  27,795,475  241,794,681 

Non-cash expenditure 
other than 
depreciation and 
amortization included 
in segment expense

 59,876,120  26,060,749  85,936,869  70,651,985  19,694,395  90,346,380 

36. 	Related Party Disclosures

(a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship 
(i) Where control exists:

Holding company: Living Media India Limited 

Ultimate holding company: World Media Private Limited (Refer Note - a)
Subsidiary: T.V. Today Network (Business) Limited 

(Refer Note - b)
(ii) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Fellow subsidiaries: Thomson Press (India) Limited
Today Merchandise Private Limited
Radio Today Broadcasting Limited
Mail Today Newspapers Private Limited
World Media Trading Limited
ITAS Media Private Limited
Today Retail Network Private Limited

Key management personnel (KMP): Mr. Aroon Purie (Managing Director)
Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet (Whole Time Director)

Entity over which Key Management Personnel (KMP)
exercise significant influence

Care Today Fund
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(b) Transactions / Balances Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries KMP Entity over which KMP 
exercise significant 

influence
March 31, 

2015
March 31, 

2014
March 31, 

2015
March 31, 

2014
March 31, 

2015
March 31, 

2014
March 31, 

2015
March 31, 

2014
Purchase of advertisement 
space / material (refer note c)

 39,602,500  17,440,000  16,656,552  -    -    -    -    -   

Advertisement income (refer 
notes c and d)

106,136,845  43,990,781  6,058,677  4,098,881  -    -    -    -   

Agency commission paid (refer 
note c)

 16,134,788  6,934,610  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Income from digital business 
(refer note c)

 16,479,808  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Transfer of proportionate share 
of revenue from composite 
contracts

 -    -    11,950,000  -    -    -    -    -   

Interest free security deposit 
paid

 1,045,500  592,427  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Management fee paid (refer 
note c)

 20,149,896  674,160  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Purchase of India Today diaries 
(refer note c)

 189,280  540,924  -    -    -    -    -    -   

IPTV income shared with 
related party (refer note c)

 1,129,164  3,614,501  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Income from sale of online 
T.V. Today Media Institute 
prospectus (refer note c)

 581,747  194,483  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Purchase of fixed assets (refer 
note c)

435,395,000  165,285  23,630  22,416  -    -    -    -   

Sale of fixed assets  -    1,007,415  -    -    -    -    -    -   
SMS income (refer note c)  186,296  280,670  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Expenditure towards Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) 
activities and other donations

 -    -    -    -    -    -    11,080,344  -   

Rent charged by related parties 
for use of common facilities / 
utilities (refer notes c and d)

 21,629,806  19,428,191  374,435  360,822  -    -    -    -   

Rent charged to related parties 
for use of common facilities / 
utilities (refer note c)

 52,408,694  51,958,956  9,997,452  9,910,464  -    -    -    -   

Miscellaneous inter-company 
services received from related 
parties and other charges paid

 4,720,477  3,355,046  2,626,669  2,422,267  -    -    -    -   

Miscellaneous inter-company 
services rendered to related 
parties and other charges 
received

 1,479,207  3,940,136  205,992  402,430  -    -    1,160  -   

Remuneration/commission paid  -    -    -    -    77,270,828  58,040,488  -    -   
Dividend paid  33,954,333  25,465,750  -    -    211,374  157,351  -    -   
Balance as at year end
Trade payables  8,754,125  11,879,753  13,440,020  1,463,142  -    -    -    -   
Other current liabilities  -    -    -    -    67,339,415  51,851,334  -    -   
Trade receivables 153,516,854  78,712,723  9,240,004  12,830,517  -    -    -    -   

Notes:-
a	 There were no transactions during the year and previous year except dividend amounting to Rs. 1,666 (previous year Rs. 1,250) paid during 

the year.
b	 Expenses paid on behalf of subsidiary, recoverable as at balance sheet date Rs. 56,788 (previous year Rs. 395,225).
c	 The figures include sales tax / service tax, as applicable.
d	 Advertisement income from and rent paid to holding company include Rs. 53,782,631 (previous year Rs. 23,115,362) and Rs. 3,535,617 

(previous year Rs. 3,535,617) respectively arising out of a transaction with a third party pursuant to the contract entered into by the holding 
company with the said third party.
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(c)	 Disclosure in respect of transactions which are more than 10% of the total transactions of the same type with 
related parties

Particulars Transactions  
(Rs.)

Balance Receivable / (Payable) 
(Rs.)

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
(i) Purchase of advertisement 

space / material
Fellow subsidiary: Mail Today 
Newspapers Private Limited

 16,656,552  -    (4,726,456)  10,675,033 

(ii) Transfer of proportionate 
share of revenue from 
composite contracts
Fellow subsidiary: Mail Today 
Newspapers Private Limited

 11,950,000  -    -    -   

(iii) Rent charged to related 
parties for use of common 
facilities / utilities
Fellow subsidiary: Mail Today 
Newspapers Private Limited

 9,997,452  9,910,464  -    -   

(iv) Miscellaneous inter-company 
services received from related 
parties and other charges paid
Fellow subsidiary: Thomson 
Press (India) Limited

 2,537,589  2,042,761  (377,170)  (1,276,937)

(v) Remuneration paid #
Aroon Purie  67,084,720  49,438,641  (64,229,015)  (49,259,334)
Koel Purie Rinchet  10,186,108  8,601,847  (3,110,000)  (2,592,000)
(#) As gratuity and compensated absences are computed for all the employees in aggregate, the amounts 

amounts relating to the key management personnel cannot be individually identified.

37. 	Operating Leases

	 As a lessee:

	 The Company has cancellable and non-cancellable lease arrangements mainly for office premises and company leased 
accommodation for employees. These lease arrangements range for a period between 11 months and 10 years. Most of 
the leases are renewable for further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses. The operating 
lease payments recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss amount to Rs. 48,620,015 (previous year Rs. 48,018,764).

	 With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:-

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Not later than one year	  22,323,828  26,252,182 
Later than one year and not later than five years  45,800,903  71,966,927 
Later than five years  -    11,585,788 
Total  68,124,731  109,804,897 

	 As a lessor:

	 The Company has given a part of Noida office building on cancellable operating lease to two parties. These lease 
arrangements have been entered for a period of ten years from March 1, 2014. The lease arrangements are renewable for 
further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses.
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38.	 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure 

	 The Company does not have any derivative instruments. The particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the 
Balance Sheet date are as follows:

Particulars Currency
 As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

Amount (FC) Exchange Rate Amount (FC) Exchange Rate
Other current liabilities Euro  -    -    187,550  82.57 

USD  424,475  62.59  170,233  60.09 
Trade receivables GBP  195,810  92.45  177,388  99.85 

Euro  433  67.51  433  82.57 
AED  6,402  17.02  7,372  16.26 
AUD  17,488  48.07  21,041  55.25 
CAD  20,953  49.45  9,190  54.01 
USD  349,023  62.59  342,445  60.09 

39. 	Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

	 Based on information available with the Company, there are no outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises as at March 
31, 2015. No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

40.	 The Company as a strategic decision considered entering into the print media and, accordingly, acquired in earlier years 
some stake in Mail Today Newspapers Private Limited (Mail Today), a differentiated newspaper with respect to content as 
well as value to its advertisers. Based on the valuation of the equity shares of Mail Today, carried out by an independent 
valuer, the Company acquired the shares through direct subscription and also through purchase from existing shareholders 
at a cost of Rs. 455,212,482. Though, Mail Today is presently incurring losses, the Company is confident of its long-term 
strategic value and it has also received a guarantee from its holding company, Living Media India Limited, for indemnifying 
any loss to the Company arising from the sale of the said investment, based on which the carrying value of the said 
investment is considered appropriate.

41.	 The Company has decided to enter into digital news space to tap significant growth potential and business opportunity in 
digital news industry. Consequently, the Company has acquired digital rights of its news channels from its holding company, 
Living Media India Limited, for a consideration of Rs. 387,500,000. Such consideration has been recognized as an intangible 
asset (refer note 11), to be amortized over a period of 10 years.

42.	 Previous Year Figures

Previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to this year’s classification.

For Price Waterhouse		  For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 	
Sougata Mukherjee	 Dr. Puneet Jain	 Ashok Kapur 	 Aroon Purie
Partner	 Head - Legal and Compliances,	 Director 	 Chairman and
Membership No. 57084	 Company Secretary and	 	 Managing Director 
	 Vice President - Internal Audit

	 Dinesh Bhatia
	 Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gurgaon	 Place : Noida
Date : May 12, 2015	 Date : May 12, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Members of T.V. Today Network Limited 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

1.	 We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements of T.V. Today Network Limited 
(“hereinafter referred to as the Holding Company”) and 
its subsidiary  (the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
together referred to as “the Group”), (refer Note 1(b) 
to the attached consolidated financial statements), 
comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2015, the consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information prepared 
based on the relevant records (hereinafter referred to as 
“the Consolidated Financial Statements”). 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

2.	 The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 
for the preparation of these consolidated financial 
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give 
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, 
consolidated financial performance and consolidated 
cash flows of the Group in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in India including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is also 
responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including 
financial information considered necessary for the 
preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements. The 
respective Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group 
respectively and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; the selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which has been used for 
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as 
aforesaid. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. 
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder 
including the accounting standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report.

4.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act 
and other applicable authoritative pronouncements 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
Those Standards and pronouncements require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

5.	 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to 
the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view, in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on whether the Holding Company has an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting in place and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 
the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements.

6.	 We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

7.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2015, and 
their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash 
flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

8. 	 We draw attention to Note 40 of the financial statements 
regarding the carrying value of investment in Mail Today 
Newspapers Private Limited (Mail Today) amounting to 
Rs. 455,212,482, which is considered appropriate by 
the management based on the guarantee received from 
the holding company, Living Media India Limited, for 
indemnifying any loss to the Company arising from the 
sale of the said investment. The appropriateness of the 
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carrying value of the said investment is dependent on 
the continuance of the guarantee till the date of sale of 
investment and availability of funds to indemnify the loss. 
Our conclusion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2015 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the 
Act, based on the comments in the auditors’ reports of the 
Holding company and subsidiary company, incorporated 
in India, (Refer Note 1(b) to the consolidated financial 
statements), we give in the Annexure a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable.

10.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to 
the extent applicable, that:

	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit 
of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law maintained by the Holding Company, and its 
subsidiary included in the Group, including relevant 
records relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept 
so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books and records of the Holding Company and the 
subsidiary company.

	 (c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 
are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account maintained by the Holding Company and 
its subsidiary included in the Group, including 
relevant records relating to the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors of the Holding Company as on 
31st March, 2015 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors of the Holding Company and the report 
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, 
incorporated in India, none of the directors of 
the Group companies, incorporated in India, is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of 
the Act.

	 (f)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:

		  i.	 The consolidated financial statements disclose 
the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at 
March 31, 2015 on the consolidated financial 
position of the Group – Refer Note 19 to the 
consolidated financial statements.

		  ii.	 The Group did not have any derivative contracts 
and in respect of other long-term contracts, 
there are no material foreseeable losses as at 
March 31, 2015.

		  iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring 
amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Holding Company and its subsidiary company, 
incorporated in India, during the year ended 
March 31, 2015.

				  
			   For Price Waterhouse
			   Firm Registration N0.: 301112E
			   Chartered Accountants

			   Sd/-
			   Sougata Mukherjee 
Place: Gurgaon 	 Partner
Date: May 12, 2015	 Membership Number 57084
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Annexure to Independent Auditors’ 
Report

Referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors’ 
Report of even date to the members of T.V. Today Network 
Limited on the consolidated financial statements as of and for 
the year ended March 31, 2015 

i. 	 (a)	 The Holding Company is maintaining proper records 
showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation, of fixed assets.

		  The subsidiary, incorporated in India, did not hold 
any fixed assets during the year ended March 
31, 2015.  Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i) of 
the Order are not applicable to the subsidiary.

	 (b)	 The fixed assets are physically verified by the 
Management of the Holding Company according 
to a phased programme designed to cover all the 
items over a period of three years which, in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the aforesaid Holding Company and the nature of 
its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion 
of the fixed assets has been physically verified by 
the Management of the aforesaid Holding Company 
during the year and no material discrepancies have 
been noticed on such verification. 

		  The subsidiary, incorporated in India, did not hold 
any fixed assets during the year ended March 
31, 2015.  Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(i) of 
the Order are not applicable to the subsidiary.

ii. 	 The Holding Company and its subsidiary, incorporated 
in India, are in the business of rendering services, and 
consequently, does not hold any inventory.  Therefore, 
the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not 
applicable to such Holding Company and its subsidiary.  

iii.  	The Holding Company and its subsidiary, incorporated 
in India, have not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered 
in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. 
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a) and (iii)
(b) of the said Order are not applicable to the aforesaid 
Holding Company and its subsidiary.

iv. 	 In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, there is an adequate internal 
control system commensurate with the size of the 
Holding Company and the nature of its business for the 
purchase of fixed assets and for the sale of services. 
The Company’s operations do not involve purchase of 
inventory and sale of goods. Further, on the basis of our 
examination of the books and records of the aforesaid 

Holding Company, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, we have neither come across, 
nor have been informed of, any continuing failure to 
correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal 
control system. 

	 The subsidiary, incorporated in India, has not purchased 
any inventory or fixed asset and has also not sold any 
good or service during the year ended March 31, 2015. 
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the said 
Order are not applicable to the subsidiary.

v.	 The Holding Company and its subsidiary, incorporated 
in India, have not accepted any deposits from the public 
within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of 
the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent 
notified.

vi.	 We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
maintained by the Holding Company, incorporated 
in India, in respect of products where, pursuant to the 
rules made by the Central Government of India, the 
maintenance of cost records has been specified under  
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, and based 
on such review, are of the opinion that, prima facie, the 
prescribed accounts and records have been made and 
maintained.  We have not, however, made a detailed 
examination of the records with a view to determine 
whether they are accurate or complete. 

	 The Central Government of India has not specified the 
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of 
Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the 
subsidiary.	

vii.  (a) 	 In our opinion, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us and the records of 
the Holding Company and the subsidiary company, 
incorporated in India, examined by us, the Holding 
Company and its subsidiary are regular in depositing 
the undisputed statutory dues, including provident 
fund,  employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales 
tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty 
of excise, value added tax, cess and other material 
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate 
authorities. 	

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and the records of the Holding Company and 
subsidiary company, incorporated in India, examined 
by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, 
wealth-tax, duty of  customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, cess, which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute. The particulars of dues of 
service tax as at March 31, 2015, which have not 
been deposited on account of a dispute, are as 
follows:-

Console 2015_3(82-113).indd   84 7/20/2015   6:35:33 PM



T.V. Today Network Limited

	 ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15	 85

T.V. Today Network Limited

	 (c)	 The amount required to be transferred to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding 
Company has been transferred within the 
stipulated time in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made 
thereunder.

		  There are no amounts required to be transferred 
by the subsidiary company, incorporated in India, 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder.

viii.	 The Holding Company and its subsidiary, incorporated 
in India, have no accumulated losses as at the end of 
the financial year and they have not incurred any cash 
losses in the financial year ended on that date or in the 
immediately preceding financial year.

ix.	 According to the records of the Holding Company 
examined by us and the information and explanation 
given to us, the Holding Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or 
debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

	 As the subsidiary, incorporated in India, does not have 
any borrowings from any financial institution or bank 
nor have they issued any debentures as at the balance 
sheet date, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order 
are not applicable to the aforesaid subsidiary.

x.	 In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Holding Company and 
its subsidiary, incorporated in India, have not given 
any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or 

financial institutions during the year. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(x) of the Order are not applicable 
to the aforesaid Holding Company and its subsidiary.

xi.	 In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the term loans obtained by 
the Holding Company have been applied, on an overall 
basis, for the purposes for which they were obtained. 

	 The subsidiary, incorporated in India, has not raised any 
term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of 
the Order are not applicable to the aforesaid subsidiary.

xii.	 During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Holding Company carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, 
and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud on or by the Holding Company and its 
subsidiary, incorporated in India, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such 
case by the respective Managements of the aforesaid 
Holding Company and its subsidiary.

For Price Waterhouse
			   Firm Registration N0.: 301112E
			   Chartered Accountants

			   Sd/-
			   Sougata Mukherjee 
Place: Gurgaon 	 Partner
Date: May 12, 2015	 Membership Number 57084

Name of the 
Company

Relationship Name of the 
statute

Nature of 
dues

Amount (Rs.) Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum where 
the dispute is 
pending

T.V. Today 
Network 
Limited

Holding 
Company

Finance Act, 
1994

Service tax Rs. 93,804,477 
(including 
interest of Rs. 
35,239,126 
and penalty 
of Rs. 
28,072,911)

F.Y. 2006-07 
to F.Y. 2011-
12

Customs, 
Excise and 
Service Tax 
Appellate 
Tribunal
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Balance Sheet (Consolidated) as at March 31, 2015
As at  

Note
March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Equity and Liabilities

Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 2  298,243,075  297,440,575 
Reserves and surplus 3  4,201,829,191  3,493,611,965 
Sub - total  4,500,072,266  3,791,052,540 
Non-current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities 4  17,849,059  18,427,625 
Long-term provisions 5  109,180,155  105,701,870 
Sub - total  127,029,214  124,129,495 
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 6  67,258,112  -   
Trade payables 7  676,404,013  516,996,283 
Other current liabilities 8  339,691,277  475,612,158 
Short-term provisions 9  114,223,487  78,895,572 
Sub - total 1,197,576,889  1,071,504,013 
Total  5,824,678,369  4,986,686,048 
Assets
Non-current assets
Fixed assets

Tangible assets 10  1,975,720,996  2,105,881,722 
Intangible assets 11  376,524,553  45,098,225 
Capital work-in-progress  30,807,185  19,169,644 

Non-current investments 12  455,212,482  455,212,482 
Deferred tax assets (net) 13  157,315,341  157,040,057 
Long-term loans and advances 14  62,880,068  55,922,623 
Sub - total  3,058,460,625  2,838,324,753 
Current assets
Trade receivables 15  1,405,766,616  1,103,094,583 
Cash and bank balances 16  947,188,556  572,631,908 
Short-term loans and advances 17  398,534,937  465,803,029 
Other current assets 18  14,727,635  6,831,775 
Sub - total  2,766,217,744  2,148,361,295 
Total  5,824,678,369  4,986,686,048 
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse		  For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 	
Sougata Mukherjee	 Dr. Puneet Jain	 Ashok Kapur 	 Aroon Purie
Partner	 Head - Legal and Compliances,	 Director 	 Chairman and
Membership No. 57084	 Company Secretary and	 	 Managing Director 
	 Vice President - Internal Audit

	 Dinesh Bhatia
	 Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gurgaon	 Place : Noida
Date   : May 12, 2015	 Date   : May 12, 2015
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T.V. Today Network Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss (Consolidated) for the year ended March 31, 2015

 Note

  Year ended

 March 31, 2015 
Amount (Rs.)

March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.)

Revenue from operations 22  4,765,616,768  3,894,436,048 
Other income 23  227,077,161  117,198,146 
Total revenue  4,992,693,929  4,011,634,194 
Expenses:
Production cost 24  544,613,272  408,488,131 
Employee benefits expense 25  1,168,131,271  929,733,311 
Finance costs 27  14,776,134  35,905,346 
Depreciation and amortization expense 28  300,220,737  241,794,681 
Other expenses 29  1,736,108,600  1,463,570,619 
Total expenses  3,763,850,014  3,079,492,088 
Profit before tax  1,228,843,915  932,142,106 
Tax expense
Current tax [including Rs. 17,603,228  
(previous year Rs. 2,255,162) relating to earlier year]

 416,157,717  308,300,042 

Deferred tax [including Rs. (-) 18,000,541  
(previous year Rs. 556,047) relating to earlier year]

 2,340,230  10,592,422 

Profit for the year  810,345,968  613,249,642 
Earnings per equity share: 
[Nominal value per share: Rs. 5 (Previous Year Rs. 5)]

33

Basic  13.60  10.31 
Diluted  13.60  10.31 
The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse		  For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 	
Sougata Mukherjee	 Dr. Puneet Jain	 Ashok Kapur 	 Aroon Purie
Partner	 Head - Legal and Compliances,	 Director 	 Chairman and
Membership No. 57084	 Company Secretary and	 	 Managing Director 
	 Vice President - Internal Audit

	 Dinesh Bhatia
	 Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gurgaon	 Place : Noida
Date : May 12, 2015	 Date : May 12, 2015
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T.V. Today Network Limited

Cash Flow Statement (consolidated) For the year ended March 31, 2015
Year ended

March 31, 2015 
Amount (Rs.)

March 31, 2014 
Amount (Rs.)

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxation 1,228,843,915 932,142,106 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation 240,113,455 216,902,240 
Amortisation 60,107,282 24,892,441 
Employee stock option scheme (280,531) (674,496)
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 86,217,400 91,020,876 
Provisions / Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required (111,343,340) (34,527,453)
Provision for wealth tax 353,029 249,734 
Loss / (profit) on sale of tangible assets (net) 88,456 (1,274,393)
Fixed assets written off 1,473,320  -   
Interest income (78,730,398) (43,049,593)
Interest and other finance costs 14,776,134 35,905,346 
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,441,618,722 1,221,586,808 
Changes in working capital: 
Increase / (decrease) in other long-term liabilities (1,598,822) (14,154,818)
Increase / (decrease) in long-term provisions 3,478,285 (79,160)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 228,128,765 (53,074,828)
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities 68,581,403 119,023,256 
Increase / (decrease) in short-term provisions (2,539,505) (1,900,209)
(Increase) / decrease in long-term loans and advances (2,141,309) (16,184,010)
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (338,324,605) (229,360,178)
(Increase) / decrease in other bank balances (267,735,508) (183,120)
(Increase) / decrease in short-term loans and advances 40,276,168 109,548,038 
(Increase) / decrease in other current assets (1,198,917) 8,965,467 
Cash generated from operations 1,168,544,677 1,144,187,246 
Taxes paid (net of refunds) (389,415,067) (339,004,047)
Net cash generated from operating activities 779,129,610 805,183,199 

B. Cash flow from investing activities 

Purchase of tangible / intangible assets (571,311,000) (80,454,986)
Sale of tangible assets 4,342,097 9,861,780 
Interest received  73,637,989 40,166,032 
Net cash used in investing activities (493,330,914) (30,427,174)
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T.V. Today Network Limited

Cash Flow Statement (consolidated) For the year ended March 31, 2015
Year ended

March 31, 2015 
Amount (Rs.)

March 31, 2014 
Amount (Rs.)

C. Cash flow from financing activities 

Proceeds from share allotment under employee stock option 
scheme 

11,466,175 1,869,525 

Proceeds from long-term borrowings  -    -   
Repayments of long-term borrowings (172,800,000) (162,000,000)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings  67,258,112  -   
Repayment of short-term borrowings  -   (266,895,653)
Interest and other finance costs (15,252,411) (36,187,039)
Dividend paid (59,529,228) (44,583,858)
Dividend distribution tax  (10,120,202) (7,578,489)
Net cash used in financing activities (178,977,554) (515,375,514)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 106,821,142 259,380,511 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 549,240,942 289,860,431 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 656,062,084 549,240,942 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: 

Cash on hand 1,132,129 570,782 
Cheques on hand  -   2,349,991 
Bank balances 

In current accounts  153,948,275 286,320,169 
Term deposits (less than 3 months maturity) 500,981,680 260,000,000 

Total 656,062,084 549,240,942 

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse		  For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 	
Sougata Mukherjee	 Dr. Puneet Jain	 Ashok Kapur 	 Aroon Purie
Partner	 Head - Legal and Compliances,	 Director 	 Chairman and
Membership No. 57084	 Company Secretary and	 	 Managing Director 
	 Vice President - Internal Audit

	 Dinesh Bhatia
	 Chief Financial Officer

Place : Gurgaon	 Place : Noida
Date   : May 12, 2015	 Date   : May 12, 2015
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

1. 	 Significant Accounting Policies 

a.	 Basis of Preparation 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in 
India under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, till the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto are 
prescribed by Central Government in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial Reporting Authority, 
the existing Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to apply. Consequently, these 
financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under 
Section 211(3C) [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services provided, the Company has 
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current – non current classification of assets and liabilities.

b.	 Principles of consolidation
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group and are not consolidated from 
the date that control ceases. The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been consolidated on 
a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Intra-group balances and 
intra-group transactions and resulting unrealized profits have been eliminated.
These financial statements represent consolidated financial statements of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, 
incorporated in India, as follows:

Entity Relationship Shareholding as at 

March 31, 2015

Shareholding as at

March 31, 2014
T.V. Today Network (Business) Limited Subsidiary 100% 100%

c.	 Tangible Assets
Tangible assets are stated at their original cost and include all expenses relating to acquisition and installation. 
Losses arising from the retirement of, and gains and losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at 
cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d.	 Intangible Assets
Acquired intangible assets expected to provide future enduring benefits are stated at their original cost and include all 
expenses relating to acquisition and installation.

e.	 Depreciation / Amortisation
•	 Depreciation on tangible assets (other than leasehold land, leasehold improvements, continuous process plant and 

machinery and vehicles) is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives 
of the assets as prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

	 Till last year, depreciation on these assets used to be provided for at the rates mentioned in Schedule XIV of the 
Companies Act, 1956. Had the earlier years’ basis been followed, depreciation for the year would have been lower 
by Rs. 48,803,683. Further, based on the transitional provisions as per Note 7(b) of Schedule II of such Act, an 
amount of Rs. 5,079,444 (net of deferred tax of Rs. 2,615,514) has been adjusted against opening balance of 
retained earnings.

•	 Leasehold land is depreciated over the period of the lease.
•	 Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lease term or their useful life (based on a technical evaluation), 

whichever is shorter.
•	 Continuous process plant and machinery are depreciated over the useful life of 9.67 years, based on a technical 

evaluation.
•	 Vehicles are depreciated over the useful life of 5 years on straight-line method, based on a technical evaluation.
•	 Assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated over a period of 12 months.
•	 Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, as follows:-

a.	 Computer software are depreciated over a period of three years.
b.	 Production software are depreciated over a period of three years.
c.	 CTI sites BECIL are depreciated over the license period of ten years.
d.	 Digital rights of news channels are depreciated over a period of ten years.
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

f.	 Revenue Recognition
Advertisement and digital business income is recognized for the period for which services have been provided and for 
which there is certainty of ultimate collection. Subscription income is recognized on the basis of terms of contract with 
the distributors. Fee from training is recognized over the duration of the course offered by the media institute of the 
Company.

g.	 Interest Income 
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable.

h.	 Investments

Long-term investments are stated at cost of acquisition. Provision is made for diminution, other than temporary, in the 
carrying value thereof, in valuation of investments. Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value.

i.	 Employee Benefits

(a)	 Short Term Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the period during which the services have been rendered.

(b)	 Long Term Employee Benefits
	  i)	 Defined Contribution Plans

Company’s contributions to Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance Scheme and Employee Pension 
Scheme, which are Defined Contribution Plans, are expensed to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual 
basis. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions to the 
respective government funds.

	 (ii)	G ratuity (Defined Benefit Plan) and Compensated Absences (Other Long- Term Employee Benefits)
The Company provides for the liability at year end as per actuarial valuation carried out by an independent 
actuary as per the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments 
and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss as income or expense.
The Gratuity Plan of the Company provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or on 
termination of employment, based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. Gratuity 
Fund is recognized by the income tax authorities and is administered and managed by the Life Insurance 
Corporation of India (“LIC”).

(iii)	 Termination benefits are recognized as an expense immediately. 
j.	 Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign exchange transactions during the year are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. 
Gains or losses arising out of fluctuations in exchange rate between transaction date and settlement date are recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Monetary Assets and Liabilities are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the year end and the resultant gain / 
loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

k.	 Taxes on Income
Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, is included in determining the net profit for the year. 
Current tax is determined based on liability computed in accordance with relevant tax rates and tax laws.
Deferred tax is recognized for all timing differences arising between accounting income and taxable income and is 
measured at the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. 
Deferred tax assets are carried forward to the extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable profits 
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed 
depreciation or brought forward losses are recognized to the extent of virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable 
profits will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

l.	 Leases
As a lessee:
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.  
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

As a lessor:
The Company has leased a tangible asset and such leases where the Company has substantially retained all the risks 
and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Lease income on such operating leases are recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term which is representative of the time pattern 
in which benefit derived from the use of the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs are recognized as an expense 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

m.	 Earnings Per Share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

n.	 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of the cost of 
that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

o.	 Employee Stock Based Compensation 

The Company calculates the employee stock compensation expense based on the intrinsic value method wherein the 
excess of market price of underlying equity shares as on the date of the grant of options over the exercise price of the 
options given to employees under the Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company, is recognized as deferred 
stock compensation expense and is amortized over the vesting period on the basis of generally accepted accounting 
principles in accordance with the guidelines of Securities and Exchange Board of India and guidance note issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

p.	 Provisions and Contingencies

Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is more likely than 
not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. These 
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. A disclosure for contingent 
liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that probably will not require an outflow of 
resource or where a reliable estimate of obligation cannot be made.

q.	 Impairment of Assets

Management periodically assesses using, external and internal sources, whether there is an indication that an asset 
may be impaired. Impairment occurs where the carrying value exceeds the present value of future cash flows expected 
to arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal. The impairment loss to be expensed is determined 
as the excess of the carrying amount over the higher of the asset’s net sales price or present value, as determined 
above.

r. 	 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cheques on hand, demand deposits with 
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

2. 	 Share Capital 

 Particulars As at
March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.)

 March 31, 2014 
Amount (Rs.)

Authorised: 
68,000,000 (Previous Year 68,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 5 each  340,000,000  340,000,000 
300,000 (Previous Year 300,000) preference shares of Rs. 100 each   30,000,000  30,000,000 
Issued: 
59,648,615 (previous year 59,488,115) equity shares of Rs. 5 each  298,243,075  297,440,575 
Subscribed and paid-Up: 
59,648,615 (previous year 59,488,115) equity shares of Rs. 5 each (fully paid-up)  298,243,075  297,440,575 
Total  298,243,075  297,440,575 

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares 
Equity Shares : As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

Number of Shares  Amount (Rs.) Number of Shares  Amount (Rs.)
Balance as at the beginning of the year  59,488,115 297,440,575  59,456,615  297,283,075 
Add:  Shares issued under Employee 

Stock Option Plan 
 160,500  802,500  31,500  157,500 

Balance as at the end of the year  59,648,615 298,243,075  59,488,115  297,440,575 
(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares 

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 5 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for 
one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders 
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the 
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 
However, no such preferential amounts exist currently.

(c) Shares held by holding company and ultimate holding company
Particulars  As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
March 31, 2014 
Amount (Rs.)

Equity shares: 
33,954,333 (previous year 33,954,333) shares held by Living Media India 
Limited, India, the holding company

 169,771,665  169,771,665 

1,666 (previous year 1,666) shares held by World Media Private Limited, India, 
the ultimate holding company

 8,330  8,330 

(d) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company 
Particulars As at

March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.)

March 31, 2014 
Amount (Rs.)

Equity shares: 
Living Media India Limited, India, the holding company  33,954,333  33,954,333 
  (56.92%)  (57.08%) 
Reliance Capital Limited, India  -    5,828,705 
  -    (9.80%) 

(e) Shares reserved for issue under options 
Refer note 26 for details of shares to be issued under the Employee Stock Options Plan
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(f) Shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash (during 5 
years immediately preceding March 31, 2015)

 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011  March 31, 2010 
(i) Equity shares of Rs. 

5 each issued to the 
shareholders of Radio 
Today Broadcasting 
Limited pursuant to the 
composite scheme of 
arrangement, without 
payment being received in 
cash 

 -    -    -   1,655,999  -   

 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011  March 31, 2010 
(ii) Equity shares issued under 

the Employee Stock Option 
Plan as consideration 
for services rendered by 
employees (refer note 26) 

 31,500  -    -   9,000  27,500 

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011  March 31, 2010 
(iii) Aggregate number and 

class of shares bought 
back by the Company - 
equity shares of Rs. 5 each 

 -    -    -     203,752 

3. 	 Reserves and Surplus

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Employee Stock Options Outstanding
Options granted till date  3,037,500  4,440,000 
Less: Options forfeited  382,500  930,000 
Less: Transfer to securities premium on exercise of stock options during the year  2,205,000  472,500 
  450,000  3,037,500 
Less: Deferred employee stock compensation  -    101,969 
Balance as at the end of the year  450,000  2,935,531 
General Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year  743,029,332  693,029,332 
Add: Transferred from surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  -    50,000,000 
Balance as at the end of the year  743,029,332  743,029,332 
Securities Premium Account
Balance as at the beginning of the year  525,618,719  523,434,194 
Add: Transferred from stock options outstanding  2,205,000  472,500 
Add: Received on issue of equity shares  10,663,675  1,712,025 
Balance as at the end of the year  538,487,394  525,618,719 
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year  2,222,028,383 1,728,376,861 
Profit for the year  810,345,968  613,249,642 
Less: Appropriations

Dividend on equity shares for previous year  60,000  -   
Dividend distribution tax on dividend for previous year  10,197  -   
Proposed dividend on equity shares for the year  89,472,923  59,488,115 
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend on equity shares  17,889,322  10,110,005 
Transfer to general reserve  -    50,000,000 
Adjustment on account of revision in useful life of fixed assets [refer note 1(e)]  5,079,444  -   

Balance as at the end of the year  2,919,862,465 2,222,028,383 
Total  4,201,829,191 3,493,611,965 
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4. 	 Other Long-Term Liabilities

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Security deposits  11,628,681  13,721,183 
Lease equalization  6,220,378  4,706,442 
Total  17,849,059  18,427,625 

5.	 Long-Term Provisions

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.) 

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.) 

Provision for employee benefits: (Refer note 25)
Provision for gratuity  5,764,076  -   
Provision for compensated absences  41,132,103  46,022,056 

Other provisions: (Refer note 19)
Provision for litigations / disputes  62,283,976  59,679,814 

Total  109,180,155  105,701,870 

Provisions: Litigations  / Disputes
March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Balance as at the beginning of the year  59,679,814  48,276,437 
Additions  2,604,162  11,403,377 
Balance as at the end of the year  62,283,976  59,679,814 
Classified as non-current:  62,283,976  59,679,814 
Total  62,283,976  59,679,814 
Provision for litigation/dispute represents claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts that areexpected to 
materialize in respect of matter in litigation.

6. 	 Short-Term Borrowings

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Secured:
Cash credit facility from bank [refer note (a) below]  67,258,112  -   
Working capital loan repayable on demand from bank [refer note (b) below]  -    -   
Total  67,258,112  -   
(a) Cash credit facility has been secured by way of first charge against the whole of book debts.
(b) Working capital loan has been secured by charge on book debts of the Company (both present and future), on a first 

pari passu basis with another bank.

7.	 Trade Payables

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Trade payables (Refer note 39)  676,404,013  516,996,283 
Total  676,404,013  516,996,283 
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8.	 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Current maturities of long-term debt  -    172,800,000 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  -    475,792 
Income received in advance  6,845,118  6,278,903 
Unpaid dividends [refer note (a) below]  1,374,847  1,355,959 
Advances from customers  111,633,154  107,986,301 
Employee benefits payable  158,831,788  95,911,069 
Statutory dues (including provident fund and tax deducted at source)  25,671,746  28,556,842 
Others  35,334,624  62,247,292 
Total  339,691,277  475,612,158 
(a) There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 205C of the 

Companies Act, 1956 as at the year end.*
* Section 125 of Companies Act, 2013 which corresponds to Section 205C of Companies Act, 1956 has not yet been 
enforced.

9.	 Short-Term Provisions

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Provision for employee benefits: (Refer note 25)
Provision for compensated absences  6,508,213  9,047,718 
Other provisions:
Provision for wealth tax  353,029  249,734 
Provision for proposed dividend on equity shares  89,472,923  59,488,115 
Provision for dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend on equity shares  17,889,322  10,110,005 
Total  114,223,487  78,895,572 
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12. 	Non-Current Investments

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Trade Investments (valued at cost)		
Unquoted equity instruments		

Investment in others:
10,510,510 equity shares (Previous Year 10,510,510) of Rs. 10 each fully paid-
up held in Mail Today Newspapers Private Limited (Refer note 40)

 455,212,482  455,212,482 

  455,212,482 455,212,482
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  455,212,482  455,212,482

 

13. 	Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Deferred tax assets
Provision for doubtful debts and advances  88,503,786  77,178,209 
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences  13,835,956  10,383,207 
Provision for bonus  548,096  595,860 
Other disallowances under section 40(a) of the Income Tax Act  106,845,050  96,310,675 
Other timing differences  1,171,200  -   
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation  53,588,747  27,427,894 
Total  157,315,341  157,040,057 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they relate to the same governing taxation laws.

14. 	Long-Term Loans and Advances

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated) :
Capital Advances

- Considered good  6,129,010  878,349 
- Considered doubtful  1,046,249  1,046,249 

Less: Allowance for doubtful capital advances  1,046,249  1,046,249 
Security Deposits

To related party  2,999,829  1,954,329 
To others
- Considered good  41,681,661  34,357,800 
- Considered doubtful  434,525  -   

Less: Allowance for doubtful security deposits  434,525  -   
Advances recoverable in cash or kind  1,169,144  1,920,197 
Other loans and advances

 - Balances with Government Authorities  299,422  298,861 
 - Prepaid expenses  10,601,002  16,513,087 

Total  62,880,068  55,922,623 
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15. 	Trade Receivables

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Unsecured, considered good
Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date they are due for payment  160,691,435  105,324,586 
Others  1,245,075,181  997,769,997 
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date they are due for payment  180,217,069  160,855,435 
Others  59,172,622  42,881,684 
Less: Provision for doubtful debts  239,389,691  203,737,119 
Total  1,405,766,616  1,103,094,583 

16.	 Cash and Bank Balances

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand  1,132,129  570,782 
Cheques on hand  -    2,349,991 
Bank balances

In current accounts  153,948,275  286,320,169 
Term deposits (less than 3 months maturity)  500,981,680  260,000,000 

  656,062,084  549,240,942 
Other bank balances

 - Long-term deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months*  289,751,625  22,035,007 
 - Unpaid dividend account  1,374,847  1,355,959 

  291,126,472  23,390,966 
Total  947,188,556  572,631,908 
* Rs. 19,800,000 held as lien by bank against bank guarantees

17. 	Short-Term Loans and Advances

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated:
Security deposits  3,425,579  5,252,938 
Other loans and advances

 - Advance income tax [Net of provision of Rs. 2,013,936,077
   (Previous Year Rs. 1,597,778,844)]

 259,858,119  286,850,021 

 - Advance fringe benefits tax [Net of provision of Rs. 49,642,976
   (Previous Year Rs. 49,642,976)]

 1,080,426  1,080,426 

- Prepaid expenses  29,851,504  31,479,906 
- Others

- Considered good  104,319,309  141,139,738 
- Considered doubtful  12,331,249  12,331,248 

Less: Allowance for doubtful other loans and advances  12,331,249  12,331,248 
Total  398,534,937  465,803,029 
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18. 	Other Current Assets

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated) :
Interest accrued on deposits  8,980,582  3,888,170 
Claims Recoverable

 - Considered good  5,747,053  2,943,605 
 - Considered doubtful  2,950,194  2,950,194 

Less: Allowance for doubtful other current assets  2,950,194  2,950,194 
Total  14,727,635  6,831,775 
 

19. 	Contingent Liabilities

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:			 
Income Tax matters :
The Company has received demand notices from the Income Tax department, 
which the Company has contested. In the opinion of the management, no liability is 
likely to arise on account of such demand notice.

 7,071,751  3,499,211 

Service Tax matters :
The Company has received demand notice from the Service Tax department, 
which the Company has contested. In the opinion of the management, based on 
its understanding of the case and as advised by their counsel, no liability is likely to 
arise on account of such demand notices.

 93,804,477 -

Other Matters : 
(1) Claim from Prasar Bharti towards uplinking charges :-

Provision made in the books on an estimated basis (refer note 5) is Rs. 
62,283,976 (previous year Rs. 59,679,814). In the opinion of the management, 
based on its understanding of the case and as advised by their counsel, the 
provision made in the books is considered to be adequate.

 20,291,134  18,989,020 

(2) Claim from Phonographic Performance Limited (PPL) towards royalty for use of 
PPL’s sound recordings over Company’s radio stations :-
Liability recorded in the books is Rs. 3,542,604 (previous year Rs. 2,531,401). 
In the opinion of the management, based on its understanding of the case and 
as advised by their counsel, the liability recorded in the books is considered to 
be adequate.

 21,586,956  17,733,300 

(3) The Company has received legal notice of claims / lawsuits filed against it in 
respect of programmes aired on its television channels. In the opinion of the 
management, no liability is likely to arise on account of such claims / lawsuits.

- -

Guarantees:
Bank guarantees  22,840,279  23,083,379 
(a) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash 

outflows, if any, in respect of the above, pending resolution of the respective 
proceedings.

(b) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above 
contingent liabilities.
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20.	 Capital Commitments

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Estimated value of contracts in capital account remaining to be executed  17,458,640  20,846,479 
Total  17,458,640  20,846,479 

21. 	Proposed Dividend

Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
The final dividend proposed for the year is as follows:
On equity shares of Rs. 5 each

Amount of dividend proposed  89,472,923  59,488,115 
Dividend per equity share  1.50  1.00 

22. 	Revenue from Operations

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Sale of Services

Advertisement income  4,353,685,718  3,549,353,792 
Subscription income  378,679,170  332,468,079 
Income from digital business  14,666,970  -   

Other Operating Revenue
Fees from training  14,516,117  12,364,382 
SMS income  165,802  249,795 
Income from sale of animations  3,902,991  -   

Total  4,765,616,768  3,894,436,048 
 

23. 	Other Income

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Interest income  78,730,398  43,049,593 
Profit on sale of tangible assets (net)  -    1,274,393 
Provisions / liabilities written back to the extent no longer required  111,343,340  34,527,453 
Lease rentals  32,063,988  32,063,988 
Miscellaneous income  4,939,435  6,282,719 
Total  227,077,161  117,198,146 
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24. 	Production Cost

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Reporting expenses  115,182,141  80,948,529 
Up-linking charges  27,506,243  19,375,393 
Assignment charges  18,547,013  3,681,785 
Production expenses  265,319,930  175,160,804 
Subscription  12,919,119  19,524,565 
Transponder lease rentals  103,844,388  102,540,547 
Programme procurement  1,294,438  7,256,508 
Total  544,613,272  408,488,131 

25. 	Employee Benefits Expense

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Salaries, wages and bonus  1,098,341,166  883,846,786 
Contribution to provident and other funds [refer note (I) below]  39,575,735  35,956,213 
Gratuity [refer note (II) below]  14,197,389  4,339,950 
Employee stock option scheme (refer note 26)  (280,531)  (674,496)
Staff welfare expenses  16,297,512  6,264,858 
Total  1,168,131,271  929,733,311 
	

Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
I Defined Contribution Plans

Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
- Employer's contribution to Provident Fund  29,227,673  29,595,899 
- Employer's contribution to Employees' Pension Scheme, 1995  10,260,140  6,261,295 
- Employer's contribution to Employees' State Insurance Scheme  87,922  99,019 
Total  39,575,735   35,956,213 

II Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity) and Other Long-Term Employee Benefit (Compensated Absences)
(A) The assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuation to determine the defined benefit and other 

long-term employee benefit obligations are as follows :
As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Discount rate (per annum) 7.80% 9.10%
Rate of increase in compensation levels (per annum) 6.50% 6.50%
Expected rate of return on plan assets (for gratuity - per annum) 8.99% 8.75%
Remaining working lives of employees (years) 22.12 22.56
The expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the 
assessment made at the beginning of the year on the return expected 
on its existing portfolio, along with the estimated increment to the plan 
assets and expected yield on the respective assets in the portfolio during 
the year.
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, 
take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, 
such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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(B) Changes in the present value of defined benefit and other long-term employee benefit obligations
(i) Gratuity (Funded)

As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Balance at the beginning of the year 63,490,903 70,612,749
Interest cost  5,777,672  5,649,019 
Current service cost  10,850,629  8,710,302 
Benefits paid (7,383,011) (15,196,092)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation  6,069,259  (6,285,075)
Balance at the end of the year 78,805,452 63,490,903

(ii) Compensated Absences (Unfunded)
As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 55,069,773 68,452,520
Interest cost 3,872,898 5,476,202
Current service cost 8,768,078 8,881,621
Curtailment cost * (12,510,454)  -   
Benefits paid (4,100,474) (8,037,751)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (3,459,505) (19,702,819)
Balance at the end of the year 47,640,316 55,069,773
* Represents reversal of opening balance of provision for sick leave which is not being carried forward 
beyond one accounting year as per Company’s policy with effect from April 1, 2015.

(C) Changes in the fair value of plan assets (for gratuity)
As at

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Balance at the beginning of the year 65,750,365 74,952,699
Expected return on plan assets 5,753,157 6,970,601
Actuarial gain / (loss) 487,552 (976,843)
Contributions  8,433,313  -   
Benefits paid (7,383,011) (15,196,092)
Balance at the end of the year 73,041,376 65,750,365

(D) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit and other long-term employee benefit obligation and fair 
value of plan assets 
(i) Gratuity (funded)

As At
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014  March 31, 2013  March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011

Present value of defined 
benefit obligation 78,805,452 63,490,903 70,612,749 63,987,131 58,035,914
Less: Fair value of plan 
assets 73,041,376 65,750,365 74,952,699 69,141,754 60,756,746
Net asset / (liability) 
recognized in balance 
sheet [under long-term 
provisions (refer note 5)]

(5,764,076) Nil * 4,339,950 5,154,623 2,720,832 

 * An amount of Rs. 2,259,462 was not recognized as an asset as no economic benefit was available in the form of 
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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(ii) Compensated Absences (unfunded)
As At

 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014  March 31, 2013  March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011
Present value of other 
long-term employee 
benefit obligation

47,640,316 55,069,774 68,452,520 67,892,523 68,393,741

Less: Fair value of plan 
assets

 -    -    -    -    -   

Net asset / (liability) 
recognized in balance 
sheet

 (47,640,316)  (55,069,774)  (68,452,520)  (67,892,523)  (68,393,741)

Recognized under :
Long-term provisions  
(refer note 5)

41,132,103 46,022,056

Short-term provisions 
(refer note 9)

6,508,213 9,047,718

Total 47,640,316 55,069,774
(E) Experience adjustments on plan assets and liabilities

Year ended
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014  March 31, 2013  March 31, 2012  March 31, 2011

Experience adjustments on 
plan assets - (loss) / gain
- Gratuity (funded)  487,552  (976,843)  -    (165,475)  -   
Experience adjustments on 
plan liabilities - (loss) / gain
- Gratuity (funded)  190,403  1,633,489  (14,801)  (463,223)  78,385 
- Compensated absences 
(unfunded)

 2,977,378  15,428,660  (5,606,157)  8,748,026  1,552,338 

(F) Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
(i) Gratuity (funded)

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014

Current service cost  10,850,629  8,710,302 
Interest cost  5,777,672  5,649,019 
Expected return on plan assets  (5,753,157)  (6,970,601)
Net actuarial (gain) / loss  5,581,707  (5,308,232)
Total expense  16,456,851**  2,080,488* 
* Represents difference between opening net asset (Rs. 4,339,950) and closing net asset (Rs. 2,259,462 
- not recognized as an asset as no economic benefit was available in the form of refunds from the plan or 
reductions in future contributions to the plan).
** Actual expense for the year is Rs. 14,197,389, i.e., lower by Rs. 2,259,462 on account of net asset not 
recognized in the previous year, as mentioned above.

 Year ended
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014

(ii) Compensated Absences (unfunded)
Current service cost  8,768,078  8,881,621 
Interest cost  3,872,898  5,476,202 
Curtailment cost  (12,510,454)  -   
Net actuarial (gain) / loss  (3,459,505)  (19,702,819)
Total expense  (3,328,983)  (5,344,996)
* Represents reversal of opening balance of provision for sick leave which is not being carried forward 
beyond one accounting year as per Company’s policy with effect from April 1, 2015.
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(G) Constitution of Plan Assets (for Gratuity)
 As at 

 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014
Total of plan assets *  73,041,376  65,750,365 
* The contribution is made to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and the detailed information of plan 
assets has not been provided by the LIC.

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014

Actual return on plan assets  6,240,709  5,993,758 
(H) Expected Contribution to the funds in the next year 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014

Gratuity  10,214,024  5,971,095 
Compensated absences  9,406,494  8,059,574 

26. 	Employee Stock Option Plan

	 The Company instituted the Employee Stock Option Plan (TVTN ESOP 2006) to grant equity - based incentives to its eligible 
employees. The TVTN ESOP 2006 was approved by the board of directors in their meeting held on 21st August, 2006 and 
by shareholders in their meeting held on 28th September, 2006, for grant of 2,900,000 options, representing one share for 
each option upon exercise by the employees of the Company, at an exercise price determined by the Board / Remuneration 
Committee. The equity shares covered under the scheme shall vest over a period of four years; vesting shall vary based on 
the meeting of the performance criteria. The Optionee may exercise their vested options at any moment after the earliest 
applicable vesting date and prior to the completion of ten years from the grant date. 

	 Accordingly, the Company under the intrinsic value method, as permitted by SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share Based 
Payment issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, has recognized the excess of the market price over 
the exercise price of the option amounting to Rs. (-) 280,531 (Previous Year Rs. (-) 674,496) as expense during the year. 
Further, the liability as at March 31, 2015 in respect of Employee Stock Options Outstanding is Rs. 450,000 (Previous Year 
Rs. 3,037,500). The balance deferred compensation expense of Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. 101,969) will be amortized over 
the remaining vesting period of options.

	 The movement in the options granted to employees during the year ended March, 31 2015 under the TVTN ESOP 
2006 is set out below:     							     

First  
Grant

Second 
Grant

Third 
Grant

Fourth 
Grant

Fifth  
Grant

Sixth  
Grant

Seventh 
Grant

Date of grant 1-Dec-06 1-Mar-07 1-Dec-07 24-Jun-08 5-Apr-10 20-May-10 30-Sep-10
Market price on the date of grant of 
underlying equity shares 

Rs. 74.35 Rs. 134.85 Rs. 152.75 Rs. 93.15 Rs. 113.90 Rs. 102.85 Rs. 85.15

Exercise price                
 - 50% of options Rs. 74.35 Rs. 134.85 Rs. 152.75 Rs. 93.15 Rs. 113.90 Rs. 102.85 Rs. 85.15
 - Balance 50% of options * Rs. 44.35 Rs. 104.85 Rs. 122.75 Rs. 63.15    Rs. 83.90 Rs. 72.85 Rs. 55.15
Vesting Period 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years
Options outstanding at the beginning of 
the year (Nos.)

 25,500  10,000  -    55,000  5,000  7,500  100,000 

Options granted during the year (nos.)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Options forfeited during the year (nos.)  -    -    -    7,500  5,000  -    -   
Options exercised during the year (nos.)  25,500  -    -    35,000  -    -    100,000 
Options expired during the year (nos.)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   
Options outstanding at the end of the 
year (nos.)

 -   10,000  -    12,500  -   7,500  -   

Options exercisable at the end of the 
year (nos.)

 -    10,000  -    12,500  -    7,500  -   

* Maximum discount of Rs. 30, which may vary between Rs. 0 to Rs. 30 based on employee’s performance
Weighted average exercise price for stock options exercised during the year : Rs. 71.44 per equity share.
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	 The fair value of options (as determined by an independent valuer) granted under the TVTN ESOP 2006 is estimated 
on the date of grant using Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:

Date of Grant 1-Dec-06 1-Mar-07 1-Dec-07 24-Jun-08 5-Apr-10 20-May-10 30-Sep-10
Risk free interest rate 7.35% 7.87% 8.07% 8.83% 8.09% 7.94% 8.10%
Expected life of options * 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
Expected volatility ** 48.28% 55.44% 51.27% 58.35% 54.44% 52.40% 43.13%
Dividend yield 1.01% 0.56% 0.49% 0.83% 0.66% 0.74% 0.89%
* Expected life is taken as the aggregate of the vesting and exercise period.
** Expected volatility is determined on the basis of the "share price-volume data" available at www.nseindia.com
The Company’s net profit and earnings per share would have been as under, had the compensation cost for employees’ 
stock options been recognized based on the fair value at the date of grant in accordance with Black-Scholes model.
Particulars Year ended

 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.) 

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.) 

Profit after tax (Rs.)  810,345,968  613,249,642 
Less: Additional employee compensation cost based on fair value  284,264  1,609,765 
Profit after tax as per Fair Value Method  810,061,704  611,639,877 
Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic

Number of shares  59,574,539  59,460,844 
Basic EPS as reported (Rs.) (refer note 33)  13.60  10.31 
Proforma Basic EPS (Rs.)  13.60  10.29 

Diluted 
Number of shares  59,578,758  59,495,326 
Diluted EPS as reported (Rs.) (refer note 33)  13.60  10.31 
Proforma Diluted EPS (Rs.)  13.60  10.28 

27. 	Finance Costs

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Interest on long-term borrowings  12,729,627  31,638,506 
Interest on short-term borrowings  89,871  500,344 
Interest on shortfall of advance tax  -    2,116,673 
Other borrowing costs  1,956,636  1,649,823 
Total  14,776,134  35,905,346 

28. 	Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Depreciation on tangible assets  240,113,455  216,902,240 
Amortisation on intangible assets  60,107,282  24,892,441 
Total  300,220,737  241,794,681 
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29. 	Other Expenses

Particulars Year ended

 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.) 

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.) 

Advertising, distribution and sales promotion  929,578,072  812,457,581 
Power and fuel  78,972,415  74,713,214 
Rent  48,620,015  48,018,764 
Repairs to building  1,243,079  1,689,222 
Repairs to machinery  46,326,895  45,430,231 
Repairs - others  16,618,298  15,352,665 
Insurance  16,606,404  13,873,431 
Rates and taxes  14,569,412  1,744,416 
Travelling expenses  137,940,235  93,286,126 
Payment to auditors (excluding service tax)

As auditor:
Audit fee  3,540,000  3,540,000 
Tax audit fee  300,000  300,000 
Other services  1,500,000  1,500,000 
Reimbursement of expenses  536,989  516,794 

Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities  9,325,944  -   
Legal and professional fees  41,182,300  27,698,166 
Printing and stationery  5,187,284  3,693,594 
Communication expenses  32,836,247  24,872,718 
Car hire charges  70,139,101  60,251,614 
Housekeeping  52,690,864  47,923,145 
Vehicle running and maintenance  3,255,312  4,333,869 
Agency incentive  74,517,875  35,391,786 
Freight and courier  3,229,564  3,186,868 
Guard services  22,170,854  20,408,754 
Newspapers and periodicals  7,992,295  7,106,545 
Business promotion  13,392,295  9,593,188 
Software expenses  3,367,317  3,364,247 
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation  671,502  5,125,046 
Net loss on sale of tangible assets  88,456  -   
Fixed assets written off  1,473,320  -   
Provision for doubtful debts and advances  86,217,400  91,020,876 
Bad debts  1,260,430  -   
Miscellaneous expenses  10,758,426  7,177,759 
Total  1,736,108,600  1,463,570,619 
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30. 	CIF Value of Imports

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Capital goods  45,536,119  12,928,839 
Total  45,536,119  12,928,839 

31. 	Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Foreign travel  15,759,008  6,749,646 
Production cost  129,125,107  120,583,023 
Repair and maintenance  15,085,838  2,664,361 
Other expenses  21,040,105  3,740,673 
Total  181,010,058  133,737,703 

32. 	Earnings in Foreign Currency

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.) 
Advertisement income  65,189,164  53,535,124 
Subscription income  59,374,918  52,468,078 
Total  124,564,082  106,003,202 

33. 	Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Particulars Year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Basic
Profit after tax (Rs.) A  810,345,968  613,249,642 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding B  59,574,539  59,460,844 
Basic EPS (Rs.) A / B  13.60  10.31 
Diluted
Profit after tax (Rs.) A  810,345,968  613,249,642 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding B  59,574,539  59,460,844 
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of  
employee stock options

C  4,219  34,482 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding for diluted EPS D (B+C)  59,578,758  59,495,326 
Diluted EPS (Rs.) A / D  13.60  10.31 
Face value per share (Rs.)   5  5
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Other Disclosures

34. 	Investments

	 The following table includes the classification of investments in accordance with AS 13, Accounting for Investments :  
Particulars As at

 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.) 

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.) 

Long Term Investments
10,510,510 equity shares (previous year 10,510,510) of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 
held in Mail Today Newspapers Private Limited (refer note 40)

 455,212,482  455,212,482 

Total investments  455,212,482  455,212,482 
Disclosed Under:
Non-current investments (Refer note 12)  455,212,482  455,212,482 
Total  455,212,482  455,212,482 

35. 	Segment Reporting

	 The Company has considered the business segment as the primary reporting segment on the basis that the risks and 
returns of the Company are primarily determined by the nature of services. Consequently, the geographical segment has 
been considered as a secondary segment.									       

	 The business segments have been identified on the basis of :			 
	 - the nature of services
	 - the risks and returns
	 - internal organization and management structure and
	 - the internal performance reporting systems
	 The business segments comprise of the following :
	  - Television Broadcasting
	  - Radio Broadcasting
	 The Company has determined its operations in India as its single reportable geographical segment.

Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Television 

Broadcasting
Radio 

Broadcasting
Total Television 

Broadcasting
Radio 

Broadcasting
Total

Segment revenue
Advertisement 
income

 4,198,915,684  154,770,034  4,353,685,718  3,395,565,685  153,788,107  3,549,353,792 

Subscription income  378,679,170  -    378,679,170  332,468,079  -    332,468,079 
Income from digital 
business

 14,666,970  -    14,666,970  -    -    -   

Other operating 
income

 18,584,910  -    18,584,910  12,614,177  -    12,614,177 

Other allocable 
income

 139,229,401  9,117,362  148,346,763  74,166,212  (17,659)  74,148,553 

Segment result - 
profit / (loss)

 1,267,015,334  (92,799,738)  1,174,215,596  1,037,379,820  (112,381,961)  924,997,859 

Unallocated 
corporate expenses  (9,325,944)  -   
Interest expense  (14,776,134)  (35,905,346)
Interest income  78,730,398  43,049,593 
Profit before tax  1,228,843,915  932,142,106 
Income tax expense  (418,497,947)  (318,892,464)
Profit after tax  810,345,968  613,249,642 
Other information
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Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Television 

Broadcasting
Radio 

Broadcasting
Total Television 

Broadcasting
Radio 

Broadcasting
Total

Segment assets  5,013,472,109  171,034,374  5,184,506,483  4,435,650,608  212,810,806  4,648,461,414 
Unallocated 
corporate assets

 1,411,398,374  1,038,718,375 

Advance tax (net of 
provision)

 260,938,545  287,930,447 

Deferred tax assets 
(net)

 157,315,341  157,040,057 

Less: inter-segment 
assets

 1,189,480,374  1,145,464,245 

Total assets  5,824,678,369  4,986,686,048 
Segment liabilities  1,055,205,181  1,282,289,807  2,337,494,988  884,026,905  1,211,865,069  2,095,891,974 
Unallocated 
corporate liabilities

 176,591,489  245,205,779 

Shareholders' funds  4,500,072,266  3,791,052,540 
Less: Inter-segment 
liabilities

 1,189,480,374  1,145,464,245 

Total liabilities  5,824,678,369  4,986,686,048 
Capital expenditure  529,982,583  5,852,632  535,835,215  117,112,278  1,052,620  118,164,898 
Depreciation 
and amortisation 
included in segment 
expense		

 273,696,866  26,523,871  300,220,737  213,999,206  27,795,475  241,794,681 

Non-cash expenditure 
other than 
depreciation and 
amortization included 
in segment expense

 59,876,120  26,060,749  85,936,869  70,651,985  19,694,395  90,346,380 

36. 	Related Party Disclosures

(a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship 
(i) Where control exists:

Holding company: Living Media India Limited 
Ultimate holding company: World Media Private Limited (Refer Note - a)
Subsidiary: T.V. Today Network (Business) Limited

(ii) Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Fellow subsidiaries: Thomson Press (India) Limited

Today Merchandise Private Limited
Radio Today Broadcasting Limited
Mail Today Newspapers Private Limited
World Media Trading Limited
ITAS Media Private Limited
Today Retail Network Private Limited

Key management personnel (KMP): Mr. Aroon Purie (Managing Director)
Ms. Koel Purie Rinchet (Whole Time Director)

Entity over which Key Management Personnel (KMP)
exercise significant influence

Care Today Fund
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(b) Transactions / Balances Holding Company Fellow Subsidiaries KMP Entity over which KMP 
exercise significant 

influence
March 31, 

2015
March 31, 

2014
March 31, 

2015
March 31, 

2014
March 31, 

2015
March 31, 

2014
March 31, 

2015
March 31, 

2014
Purchase of advertisement 
space / material (refer note b)

 39,602,500 17,440,000 16,656,552  -  -  -  -  - 

Advertisement income (refer 
notes b and c)

106,136,845 43,990,781  6,058,677  4,098,881  -  -  -  - 

Agency commission paid 
(refer note b)

 16,134,788  6,934,610  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Income from digital business 
(refer note b)

 16,479,808  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Transfer of proportionate 
share of revenue from 
composite contracts

 -  -  11,950,000  -  -  -  -  - 

Interest free security deposit 
paid

 1,045,500  592,427  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Management fee paid (refer 
note b)

 20,149,896  674,160  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Purchase of India Today 
diaries (refer note b)

 189,280  540,924  -  -  -  -  -  - 

IPTV income shared with 
related party (refer note b)

 1,129,164  3,614,501  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Income from sale of online 
T.V. Today Media Institute 
prospectus (refer note b)

 581,747  194,483  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Purchase of fixed assets 
(refer note b)

435,395,000  165,285  23,630  22,416  -  -  -  - 

Sale of fixed assets  -  1,007,415  -  -  -  -  -  - 
SMS income (refer note b)  186,296  280,670  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Expenditure towards 
Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) activities 
and other donations

 -  -  -  -  -  -  11,080,344  - 

Rent charged by related 
parties for use of common 
facilities / utilities (refer notes 
b and c)

 21,629,806 19,428,191  374,435  360,822  -  -  -  - 

Rent charged to related parties 
for use of common facilities / 
utilities (refer note b)

 52,408,694 51,958,956  9,997,452  9,910,464  -  -  -  - 

Miscellaneous inter-company 
services received from related 
parties and other charges 
paid

 4,720,477  3,355,046  2,626,669  2,422,267  -  -  -  - 

Miscellaneous inter-company 
services rendered to related 
parties and other charges 
received

 1,479,207  3,940,136  205,992  402,430  -  -  1,160  - 

Remuneration / commission 
paid

 -  -  -  -  77,270,828  58,040,488  -  - 

Dividend paid  33,954,333 25,465,750  -  -  211,374  157,351  -  - 
Balance as at year end
Trade payables  8,754,125  11,879,753 13,440,020  1,463,142  -  -  -  - 
Other current liabilities  -  -  -  -  67,339,415  51,851,334  -  - 
Trade receivables 153,516,854 78,712,723  9,240,004  12,830,517  -  -  -  - 
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Notes:-
a	 There were no transactions during the year and previous year except dividend amounting to Rs. 1,666 (previous year Rs. 

1,250) paid during the year.
b	 The figures include sales tax / service tax, as applicable.
c	 Advertisement income from and rent paid to holding company include Rs. 53,782,631 (previous year Rs. 23,115,362) and 

Rs. 3,535,617 (previous year Rs. 3,535,617) respectively arising out of a transaction with a third party pursuant to the 
contract entered into by the holding company with the said third party.					   
(c)	 Disclosure in respect of transactions which are more than 10% of the total transactions of the same type with 

related parties							     

Particulars Transactions (Rs.) Balance Receivable / (Payable) (Rs.)
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

(i) Purchase of advertisement 
space / material
Fellow subsidiary: Mail Today 
Newspapers Private Limited

 16,656,552  -    (4,726,456)  10,675,033 

(ii) Transfer of proportionate share 
of revenue from composite 
contracts
Fellow subsidiary: Mail Today 
Newspapers Private Limited

 11,950,000  -    -    -   

(ii) Rent charged to related parties 
for use of common facilities / 
utilities
Fellow subsidiary: Mail Today 
Newspapers Private Limited

 9,997,452  9,910,464  -    -   

(iii) Miscellaneous inter-company 
services received from related 
parties and other charges paid
Fellow subsidiary: Thomson Press 
(India) Limited

 2,537,589  2,042,761  (377,170)  (1,276,937)

(v) Remuneration paid #
Aroon Purie  67,084,720  49,438,641  (64,229,015)  (49,259,334)
Koel Purie Rinchet  10,186,108  8,601,847  (3,110,000)  (2,592,000)
(#)	As gratuity and compensated absences are computed for all the employees in aggregate, the amounts 

amounts relating to the key management personnel cannot be individually identified.
37. 	Operating Leases
	 As a lessee:
	 The Company has cancellable and non-cancellable lease arrangements mainly for office premises and company leased 

accommodation for employees. These lease arrangements range for a period between 11 months and 10 years. Most of 
the leases are renewable for further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses. The operating 
lease payments recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss amount to Rs. 48,620,015 (previous year Rs. 48,018,764).	

	 With respect to non-cancellable operating leases, the future minimum lease payments are as follows:-
Particulars As at

 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.) 

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.) 

Not later than one year  22,323,828  26,252,182 
Later than one year and not later than five years  45,800,903  71,966,927 
Later than five years  -    11,585,788 
Total  68,124,731  109,804,897 

	 As a lessor:
	 The Company has given a part of Noida office building on cancellable operating lease to two parties. These lease 

arrangements have been entered for a period of ten years from March 1, 2014. The lease arrangements are renewable for 
further period on mutually agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses.					   
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

38.	 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure 
	 The Company does not have any derivative instruments. The particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the 

Balance Sheet date are as follows:
Particulars Currency  As at March 31, 2015  As at March 31, 2014

Amount (FC) Exchange Rate Amount (FC) Exchange Rate
Other current liabilities EURO  -    -    187,550  82.57 

USD  424,475  62.59  170,233  60.09 
Trade receivables GBP  195,810  92.45  177,388  99.85 

Euro  433  67.51  433  82.57 
AED  6,402  17.02  7,372  16.26 
AUD  17,488  48.07  21,041  55.25 
CAD  20,953  49.45  9,190  54.01 
USD  349,023  62.59  342,445  60.09 

39. 	Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises
	 Based on information available with the Company, there are no outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises as at March 

31, 2015. No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

40.	 The Company as a strategic decision considered entering into the print media and, accordingly, acquired in earlier years 
some stake in Mail Today Newspapers Private Limited (Mail Today), a differentiated newspaper with respect to content as 
well as value to its advertisers. Based on the valuation of the equity shares of Mail Today, carried out by an independent 
valuer, the Company acquired the shares through direct subscription and also through purchase from existing shareholders 
at a cost of Rs. 455,212,482. Though, Mail Today is presently incurring losses, the Company is confident of its long-term 
strategic value and it has also received a guarantee from its holding company, Living Media India Limited, for indemnifying 
any loss to the Company arising from the sale of the said investment, based on which the carrying value of the said 
investment is considered appropriate.

41.	 The Company has decided to enter into digital news space to tap significant growth potential and business opportunity in 
digital news industry. Consequently, the Company has acquired digital rights of its news channels from its holding company, 
Living Media India Limited, for a consideration of Rs. 387,500,000. Such consideration has been recognized as an intangible 
asset (refer note 11), to be amortized over a period of 10 years.

42.	 Disclosures mandated by Schedule III by way of additional information
Name of the Entity Net assets i.e., total assets minus 

total liabilities
Share in profit or loss

As a % of consolidated 
net assets

Amount (Rs.) As a % of 
consolidated profit

Amount (Rs.)

Parent: 
T.V. Today Network Limited 99.96%  4,498,131,712 100.00%  810,327,552 
Subsidiary: 
Indian
T.V. Today Network (Business) Limited 0.04%  1,940,554 0.00%  18,416 

43.	 Previous Year Figures
Previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to this year’s classification.				  

For Price Waterhouse		  For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants
sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 sd/-	 	
Sougata Mukherjee	 Dr. Puneet Jain	 Ashok Kapur 	 Aroon Purie
Partner	 Head - Legal and Compliances,	 Director 	 Chairman and
Membership No. 57084	 Company Secretary and	 	 Managing Director 
	 Vice President - Internal Audit
	 Dinesh Bhatia
	 Chief Financial Officer
Place : Gurgaon	 Place : Noida
Date   : May 12, 2015	 Date   : May 12, 2015
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS
Your Directors are pleased to present the Tenth Annual Re-
port and the Company’s audited financial statement for the 
financial year ended  March 31, 2015.
1.	 Financial Results

During the financial year 2014-15, the Company earned 
an income of Rs.176,347/- (Rupees One Lakh Seventy 
Six Thousand Three Hundred and Forty Seven only) 
mainly on interest on Bank Deposits (Gross of Tax 
Deducted at source Rs. 17,276) as compared to interest 
on Bank deposits of Rs. 209,314/- (Rupees Two Lakh 
Nine Thousand Three Hundred and Fourteen only) 
earned last year. The Company achieved a profit after 
tax of Rs. 18,416/- (Rupees Eighteen Thousand Four 
Hundred and Sixteen only) after tax liability of Rs. 
54,491/- (Rupees Fifty Four Thousand Four Hundred 
and Ninety One only). 

2.	 Dividend

Since the Company has yet to commence its operations, 
your directors do not recommend any dividend for the 
current year.

3.	 Transfer to Reserves

Your directors do not recommend to transfer any amount 
to reserves for the current year.

4.	 Director’s Responsibility Statement: -

In terms of the provisions of Section 134 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state that: -
-	 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the 

year ended March 31, 2015, the applicable ac-
counting standards have been followed and there 
are no material departures from the same;

-	  the Directors have selected such accounting poli-
cies and applied them consistently and made judg-
ments and estimates that are reasonable and pru-
dent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the company as at March 31, 2015 and of 
the profit of the company for the year ended on that 
date;

-	 the Directors have  taken proper and sufficient care 
for the maintenance of adequate accounting re-
cords in accordance with the provisions of the Com-
panies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities;

-	 the Directors have prepared the annual accounts of 
the Company on a going concern basis;

-	 the Directors have devised proper systems to en-
sure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and op-
erating effectively.

5.	 Auditors 

The statutory auditors of your Company M/s. Price 
Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants, retire at the close 
of forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
The Company has received letters from statutory Auditors 
to the effect that their re–appointment, if made, would be 
within the prescribed limits under Section 141(3)(g) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified 
for re–appointment. Further, the Board of directors of 
the Company recommend to the shareholders for their 
approval, re-appointment of M/s Price Waterhouse, 
Chartered Accountants till the conclusion of Twelfth 
Annual General Meeting.

6.	 Directors

In accordance with the requirement of Section 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of 
your Company, Mrs. Rekha Purie, Director of the Company, 
retires by rotation at the Tenth Annual General Meeting 
and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

7.	 Personnel

Since no employee was employed during the current 
financial year, the provisions of Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Appointment and remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and any amendment thereof, 
are not applicable.

8.	 Extract of the annual return

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return in the prescribed 
format is appended as Annexure-1  to  this Report.

9.	 Number of Board Meetings

During the financial year ended March 31, 2015, the 
Board met four times on May 14, 2014,  August 01, 2014, 
November 10, 2014 and February 06, 2015.  
The intervening gap between any two meetings was 
within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

10.	 Auditor’s Report

There are no qualifications of Auditors on the Accounts of 
the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2015 
requiring further comment from the Board of Directors.

11.	 Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Since the Company has yet to commence its operations, 
therefore there is no information to be reported for 
conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo.

12.	 Risk Management

The Company is yet to start its operations the Board of 
directors are in the process of analyzing the risk which 
may threat the existence of the Company. 
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13.	 Loans and Investment

During the year Company, has not made any loan,  given 
any guarantee or provided security in connection with 
the loan to any other body corporate or person and 
has not made any investment by way of subscription or 
purchase, the securities of any other body corporate.

14.	 Particulars of Contract or arrangements with related 
Parties.

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the 
Company during the financial year with related parties 
were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s 
length basis. During the year, the Company had not 
entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction with 
related parties which could be considered material.
Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note 
12 to the financial statement which sets out related party 
disclosures and thus, no disclosure is annexed in form 
AOC-2 to this Board’s Report.

15.	 General

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is 
required in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions on these items during the year under review:
-	 Fact of resignation of director 
-	 Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter 

V of the Act.

No significant or material orders were passed by the 
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 
concern status and Company’s operations in future.

16.	 Internal Financial Control

Since the company has not commenced the operations, 
the Board is under the process of formulating the policies 
and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of business and prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable 
financial disclosures.

17.	 Acknowledgement

Your directors wish to place on record their appreciation 
for the co-operation and support extended by all the 
stakeholders of the Company.

			   Sd/-	  Sd/- 
			   Aroon Purie 	 Anil Mehra
			   DIN- 00002794	 DIN - 00004654
 			   Director	 Director
			   6, Palam Marg	 B-223B Greater
Place: New Delhi	 Vasant Vihar,	 Kailash Part-I,
Dated: May 12, 2015	 New Delhi-110057	 New Delhi-110048
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Annexure-1

FORM NO. MGT.9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies  
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
i)	 CIN: - U74899DL2005PLC142634
ii)	 Registration Date: 17/11/2005
iii)	 Name of the Company: T V Today Network Business Limited
iv)	 Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Company Limited by shares/Indian Non-Government Company
v)	 Address of the registered office and contact details: F-26, First Floor, Connaught Circus, New Delhi- 110001, 

Telephone Number: 0120-4807100, Fax Number: 0120-4325028 Email Id:- puneet.jain@aajtak.com
vi)	 Whether listed company Yes / No: No
vii)	 Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any: N.A. 

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. 
No.

Name and
Description of
main products/

services

NIC Code of
the Product/

service

% to total
turnover of the

company

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

III. 	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S.
NO

NAME AND ADDRESS 
OF THE
COMPANY

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

1 T.V. Today Network 
Limited

L92200DL1999PLC103001 Holding Company 100% Section 2(46) of 
Companies Act, 

2013

IV. 	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) 	 Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning  
of the year

No. of Shares held at the end  
of the year

% Change 
during the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares

A. Promoters
(1)	Indian

a)	Individual/ HUF
b)	Central Govt
c)	State Govt (s)
d)	Bodies Corp. 
e)	Banks/FI
f)	Any Other.

Sub-total (A) (1):-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

150000
-
-

150000

-
-
-
-

150000
-
-

150000

-
-
-
-

100
-
-

100

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

150000
-
-

150000

-
-
-
-

150000
-
-

150000

-
-
-
-

100
-
-

100

-
-
-
-

NIL
-
-

NIL
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Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning  
of the year

No. of Shares held at the end  
of the year

% Change 
during the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares

(2) Foreign
a) NRIs - Individuals
b) Other - Individuals
c) Bodies Corp.
d) Banks / FI
e) Any Other....

Sub-total (A) (2):-
Total shareholding 
of Promoter (A) = (A)
(1)+(A)( 2)

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

150000

-
-
-
-
-
-

150000

-
-
-
-
-
-

100

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

150000

-
-
-
-
-
-

150000

-
-
-
-
-
-

100

-
-
-
-
-
-

NIL

B.	 Public Shareholding
1.	 Institutions

a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks/FI
c) Central Govt
d) State Govt(s)
e)	Venture Capital 

Funds
f)	Insurance 

Companies
g)	FIIs
h)	Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds
i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-

-

2.	 Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian
ii) Overseas

b) Individuals
i) �Individual 

shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) �Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh

c) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(2):-
Total Public Shareholding 
(B) = (B)(1) + (B)(2)

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

C.	 Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) - 150000 150000 100 - 150000 150000 100 -
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(ii)	 Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder’s 
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Share holding at the end of the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

%of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered to 
total shares

% change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
year

1 T.V. Today Network 
Limited

150000 100 NIL 150000 100 NIL NIL

Total 150000 100 NIL 150000 100 NIL NIL

(iii) 	Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
	 No change in Promoter’s shareholding

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the beginning  
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year

(iv)	 Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 
Not applicable

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the beginning  
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

No. of shares % of total shares of the 
company

At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease 
in Share holding during the 
year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer/ bonus/
sweat equity etc):

- - - -

At the End of the year (or 
on the date of separation, if 
separated during the year)

- - - -

(v) 	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: Not Applicable

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the beginning  
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the year

For Each of the Directors 
and KMP

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the

company

No. of shares % of total shares of the 
company

At the
beginning of the year
Date wise Increase 
/ Decrease in Share 
holding during the year
specifying the reasons 
for increase / decrease 
(e.g.
allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year
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V. 	 INDEBTEDNESS

	 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial 
year
i)	 Principal Amount
ii)	 Interest due but not paid
iii)	 Interest accrued but not due

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -
Change in Indebtedness during the financial 
year
•	 Addition
•	 Reduction

- - - -

Net Change - - - -
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i)	 Principal Amount
ii)	 Interest due but not paid
iii)	 Interest accrued but not due

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -

VI. 	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
A. 	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
Amount

…… …… …… ……
1. Gross salary

(a)	Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of 
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b)	Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c)	Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax 

Act, 1961

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

2. Stock Option - - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - - -
4. Commission

-	 as % of profit
-	 others, specify...

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

5. Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (A) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Ceiling as per the Act

B. 	 Remuneration to other directors:
Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

…… …… …… ……
3. Independent Directors - - - - -
•	 Fee for attending board committee meetings
•	 Commission
•	 Others, please specify

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

Total (1) - - - - -
4. Other Non-Executive Directors - - - - -
•	 Fee for attending board committee meetings
•	 Commission
•	 Others, please specify

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

Total (2) - - - - -
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Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

Total (B) = (1 + 2) - - - - -
Total Managerial Remuneration - - - - -
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C.	 REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD: 
Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CEO Company 
Secretary

CFO Total

1. Gross salary
(a)	Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 
1961

(b)	Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961

(c)	Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2. Stock Option - - - -
3. Sweat Equity - - - -
4. Commission

- 	 as % of profit
- 	 others, specify...

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL 
NIL

5. Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total NIL NIL NIL NIL

VII. 	PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief Description Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/ 

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority [RD/
NCLT/COURT]

Appeal made, if 
any (give Details)

A.	 COMPANY
Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

B.	 DIRECTORS
Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

C.	 OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of T.V. Today Network (Business) Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

1.	 We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of T.V. Today Network (Business) Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as 
at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the 
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial 
Statements

2.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of 
these standalone financial statements to give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
standalone financial statements based on our audit.

4.	 We have taken into account the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder including the accounting 
standards and matters which are required to be included 
in the audit report.

5.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act 
and other applicable authoritative pronouncements 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and pronouncements require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

6.	 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation 
of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view, in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has 
in place an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

7.	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Opinion

8.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015, and its 
profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9. 	 As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2015’, issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (hereinafter 
referred to as the “Order”), and on the basis of such 
checks of the books and records of the Company as we 
considered appropriate and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order.

10.   As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information 

and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit.

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

(c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and 
Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

(d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2015 taken 
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on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act.

(f)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief 
and according to the information and explanations 
given to us:

		  i.	 The Company does not have any pending 
litigations as at March 31, 2015 which would 
impact its financial position; 

		  ii. The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts as at 
March 31, 2015;

		  iii. There were no amounts which were required to 
be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company during the 
year ended March 31, 2015.  

For Price Waterhouse
Firm Registration Number: 301112E

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Sougata Mukherjee

Place: Gurgaon 			  Partner
Date: May 12, 2015		  Membership Number 57084
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Annexure to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditors’ 
Report of even date to the members of T.V. Today Network 
(Business) Limited on the standalone financial statements as 
of and for the year ended March 31, 2015
i.	 The Company did not hold any fixed assets during the 

year ended March 31, 2015. Therefore, the provisions 
of Clause 3(i) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

ii.	 The Company does not hold any inventory. Therefore, 
the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

iii.	 The Company has not granted any loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered 
in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. 
Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a) and (iii)
(b) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.	 The Company has not purchased any inventory or fixed 
asset and has also not sold any good or service during 
the year ended March 31, 2015. Therefore, the provisions 
of Clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 
of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent 
notified.

vi.	 The Central Government of India has not specified the 
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of 
Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the 
Company.

vii.	 (a)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in 
depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including 
income tax, cess and other material statutory dues, 
as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us and the records of the Company examined 
by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales-tax, 
wealth-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, and duty of 

excise or value added tax or cess, which have not 
been deposited on account of any dispute.

	 (c)	 There are no amounts required to be transferred 
by the Company to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 1956 and the rules made 
thereunder.

viii.	 The Company has no accumulated losses as at the end 
of the financial year and it has not incurred any cash 
losses in the financial year ended on that date or in the 
immediately preceding financial year.

ix.	 As the Company does not have any borrowings from 
any financial institution or bank nor has it issued any 
debentures as at the balance sheet date, the provisions 
of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

x.	 In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has not given 
any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or 
financial institutions during the year. Accordingly, the 
provisions of Clause 3(x) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

xi.	 The Company has not raised any term loans. Accordingly, 
the provisions of Clause 3(xi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

xii.	 During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanations given 
to us, we have neither come across any instance of 
material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such 
case by the Management. 

 
For Price Waterhouse

Firm Registration Number: 301112E
Chartered Accountants

Sougata Mukherjee
Place	:	Gurgaon 	 Partner
Date	 :	May 12, 2015	 Membership Number 57084
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Balance sheet as at MARCH 31, 2015
	

Note As at 

 March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.) 

 March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.) 

Equity and liabilities

Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 2  1,500,000  1,500,000 
Reserves and surplus 3  440,554  422,138 
Sub - total  1,940,554  1,922,138 

Current liabilities
Trade payables 4  170,858  509,296 
Short-term provisions 5  16,754  24,107 
Sub - total  187,612  533,403 

Total  2,128,166  2,455,541 

Assets

Current assets
Cash and bank balances 6  2,087,302  2,266,821 
Other current assets 7  40,864  188,720 
Sub - total  2,128,166  2,455,541 

Total  2,128,166  2,455,541 

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse	 For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Sougata Mukherjee	 Rekha Purie	 Aroon Purie 
Partner	  	 Director 	 	 Director 
Membership No. 57084

Place	 :	 Gurgaon	 Place	 : 	Noida
Date	 :	 May 12, 2015	 Date	 : 	May 12, 2015
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2015
	

Note Year ended

March 31, 2015
Amount (Rs.)

March 31, 2014
Amount (Rs.)

Other income 8  176,347  209,314 

Total Revenue  176,347  209,314 

Expenses:
Finance costs 9  2,623  3,919 
Other expenses 10  100,817  71,526 

Total Expenses  103,440  75,445 

Profit Before Tax  72,907  133,869 

Tax expense
Current tax  54,491  64,678 

Profit for the year  18,416  69,191 

Earnings per equity Share: 
[nominal value per share: Rs. 10 (Previous Year Rs. 10)]

11

Basic  0.12  0.46 
Diluted  0.12  0.46 

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse	 For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Sougata Mukherjee	 Rekha Purie	 Aroon Purie 
Partner	  	 Director 	 	 Director 
Membership No. 57084

Place	 :	 Gurgaon	 Place	 : 	Noida
Date	 :	 May 12, 2015	 Date	 : 	May 12, 2015
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2015
	

Year ended
March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxation  72,907  133,869 
Adjustments for:
Interest income  (176,347)  (209,314)
Interest expenditure  2,623  3,919 
Operating profit before working capital changes  (100,817)  (71,526)

Changes in working capital: 
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables  (338,438)  115,632 
(Increase) / Decrease in other bank balances  220,379  (174,516)
Cash generated from operations  (218,876)  (130,410)
Taxes paid (net of refunds)  (61,360)  (61,828)

Net cash used in operating activities  (280,236)  (192,238)

B. Cash flow from investing activities 
Interest received 324,204 195,110 

Net cash generated from investing activities 324,204 195,110 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 
Interest expenditure  (3,108)  (3,244)

Net cash used in financing activities  (3,108)  (3,244)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  40,860  (372)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  31,815  32,187 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  72,675  31,815 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: 
Cash on hand  1,425  1,465 
Bank balances 

In current account  71,250  30,350 
Total  72,675  31,815 

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse	 For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Sougata Mukherjee	 Rekha Purie	 Aroon Purie 
Partner	  	 Director 	 	 Director 
Membership No. 57084

Place	 :	 Gurgaon	 Place	 : 	Noida
Date	 :	 May 12, 2015	 Date	 : 	May 12, 2015
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1. 	 Summary of significant accounting policies 

a.	 Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in 
India under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, till the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto are 
prescribed by Central Government in consultation and recommendation of the National Financial Reporting Authority, 
the existing Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to apply. Consequently, these 
financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under 
Section 211(3C) [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended] and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the criteria set out in the Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Company does not have any operations and, therefore, no operating cycle exists.

b.	 Interest Income 

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate 
applicable.

c.	 Taxes on Income

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, is included in determining the net profit for the year. 
Current tax is determined based on liability computed in accordance with relevant tax rates and tax laws.
Deferred tax is recognized for all timing differences arising between accounting income and taxable income and is 
measured at the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance sheet date. 
Deferred tax assets are carried forward to the extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable profits 
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed 
depreciation or brought forward losses are recognized to the extent of virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable 
profits will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

d.	 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is more likely than 
not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. These 
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. A disclosure for contingent 
liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that probably will not require an outflow of 
resource or where a reliable estimate of obligation cannot be made.

e.	 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

f.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cheques in hand, demand deposits with 
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Notes forming part of the financial statements
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

T.V. Today Network (Business) Limited

2. 	 Share Capital 

 Particulars As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.) 
 March 31, 2014 

Amount (Rs.)
Authorised: 
150,000 (previous year 150,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each  1,500,000  1,500,000 
Issued: 
150,000 (previous year 150,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each  1,500,000  1,500,000 
Subscribed and Paid-Up: 
150,000 (previous year 150,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each (fully paid up)  1,500,000  1,500,000 
Total  1,500,000  1,500,000 
(a) Reconciliation of number of shares 

Equity Shares :  As at March 31, 2015   As at March 31, 2014
Number of 

Shares
 Amount (Rs.) Number of 

Shares
 Amount (Rs.)

Balance as at the beginning of the year  150,000  1,500,000  150,000  1,500,000 
Balance as at the end of the year  150,000  1,500,000  150,000  1,500,000 

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares 
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible 
for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining 
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. However, no 
such preferential amounts exist currently.					   

(c) Shares held by holding company 
Particulars 
 

As at
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
 150,000 (previous year 150,000) shares held by T.V. Today Network Limited, India, 
 the holding company

 1,500,000 1,500,000

(d) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company 
Particulars 
 

 As at
 March 31, 2015  March 31, 2014

T.V. Today Network Limited, India, the holding company  150,000  150,000
	  (100%) 	  (100%)

3. 	 Reserves and Surplus 

 Particulars 
 

 As at 
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
 Surplus in statement of profit and loss 
 Balance as at the beginning of the year  422,138  352,947 
 Profit for the year  18,416  69,191 
 Balance as at the end of the year  440,554  422,138 

4. 	 Trade Payables 

 Particulars 
 

 As at 
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)

Trade payables (refer note 13)  170,858  509,296 

 Total  170,858  509,296 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

T.V. Today Network (Business) Limited

5.	 Short-term provisions 

 Particulars 
 

 As at 
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Provision for Current Tax [Net of Advance Tax of Rs. 390,407  
(previous year Rs. 329,047)]  

 16,754  24,107 

Total  16,754  24,107 

6. 	 Cash and Bank Balances 

 Particulars 
 

 As at 
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand  1,425  1,465 
Bank balances
In current account  71,250  30,350 

  72,675  31,815 
Other bank balances

Long term deposits with maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months  2,014,627  2,235,006 
Total  2,087,302  2,266,821 

7.	 Other current Assets

Particulars 
 

 As at 
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Unsecured, considered good:
Interest accrued on deposits  40,864  188,720 
Total  40,864  188,720 

8.	 Other Income 

Particulars 
 

Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Interest income  176,347  209,314 
Total  176,347  209,314 

9.	 Finance Costs

Particulars 
 

Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Interest on shortfall of advance tax  2,623  3,919 
Total  2,623  3,919 

10.	 Other Expenses 

Particulars 
 

Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Legal and professional fees  51,940  24,335 
Payment to auditors (excluding service tax)
As auditor:

Audit fee  40,000  40,000 
Reimbursement of expenses  8,877  7,191 

Total  100,817  71,526 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

T.V. Today Network (Business) Limited

11. 	Earnings Per Share 

Particulars Year ended
 March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
 March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Basic and diluted
Profit after tax A 18,416 69,191
Weighted average number of shares outstanding B 150,000 150,000
Basic and diluted EPS A/B 0.12 0.46
Face value per share (Rs.) 10 10
The company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares.

Other Disclosures

12. 	Related Party Disclosures

(a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship:
Where control exists:
Holding company: T.V. Today Network Limited
Intermediate holding company: Living Media India Limited (Refer note below)
Ultimate holding company: World Media Private Limited (Refer note below)

(b) Transactions / Balances Holding Company
March 31, 2015

Amount (Rs.)
March 31, 2014

Amount (Rs.)
Income tax paid on behalf of Company  47,192  47,649 
Tax Deducted at Source (TDS) deposited on behalf of Company  4,888  -   
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of Company  51,900  54,525 
Balance as at year end
Trade payables  56,788  395,225 
Note:- There were no transactions during the year and previous year. 

13.	 Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

	 Based on information available with the Company, there are no outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises as at March 
31, 2015. No interest is paid / payable by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006.					   

14.	 No deferred tax asset has been recognized on the brought forward tax losses of the Company as there is no virtual certainty 
that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

15.	 Previous year figures

	 Previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to this year’s classification.

For Price Waterhouse	 For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 301112E
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
Sougata Mukherjee	 Rekha Purie	 Aroon Purie 
Partner	  	 Director 	 	 Director 
Membership No. 57084

Place	 :	 Gurgaon	 Place	 : 	Noida
Date	 :	 May 12, 2015	 Date	 : 	May 12, 2015
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